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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains statements that are not historical fact and
constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The words "estimates,"
"believes," "expects," "anticipates," "plans," "intends," "may,"
"could," "would" and "should" or similar expressions, or discussions of
strategy or of plans are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of
performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Future
results may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-
looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are necessarily based upon various
assumptions involving judgments with respect to the future and other
risks, including, among others, local, regional, national and
international economic, competitive, political, legislative and
regulatory conditions and developments; actions by the California Public
Utilities Commission, the California State Legislature, the California
Department of Water Resources, and the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission and other regulatory bodies in the United States and other
countries; capital markets conditions, inflation rates, interest rates
and exchange rates; energy and trading markets, including the timing and
extent of changes in commodity prices; the availability of natural gas;
weather conditions and conservation efforts; war and terrorist attacks;
business, regulatory, environmental and legal decisions and
requirements; the status of deregulation of retail natural gas and
electricity delivery; the timing and success of business development
efforts; and other uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict
and many of which are beyond the control of the company. Readers are
cautioned not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements and are
urged to review and consider carefully the risks, uncertainties and
other factors which affect the company's business described in this
report and other reports filed by the company from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.



PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Description of Business

A description of Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries (the company) is
given in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations"™ of the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders,
which is incorporated by reference. The company has four separately
managed reportable segments comprised of Southern California Gas
Company (SoCalGas), San Diego Gas & Electric (SDG&E), Sempra
Commodities and Sempra Generation. SoCalGas and SDG&E are collectively
referred to as "the California Utilities."

Company Website

The company's website address is http://www.sempra.com/investor.htm.
The company makes available free of charge through its website its
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. The charters of
the audit, compensation and corporate governance committees of the
company's board of directors' (the board), the board's corporate
governance guidelines, and the code of business conduct and ethics for
directors and officers are posted on the company's website. Printed
copies may be obtained by writing to the company's Corporate Secretary
at Sempra Energy, 101 Ash Street, San Diego, CA 92101-3017.

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors and all other information contained in this
report should be considered carefully when evaluating Sempra Energy and
its subsidiaries. These risk factors could affect the actual results of
Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries and cause such results to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements of,
or made by or on behalf of, Sempra Energy or its subsidiaries. Other
risks and uncertainties, in addition to those that are described below,
may also impair their business operations. If any of the following
risks occurs, Sempra Energy's business, cash flows, results of
operations and financial condition could be seriously harmed. In
addition, the trading price of its securities could decline due to the
occurrence of any of these risks. These risk factors should be read in
conjunction with the other detailed information concerning Sempra
Energy and its subsidiaries set forth in the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in the 2004
Annual Report to Shareholders, which is incorporated by reference in
this report.



Risks Related to the California Utilities

The California Utilities are subject to extensive regulation by state,
federal and local legislation and regulatory authorities, which may
adversely affect the operations, performance and growth of their
businesses.

The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), which consists of
five commissioners appointed by the Governor of California for
staggered six-year terms, regulates the California Utilities' rates
(except electric transmission rates, which are regulated by the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)) and conditions of service, sales
of securities, rates of return, rates of depreciation, uniform systems
of accounts, examination of records and long-term resource procurement.
The CPUC conducts various reviews of utility performance (including
reasonableness and prudency reviews) and affiliate relationships and
conducts audits and investigations into various matters which may, from
time to time, result in disallowances and penalties adversely affecting
earnings and cash flows. Various proceedings involving the CPUC and
relating to the California Utilities' rates, costs, incentive
mechanisms, performance-based regulation and compliance with affiliate
and holding company rules are discussed in the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

Periodically, the California Utilities' rates are approved by the CPUC
based on forecasts of capital and operating costs. If the California
Utilities' actual capital and operating costs were to exceed the amount
included in its base rates approved by the CPUC, it would adversely
affect earnings and cash flows.

To promote efficient operations and improved productivity and to move
away from reasonableness reviews and disallowances, the CPUC adopted
Performance-Based Regulation (PBR) for the California Utilities. Under
PBR, regulators require future income potential to be tied to achieving
or exceeding specific performance and productivity goals, rather than
relying solely on expanding utility plant to increase earnings. The
three areas that are eligible for PBR rewards are: operational
incentives based on measurements of safety, reliability and customer
satisfaction; energy efficiency rewards based on the effectiveness of
the programs; and natural gas procurement rewards. Although the
California Utilities have received significant PBR rewards in the past,
there can be no assurance that the California Utilities will receive
rewards at similar levels in the future, or at all. Additionally, if
the California Utilities fail to achieve certain minimum performance
levels established under the PBR mechanisms, they may be assessed
financial disallowances or penalties which could adversely affect their
earnings and cash flows.

The FERC regulates electric transmission rates, the transmission and
wholesale sales of electricity in interstate commerce, transmission
access and other similar matters involving SDG&E.

The California Utilities may be impacted by new regulations, decisions,
orders or interpretations of the CPUC, FERC or other regulatory bodies.
New legislation, regulations, decisions, orders or interpretations
could change how the California Utilities operate, could affect their



ability to recover their various costs through rates or adjustment
mechanisms, or could require the California Utilities to incur
additional expenses.

SDG&E may incur substantial costs and liabilities as a result of its
ownership of nuclear facilities.

SDG&E owns a 20% interest in the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(SONGS), a 2,150 megawatt nuclear generating facility near San
Clemente, California. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) has broad
authority under federal law to impose licensing and safety-related
requirements for the operation of nuclear generation facilities.
SDG&E's ownership interest in SONGS subjects it to the risks of nuclear
generation, which include:

* the potential harmful effects on the environment and human
health resulting from the operation of nuclear facilities

and the storage, handling and disposal of radioactive

materials;

* limitations on the amounts and types of insurance
commercially available to cover losses that might arise in
connection with nuclear operations; and

* uncertainties with respect to the technological and
financial aspects of decommissioning nuclear plants at the

end of their licensed lives.

The California Utilities' future results of operations and financial
condition may be materially adversely affected by the outcome of pending
litigation against them.

The California energy crisis of 2000 and 2001 has generated numerous
lawsuits, governmental investigations and regulatory proceedings
involving many energy companies, including Sempra Energy and the
California Utilities. They are the remaining defendants in class action
and individual antitrust and unfair competition lawsuits scheduled for a
jury trial to begin in September 2005 in which the plaintiffs have
asserted that they are entitled to recover $24 billion in damages.
Additional lawsuits have been filed by the Attorney General of Nevada and
by others. They are also responding to an ongoing investigation being
conducted by the California Attorney General and an ongoing CPUC
proceeding related to the increase in natural gas prices at the
California-Arizona border in 2000-2001. The California Utilities have
expended and continue to expend substantial amounts defending these
lawsuits and in connection with related investigations and regulatory
proceedings. If these matters are ultimately resolved unfavorably to the
California Utilities, their results of operations and financial condition
and those of Sempra Energy may be materially adversely affected.

These proceedings are discussed in the notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations."



Risks Related to Sempra Energy's Electric Generation, Commodities
Trading, Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG), Pipelines & Storage and Other
Businesses

Sempra Energy's businesses are exposed to market risk, and its financial
condition, results of operations, cash flows and liquidity may be
adversely affected by fluctuations in commodity market prices that are
beyond its control.

Sempra Commodities is a full-service trading company that markets and
trades physical and financial commodity products. Its trading portfolios
consist of physical and financial commodity contracts, including
contracts for natural gas, electricity, petroleum products, base metals
and other commodities that are settled by the delivery of the commodity
or cash. Although Sempra Commodities generally seeks to structure its
trading contracts so that a substantial majority of its trading revenues
are realizable within 24 months and strives to maintain appropriate
hedging mechanisms for its trading book, Sempra Commodities may have
substantial unhedged trading positions in the market, resulting from the
management of its trading portfolios or from its inability to hedge, in
whole or in part, particular risks.

Sempra Generation generates electricity that it sells under long-term
contracts and into the spot market or other competitive markets. It
purchases fuel for its power plants, consisting of natural gas and coal,
and may also purchase electricity in the open market to satisfy its
contractual obligations.

Sempra Energy's sales and results of operations could be adversely
affected if the prevailing market prices for electricity, natural gas,
coal or other commodities, whether procured for power plants or to
satisfy contractual obligations with trading counterparties or customers,
in regional markets and other competitive markets in which the company
competes, change in a direction or manner that it has not anticipated and
for which it has not provided through purchase or sale commitments or
other hedging transactions.

Unanticipated changes in market prices for energy-related and other
commodities result from multiple factors, including: weather conditions;
seasonality; changes in demand; transmission or transportation
constraints or inefficiencies; availability of competitively priced
alternative energy sources; commodity production levels; actions by the
Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries with respect to the
supply of crude oil; federal, state and foreign energy and environmental
regulation and legislation; natural disasters, wars, embargoes and other
catastrophic events; and expropriation of assets by foreign countries.

In 2001 the FERC, which has jurisdiction over wholesale power and
transmission rates, independent system operators and other entities that
control transmission facilities or that administer wholesale power sales
in some of the markets in which the company operates, imposed price
limitations which resulted in unexpected moves in electricity prices. The
FERC may impose additional price limitations, bidding rules and other
mechanisms or terminate existing price limitations from time to time in
the future. Any such action by the FERC may result in prices for
electricity changing in an unanticipated direction or manner, and may



have an adverse effect on Sempra Energy's sales and results of
operations.

Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries cannot and do not attempt to fully
hedge their assets or positions against changes in commodity prices, and
their hedging procedures may not work as planned.

To reduce financial exposure related to commodity price fluctuations,
Sempra Energy's subsidiaries routinely enter into contracts to hedge a
substantial portion of their purchase and sale commitments and
inventories of electricity, natural gas, coal, crude oil and refined
petroleum products, base metals and other commodities. As part of this
strategy, they routinely utilize fixed-price, forward, physical purchase
and sales contracts, futures, financial swaps and option contracts traded
in the over-the-counter markets or on exchanges. However, the company
does not cover the entire exposure of its assets or its positions to
market price volatility and the coverage will vary over time. To the
extent Sempra Energy's subsidiaries have unhedged positions, or if their
hedging positions do not work as planned, fluctuating commodity prices
could have a material adverse effect on Sempra Energy's business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Risk management procedures may not prevent losses.

Although Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries have risk management systems
and control systems in place that use advanced methodologies to quantify
and manage risk, these systems may not always prevent material losses.
Risk management procedures may not always be followed or may not always
work as planned. In addition, daily value-at-risk and loss limits are
derived from historic price movements. If prices significantly or
persistently deviate from historic prices, the limits may not protect the
company from significant losses. As a result of these and other factors,
there can be no assurances that Sempra Energy's risk management
procedures will prevent losses that would negatively affect its business
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

A downgrade in Sempra Energy's credit ratings could negatively affect its
commodities trading and other non-utility businesses.

If Sempra Energy's credit ratings were to be downgraded, the business
prospects of its commodities trading and other non-utility businesses,
which generally rely on the credit-worthiness of Sempra Energy, would be
adversely affected. Sempra Commodities would be required to comply with
various margin or other credit enhancement obligations under its trading
and marketing contracts, substantially all of which are guaranteed by
Sempra Energy, and it may be unable to continue to trade or able to do so
only on less-favorable terms. To meet liquidity requirements, Sempra
Energy and its subsidiaries maintain substantial unused committed lines
of credit for which borrowings are available without regard to credit
ratings. However, a ratings downgrade could require Sempra Energy to
divert to Sempra Commodities all or a portion of the liquidity that these
lines would otherwise provide for the expansion of Sempra Energy's other
non-utility businesses. In addition, if these lines were to become
unavailable or to be inadequate to meet margin or other credit
enhancement requirements, Sempra Commodities' trading partners could
exercise other remedies such as liquidating and netting their exposures
to Sempra Commodities, making it more difficult or impossible for Sempra



Commodities to manage effectively its remaining trading positions or to
continue its trading business, and Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries may
not have sufficient liquidity to meet their obligations.

Sempra Energy's businesses depend on counterparties, customers and
suppliers performing in accordance with their agreements, and any failure
by them to perform could require the company to incur substantial
expenses and expose it to commodity price risk and volatility, which
could adversely affect Sempra Energy's liquidity, cash flows and results
of operations.

Sempra Energy's subsidiaries are exposed to the risk that counterparties,
customers and suppliers that owe money or commodities as a result of
market transactions or other long-term agreements will not perform their
obligations under such agreements. Should they fail to perform, the
company may be required to acquire alternative hedging arrangements or to
honor the underlying commitment at then-current market prices. In such
event, Sempra Energy's subsidiaries may incur additional losses to the
extent of amounts already paid to such counterparties or suppliers. In
addition, the subsidiaries often extend credit to counterparties and
customers. While the company performs significant credit analyses prior
to extending credit, Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries are exposed to
the risk that they may not be able to collect amounts owed to them.

If the Department of Water Resources (DWR) were to succeed in setting
aside, or were to fail to perform its obligations under its long-term
power contract with Sempra Generation, Sempra Energy's business, results
of operations and cash flows will be materially adversely affected.

In 2001, Sempra Generation entered into a 10-year power sales agreement
with the DWR, to supply up to 1,900 megawatts to the state. Sempra Energy
expects the contract with the DWR will be a source of significant revenue
over the 10-year period. The validity of the power sales agreement with
the DWR has been the subject of extensive litigation between the parties
before the FERC and in California courts. Sempra Generation has prevailed
in all of these challenges to date, but the plaintiffs have appealed
several of these rulings. If the DWR were to succeed in setting aside its
obligations under the contract, or if the DWR fails or is unable to meet
its contractual obligations on a timely basis, it could have a material
adverse effect on Sempra Energy's business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition. These proceedings are described in the
notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.™"

In the future, Sempra Energy's subsidiaries may elect not to or may not
be able to enter into long-term supply and sales agreements or long-term
firm capacity agreements for their projects, which would subject their
sales to increased volatility and its businesses to increased
competition.

The electric generation and wholesale power sales industries have become
highly competitive. As more plants are built and competitive pressures
increase, wholesale electricity prices become more volatile. Without the
benefit of long-term power sales agreements, such as the 10-year power
sales agreement between Sempra Generation and the DWR, Sempra Energy's
sales will be subject to increased price volatility, and it may be unable
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to sell the power generated by Sempra Generation's facilities or operate
those facilities profitably.

Sempra LNG does not intend to commence significant construction of its
proposed LNG terminals without first obtaining long-term LNG supply
agreements that substantially reduce its exposure to changes in natural
gas prices (through corresponding natural gas sales agreements or supply
prices tied to prevailing natural gas prices or long-term firm capacity
agreements) for a substantial portion of the processing capacity of these
facilities. However, if these plans were to change and the company were
to construct its terminals without the benefit of such arrangements, its
sales would be subject to increased price volatility, and it may be
unable to sell the services of its LNG facilities or to operate the
facilities profitably. If the counterparties, customers or suppliers to
one or more of the key agreements for the LNG facilities were to fail or
become unable to meet their contractual obligations on a timely basis, it
could have a significant negative impact on Sempra Energy's business
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Business development activities may not be successful and projects under
construction may not commence operation as scheduled, which could
increase Sempra Energy's costs and impair its ability to recover its
investments.

The acquisition, development and construction of electric generating
facilities, LNG receiving terminals, and natural gas pipelines and
storage facilities involve numerous risks. Sempra Energy and its
subsidiaries may be required to expend significant sums for preliminary
engineering, permitting, fuel supply, resource exploration, legal and
other expenses before it can be established whether a project is
feasible, economically attractive or capable of being built. Sempra
Energy's success in developing a particular project is contingent upon,
among other things, negotiation of satisfactory engineering, procurement
and construction agreements, fuel supply and power sales contracts (for
generating facilities), supply and natural gas sales agreements or firm
capacity service agreements (for LNG receiving terminals and natural gas
pipelines and storage facilities), receipt of required governmental
permits and timely implementation and satisfactory completion of
construction and, successful completion of a particular project may be
adversely affected by unforeseen engineering problems, construction
delays and contractor performance shortfalls, work stoppages, adverse
weather conditions, environmental and geological conditions, and other
factors. If the company is unable to complete the development of a
facility, it typically will not be able to recover its investment in the
project.

The operation of these facilities also involves many risks, including the
breakdown or failure of generation or regasification and storage
facilities or other equipment or processes, labor disputes, fuel
interruption and operating performance below expected levels. In
addition, weather-related incidents and other natural disasters can
disrupt generation, regasification, storage and transmission systems. The
occurrence of any of these events could lead to operating power plants
below expected capacity levels, which may result in lost revenues or
increased expenses, including higher maintenance costs and penalties, and
could adversely affect Sempra Energy's business, cash flows and results
of operations.
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Competition among developers and operators of LNG terminals is rapidly
increasing, which may adversely affect the profitability of Sempra LNG's
proposed LNG terminals.

Although there are only a limited number of LNG terminal facilities
operating in North America today, many companies have announced plans to
develop LNG facilities to serve the North American market. Some of these
competitors have more operating experience, more development experience,
larger staffs and greater financial resources than the company. Industry
analysts have predicted that, if all of the proposed LNG facilities in
North America that have been announced by developers are actually built,
there will likely be substantial excess capacity for such terminals in
the near future. Excess capacity is likely to lead to decreased prices
for such services. Although its proposed LNG facilities in Mexico and
Louisiana are more advanced in the siting, permitting and regulatory
approval processes than the proposed projects of many of its competitors
there can be no assurance that Sempra Energy will be able to maintain
that advantage.

Sempra Energy's subsidiaries rely on transportation assets that they do
not own or control to deliver electricity and natural gas.

Sempra Energy's subsidiaries depend on electric transmission lines,
natural gas pipelines and other transportation facilities owned and
operated by third parties to deliver the electricity and natural gas they
sell to wholesale markets, to supply natural gas and coal to their
electric generation facilities, and to provide retail energy services to
customers. Sempra LNG also will rely on specialized LNG ships to
transport LNG to its proposed LNG facilities and on natural gas pipelines
to transport natural gas for customers of the facilities. If
transportation is disrupted, or if capacity is inadequate, the ability of
Sempra Energy's subsidiaries to sell and deliver their products and
services may be hindered. As a result, they may be responsible for
damages incurred by their customers, such as the additional cost of
acquiring alternative supply at then-current spot market rates.

Sempra Energy's businesses require numerous permits and other
governmental approvals from various federal, state, local and foreign
governmental agencies, and any failure to obtain or maintain required
permits or approvals could cause Sempra Energy's sales to decline and/or
its costs to increase.

The acquisition, ownership and operation of electric generation
facilities, LNG receiving terminals, and natural gas pipelines and
storage facilities require numerous permits, approvals and certificates
from federal, state, local and foreign governmental agencies. All of the
existing and planned development projects of Sempra Energy's subsidiaries
require multiple permits. They may not be able to obtain or maintain all
required regulatory approvals. If there is a delay in obtaining any
required regulatory approvals or if the company fails to obtain any
required approvals or to comply with any applicable laws or regulations,
it may not be able to operate its facilities, or it may be forced to
incur additional costs.
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Sempra Energy's businesses are subject to complex government regulations
and may be adversely affected by changes in these regulations or in their
interpretation or implementation.

In recent years, the regulatory environment applicable to the electric
power and natural gas industries has undergone significant changes, on
both federal and state levels, which have affected the nature of these
industries and the manner in which their participants conduct their
businesses. These changes are ongoing, and Sempra Energy cannot predict
the future course of changes in this regulatory environment or the
ultimate affect that this changing regulatory environment will have on
its businesses. Moreover, existing regulations may be revised or
reinterpreted, and new laws and regulations may be adopted or become
applicable to the company and its facilities. Future changes in laws and
regulations may have a detrimental effect on Sempra Energy's business,
cash flows, financial condition and results of operations.

Sempra Energy's energy and commodity trading operations are subject to
affiliate rules relating to transactions with the California Utilities.
These businesses could be adversely affected by changes in these rules or
by additional CPUC or FERC rules' further restricting their ability to
sell electricity or natural gas or to trade with the California
Utilities. Affiliate transaction rules also could require these
businesses to obtain the prior approval of the CPUC before entering into
any such transactions with the California Utilities. Any such
restrictions or approval requirements could adversely affect the electric
generation plants, natural gas pipelines, LNG receiving terminals, or
trading operations of the company's subsidiaries.

Various proceedings, inquiries and investigations relating to the
business activities of Sempra Generation and Sempra Commodities are
currently pending before the FERC. A description of such proceedings,
inquiries and investigations is provided in the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

Sempra Energy's businesses have significant environmental compliance
costs, and future environmental compliance costs could adversely affect
Sempra Energy's profitability.

Sempra Energy's subsidiaries are subject to extensive federal, state,
local and foreign statutes, rules and regulations relating to
environmental protection. They are required to obtain numerous
governmental permits, licenses and other approvals to construct and
operate their businesses. Additionally, to comply with these legal
requirements, they must spend significant sums on environmental
monitoring, pollution control equipment and emissions fees. The company
also is generally responsible for all on-site liabilities associated with
the environmental condition of its electric generation facilities and
other energy projects which it has acquired or developed, regardless of
when the liabilities arose and whether they are known or unknown. If
Sempra Energy's subsidiaries fail to comply with applicable environmental
laws, they may be subject to penalties, fines and/or curtailments of
their operations.

The scope and effect of any new environmental laws and regulations,
including their affects on operations, are difficult to predict. However,
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increasing national and international concerns regarding global warming
and proposed regulations regarding mercury, nitrogen oxide and sulfur
dioxide emissions could result in requirements for additional pollution
control equipment or significant emissions fees or taxes, particularly
with respect to coal-fired generation facilities, that could adversely
affect Sempra Generation. In addition, existing environmental regulations
could be revised or reinterpreted and other new laws and regulations
could be adopted or become applicable to the company and its facilities.

Sempra Energy's international businesses are exposed to different local,
regulatory and business risks and challenges, which could have a material
adverse effect on Sempra Energy's financial condition, cash flows and
results of operations.

Sempra Energy subsidiaries currently have interests in electricity
generation, natural gas transmission and LNG terminal projects in Mexico,
and also have trading, marketing and risk management operations in
Canada, Europe and Asia. Sempra Pipelines & Storage also has ownership
interests in electricity and natural gas distribution businesses in
Argentina, Chile and Peru. Developing infrastructure projects, owning
energy assets and operating businesses in foreign jurisdictions subject
the company to significant political and financial risks which vary by
country, including:

* changes in foreign laws and regulations, including tax and
environmental laws and regulations;

* changes in U.S. laws and regulations, including tax and
environmental laws and regulations, related to foreign

operations;
* high rates of inflation;

changes in government policies or personnel;

trade restrictions;

limitations on U.S. company ownership in foreign countries;
permitting and regulatory compliance;

changes in labor supply and labor relations in operations
outside the U.S.;

* adverse rulings by foreign courts or tribunals and difficulty
in enforcing contractual rights in foreign jurisdictions; and

* general political, economic and business conditions.

ok ok kK

Sempra Energy's international businesses also are subject to foreign
currency risks. These risks arise from both volatility in foreign
currency exchange rates and devaluations of foreign currencies. In such
cases, an appreciation of the U.S. dollar against a local currency could
reduce the amount of cash and income received from those foreign
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subsidiaries. For example, the devaluation of the Argentine peso against
the U.S. dollar in recent years (as well as the Argentine government's
unilateral, retroactive abrogation of utility agreements in early 2002
has had a material adverse effect on Sempra Pipelines & Storage's two
unconsolidated subsidiaries in Argentina. On September 6, 2002, Sempra
Pipelines & Storage initiated arbitration proceedings under the 1994
Bilateral Investment Treaty between the U.S. and Argentina for recovery
of the diminution of the value of its investments that has resulted from
Argentine governmental actions. Sempra Pipelines & Storage has claimed
damages of at least $258 million in these proceedings, which are
continuing. A description of legal proceedings relating to Sempra
Pipelines & Storage's business operations in Argentina is provided in the
notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. While Sempra Pipelines &
Storage believes that it has contracts and other measures in place to
mitigate its most significant foreign currency exchange risks, it has
some exposure that is not fully mitigated.

Other Risks Related to the Company

Sempra Energy's cash flows, ability to pay dividends and ability to meet
its debt obligations largely depend on the performance of its
subsidiaries.

Sempra Energy is a holding company and conducts its operations entirely
through its subsidiaries. Sempra Energy's California Utilities are its
major source of liquidity. Funding of other business units' capital
expenditures is largely dependent on the California Utilities' paying
sufficient dividends to Sempra Energy, which depends on the sufficiency
of utility earnings and cash flows in excess of utility needs. In
addition, Sempra Energy's cash flows, ability to meet its obligations to
creditors and its ability to pay dividends on its common stock are
largely dependent upon the earnings of the subsidiaries and the
distribution of such earnings to Sempra Energy in the form of dividends.
The subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities and could be
precluded from making such distributions under certain circumstances,
including as a result of legislation or regulation or in times of
financial distress.

Natural disasters, catastrophic accidents or acts of terrorism could
materially adversely affect Sempra Energy's business, earnings and cash
flows.

Like other major industrial facilities, Sempra Energy's generation plants
(including SONGS), electric transmission facilities, LNG receiving
terminals and storage facilities, chartered oil and LNG tankers and
natural gas pipelines and storage facilities may be damaged by natural
disasters, catastrophic accidents or acts of terrorism. Any such
incidents could result in severe business disruptions, significant
decreases in revenues or significant additional costs to the company,
which could have a material adverse effect on Sempra Energy's earnings
and cash flows. Given the nature and location of these facilities, any
such incidents also could cause fires, leaks, explosions, spills or other
significant damage to natural resources or property belonging to third
parties, or personal injuries, which could lead to significant claims
against Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries. Insurance coverage may become
unavailable for certain of these risks and the insurance proceeds
received for any loss of or damage to any of its facilities, or for any
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loss of or damage to natural resources or property or personal injuries
caused by its operations, may be insufficient to cover the company's
losses or liabilities without materially adversely affecting the
company's financial condition, earnings and cash flows.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

The most significant government regulation affecting Sempra Energy is
that affecting its utility subsidiaries.

California Utility Regulation

The CPUC, which consists of five commissioners appointed by the Governor
of California for staggered six-year terms, regulates SDG&E's and
SoCalGas' rates and conditions of service, sales of securities, rate of
return, rates of depreciation, uniform systems of accounts, examination
of records, and long-term resource procurement. The CPUC conducts various
reviews of utility performance and conducts investigations into various
matters, such as deregulation, competition and the environment, to
determine its future policies. The CPUC also regulates the relationship
of utilities with their holding companies and is currently conducting an
investigation into this relationship. This investigation is further
discussed in Note 15 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The California Energy Commission (CEC) has discretion over electric
demand forecasts for the state and for specific service territories.
Based upon these forecasts, the CEC determines the need for additional
energy sources and for conservation programs. The CEC sponsors
alternative-energy research and development projects, promotes energy
conservation programs and maintains a state-wide plan of action in case
of energy shortages. In addition, the CEC certifies power-plant sites and
related facilities within California.

The CEC conducts a 20-year forecast of supply availability and prices for
every market sector consuming natural gas in California. This forecast
includes resource evaluation, pipeline capacity needs, natural gas demand
and wellhead prices, and costs of transportation and distribution. This
analysis is used to support long-term investment decisions.

United States Utility Regulation

The FERC regulates the interstate sale and transportation of natural gas,
the transmission and wholesale sales of electricity in interstate
commerce, transmission access, the uniform systems of accounts, rates of
depreciation and electric rates involving sales for resale. Both the FERC
and the CPUC are currently investigating prices charged to the California
investor-owned utilities (IOUs) by various suppliers of natural gas and
electricity. Further discussion is provided in Notes 14 and 15 of the
notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The NRC oversees the licensing, construction and operation of nuclear
facilities. NRC regulations require extensive review of the safety,
radiological and environmental aspects of these facilities. Periodically,
the NRC requires that newly developed data and techniques be used to re-
analyze the design of a nuclear power plant and, as a result, requires
plant modifications as a condition of continued operation in some cases.

Local Regulation

SoCalGas has natural gas franchises with the 240 legal jurisdictions in
its service territory. These franchises allow SoCalGas to locate, operate
and maintain facilities for the transmission and distribution of natural
gas in streets and other public places. Some franchises have fixed terms,
such as that for the city of Los Angeles, which expires in 2012. The
range of expiration dates for the franchises with definite terms is 2005
to 2048. Most of the franchises do not have fixed terms and continue
indefinitely.

SDG&E has electric franchises with the two counties and the 26 cities in
its electric service territory, and natural gas franchises with the one
county and the 18 cities in its natural gas service territory. These
franchises allow SDG&E to locate, operate and maintain facilities for the
transmission and distribution of electricity and/or natural gas in
streets and other public places. The franchises do not have fixed terms,
except for the electric and natural gas franchises with the cities of
Encinitas (2012), San Diego (2021), Coronado (2028) and Chula Vista
(2014), and the natural gas franchises with the city of Escondido (2036
and the county of San Diego (2030).

Sempra Pipelines & Storage's Mexican subsidiaries, Distribuidora de Gas
Natural (DGN) de Mexicali, DGN de Chihuahua and DGN de La Laguna Durango,
build and operate natural gas distribution systems in Mexicali, Chihuahua
and the La Laguna-Durango zone in north-central Mexico, respectively.
These companies are regulated by city and state government labor and
environmental agencies. They are also regulated by the Mexican energy
regulatory commission.

Other Regulation

Sempra Commodities has trading locations in North America, Europe and
Asia that are subject to regulation as to operations and financial
position. Among other things, its operations are subject to the New York
Mercantile Exchange, the London Metals Exchange, the Commodity Futures
Trading Commission, the FERC and the National Futures Association.

Sempra LNG has operations in the United States that are subject to
regulation by the FERC and operations in Mexico that are subject to
regulation by the Mexican energy regulatory commission.

Sempra Pipelines & Storage's affiliates have international operations in
Argentina, Chile, Mexico and Peru that are subject to federal, local and
other regulations of the countries and/or political subdivisions in which
they are located. These regulatory bodies include but are not limited to
Mexico's Comision Reguladora de Energia, Argentina's Ente Naal Regulador
de Gas, Chile's Comision Nacional de Energia and Peru's Consejo Nacional
de Energia.

Other subsidiaries are also subject to varying amounts of regulation by
various governments, including various states in the United States.
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Licenses and Permits

The California Utilities obtain numerous permits, authorizations and
licenses in connection with the transmission and distribution of natural
gas and electricity. They require periodic renewal, which results in
continuing regulation by the granting agency.

The company's unregulated affiliates are also required to obtain numerous
permits, authorizations and licenses in the normal course of business.
Some of these permits, authorizations and licenses require periodic
renewal. Sempra Generation and its subsidiaries obtain a number of
permits, authorizations and licenses in connection with the construction
and operation of power generation facilities. In addition, Sempra
Generation obtains permits in connection with wholesale distribution of
electricity. Sempra Pipelines & Storage's Mexican subsidiaries obtain
construction permits for their distribution systems from the local
governments where the service is provided. Sempra Pipelines & Storage and
Sempra Commodities obtain licenses and permits for natural gas storage
facilities. Sempra LNG obtains licenses and permits for construction and
operations of LNG facilities.

Other regulatory matters are described in Notes 14 and 15 of the notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

SOURCES OF REVENUE

Industry segment information is contained in "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and in Note 17
of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Various information
concerning revenue and revenue recognition is provided in Note 1 of the
notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

NATURAL GAS UTILITY OPERATIONS
Resource Planning and Natural Gas Procurement and Transportation

The company is engaged in the purchase, sale, distribution, storage and
transportation of natural gas through the California Utilities. The
company's resource planning, power procurement, contractual commitments
and related regulatory matters are discussed below and in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
and in Notes 15 and 16 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Customers

For regulatory purposes, customers are separated into core and noncore
customers. Core customers are primarily residential and small commercial
and industrial customers, without alternative fuel capability. Noncore
customers consist primarily of electric generation, wholesale, large
commercial, industrial and enhanced oil recovery customers.

Most core customers purchase natural gas directly from the California
Utilities. Core customers are permitted to aggregate their natural gas
requirement and purchase directly from brokers or producers. The
California Utilities continue to be obligated to purchase reliable
supplies of natural gas to serve the requirements of the core customers.
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Natural Gas Procurement and Transportation

Most of the natural gas purchased and delivered by the California
Utilities is produced outside of California, primarily in the
southwestern U.S. and Canada. The California Utilities purchase natural
gas under short-term and long-term contracts. Short-term purchases are
primarily based on monthly spot-market prices.

To ensure the delivery of the natural gas supplies to the distribution
system and to meet the seasonal and annual needs of customers, SoCalGas
is committed to firm pipeline capacity contracts that require the payment
of fixed reservation charges to reserve firm transportation entitlements.
SoCalGas sells excess capacity, if any, on a short-term basis. Interstate
pipeline companies, primarily El Paso Natural Gas Company and
Transwestern Pipeline Company, provide transportation services into
SoCalGas' intrastate transmission system for supplies purchased by
SoCalGas or its transportation customers from outside of California. All
of these contracts will have expired by 2007. The rates that interstate
pipeline companies may charge for natural gas and transportation services
are regulated by the FERC.

SDG&E has long-term natural gas transportation contracts with various
interstate pipelines that expire on various dates between 2005 and 2023.
SDG&E currently purchases natural gas on a spot basis to fill its long-
term pipeline capacity and purchases additional spot market supplies
delivered directly to California for its remaining requirements. SDG&E
continues its ongoing assessment of its pipeline capacity portfolio,
including the release of a portion of this capacity to third parties. In
accordance with regulatory directives, SDG&E will reconfigure its
pipeline capacity portfolio by November 2005 to secure firm
transportation rights from a diverse mix of U.S. and Canadian supply
sources for its projected core customer natural gas requirements. All of
SDG&E's natural gas is delivered through SoCalGas' pipelines under a
short-term transportation agreement. In addition, under a separate
agreement expiring in March 2006, SoCalGas provides SDG&E eight billion
cubic feet of storage capacity.

According to "Btu's Daily Gas Wire", the annual average spot price of
natural gas at the California/Arizona border was $5.53 per million
British thermal unit (mmbtu) in 2004 ($6.35 per mmbtu in December 2004),
compared with $5.10 per mmbtu in 2003 and $3.14 per mmbtu in 2002. Prices
for natural gas increased toward the end of 2002, 2003 and in 2004. The
California Utilities' weighted average cost (including transportation
charges) per mmbtu of natural gas was $5.94 in 2004, $5.06 in 2003 and
$3.12 in 2002.

With improved delivery capacity to California, the company expects
adequate resources to be available at prices that generally will follow
national natural gas pricing trends and volatility.

Natural Gas Storage

SoCalGas provides natural gas storage services for use by the core,

noncore and off-system customers. Core customers are allocated a portion
of SoCalGas storage capacity. Remaining customers, including SDG&E, can
bid and negotiate the desired amount of storage on a contract basis. The
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storage service program provides opportunities for customers to store
natural gas, usually during the summer, to reduce winter purchases when
natural gas costs are generally higher. This allows customers to select
the level of service they desire to assist them in managing their fuel
procurement and transportation needs.

Demand for Natural Gas

The California Utilities face competition in the residential and
commercial customer markets based on the customers' preferences for
natural gas compared with other energy products. The demand for natural
gas by electric generators is influenced by a number of factors. In the
short-term, natural gas use by electric generators is impacted by the
availability of alternative sources of generation. The availability of
hydroelectricity is highly dependent on precipitation in the western
United States. In addition, natural gas use is impacted by the
performance of other generation sources in the western United States,
including nuclear and coal, and other natural gas facilities outside the
service area. Natural gas use is also impacted by changes in end-use
electricity demand. For example, natural gas use generally increases
during summer heat waves. Over the long-term, natural gas use will be
greatly influenced by additional factors such as the location of new
power plant construction. More generation capacity currently is being
constructed outside Southern California than within the California
Utilities' service area. This new generation will likely displace the
output of older, less efficient local generation, reducing use of natural
gas for local electric generation.

Effective March 31, 1998, electric industry restructuring provided out-
of-state producers the option to purchase energy for California utility
customers. As a result, natural gas demand for electric generation within
Southern California competes with electric power generated throughout the
western United States. Although electric industry restructuring has no
direct impact on the California Utilities' natural gas operations, future
volumes of natural gas transported for electric generating plant
customers may be significantly affected to the extent that regulatory
changes divert electric generation from the California Utilities' service
area.

Growth in the natural gas markets is largely dependent upon the health
and expansion of the Southern California economy and prices of other
energy products. External factors such as weather, the price of
electricity, electric deregulation, the use of hydroelectric power,
competing pipelines and general economic conditions can result in
significant shifts in demand and market price. The California Utilities
added 86,000 and 83,000 new natural gas customer meters in 2004 and 2003
respectively, representing growth rates of 1.4 percent in both cases. The
California Utilities expect that their growth rate for 2005 will
approximate that for 2004.

In the interruptible industrial market, customers are capable of burning
a fuel other than natural gas. Fuel oil is the most significant competing
energy alternative. The company's ability to maintain its industrial
market share is largely dependent on price. The relationship between
natural gas supply and demand has the greatest impact on the price of the
company's product. With the reduction of natural gas production from
domestic sources, the cost of natural gas from non-domestic sources may
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play a greater role in the company's competitive position in the future.
The price of oil depends upon a number of factors, including the
relationship between world-wide supply and demand, and the policies of
foreign and domestic governments.

The natural gas distribution business is seasonal in nature as variations
in weather conditions generally result in greater revenues during the
winter months when temperatures are colder. As is prevalent in the
industry, the company injects natural gas into storage during the summer
months (usually April through October) for withdrawal from storage during
the winter months (usually November through March) when customer demand
is higher.

ELECTRIC UTILITY OPERATIONS
Customers

At December 31, 2004, SDG&E had 1.3 million meters consisting of
1,170,000 residential, 139,000 commercial, 460 industrial, 1,940 street
and highway lighting, and 7,700 direct access. The company's service area
covers 4,100 square miles. The company added 22,000 new electric customer
meters in 2004 and 18,000 in 2003, representing growth rates of 1.7% and
1.4% respectively.

Resource Planning and Power Procurement

SDG&E's resource planning, power procurement and related regulatory
matters are discussed below and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and in Notes 14, 15 and
16 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Electric Resources

Based on CPUC-approved purchased-power contracts currently in place with
SDG&E's various suppliers and SDG&E's 20-percent share of a generating
plant, as of December 31, 2004, the supply of electric power available to
SDG&E is as follows:

Megawatts
(MW)
Generation:
SONGS 430 -

Purchased

power
contracts:
Expiration
Supplier
Source date
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Under the contract with PGE, SDG&E pays a capacity charge plus a charge
based on the amount of energy received and/or PGE's non-fuel costs. Costs
under the contracts with QFs are based on SDG&E's avoided cost. Charges
under the remaining contracts are for firm and as-available energy and
are based on the amount of energy received. The prices under these
contracts are at the market value at the time the contracts were
negotiated.

SONGS

SDG&E owns 20 percent of the three nuclear units at SONGS (located south
of San Clemente, California). The cities of Riverside and Anaheim own a
total of 5 percent of Units 2 and 3. Southern California Edison (Edison)
owns the remaining interests and operates the units.

Unit 1 was removed from service in November 1992 when the CPUC issued a
decision to permanently shut it down. Decommissioning of Unit 1 is now in
progress and its spent nuclear fuel is being stored on site.

Units 2 and 3 began commercial operation in August 1983 and April 1984,
respectively. SDG&E's share of the capacity is 214 MW of Unit 2 and 216
MW of Unit 3.

SDG&E had fully recovered its SONGS capital investment through December
31, 2003.

Additional information concerning the SONGS units and nuclear
decommissioning is provided below and in "Environmental Matters" herein,
and in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations"™ and in Notes 7, 14 and 16 of the notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Nuclear Fuel Supply

The nuclear-fuel cycle includes services performed by others under
various contracts through 2008, including mining and milling of uranium
concentrate, conversion of uranium concentrate to uranium hexafluoride,
enrichment services, and fabrication of fuel assemblies.

Spent fuel from SONGS is being stored on site, where storage capacity is
expected to be adequate at least through 2022, the expiration date of the
NRC operating license. Pursuant to the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982,
SDG&E entered into a contract with the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE)
for spent-fuel disposal. Under the agreement, the DOE is responsible for
the ultimate disposal of spent fuel. SDG&E pays a disposal fee of
approximately $1.00 per megawatt-hour of net nuclear generation, or $3
million per year. The DOE projects that it will not begin accepting spent
fuel until 2010 at the earliest.

To the extent not currently provided by the contracts, the availability
and the cost of the various components of the nuclear-fuel cycle for
SDG&E's nuclear facilities cannot be estimated at this time.

Additional information concerning nuclear-fuel costs and the storage and
movement of spent fuel is provided in Notes 16 and 14, respectively, of
the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Power Pools

SDG&E is a participant in the Western Systems Power Pool, which includes
an electric-power and transmission-rate agreement with utilities and
power agencies located throughout the United States and Canada. More than
280 investor-owned and municipal utilities, state and federal power
agencies, energy brokers, and power marketers share power and information
in order to increase efficiency and competition in the bulk power market.
Participants are able to make power transactions on standardized terms
that have been pre-approved by FERC.

Transmission Arrangements

The Pacific Intertie, consisting of AC and DC transmission lines,
connects the Northwest with SDG&E, Pacific Gas & Electric, Edison and
others under an agreement that expires in July 2007. SDG&E's share of the
Pacific Intertie is 266 MW.

SDG&E's 500-kilovolt Southwest Powerlink transmission line, which is
shared with Arizona Public Service Company and Imperial Irrigation
District, extends from Palo Verde, Arizona to San Diego. SDG&E's share of
the line is 970 MW, although it can be less, depending on specific system
conditions.

Mexico's Baja California Norte system is connected to SDG&E's system via
two 230-kilovolt interconnections with firm capability of 408 MW in the
north to south direction and 800 MW in the south to north direction.

Due to electric-industry restructuring, discussed in "Transmission
Access" below, the operating rights of SDG&E on these lines have been
transferred to the Independent System Operator (ISO).

Transmission Access

The FERC has established rules to implement the transmission-access
provisions of the National Energy Policy Act of 1992. These rules specify
procedures for others' requests for transmission service. The FERC
approved the California IOUs' transfer of operation and control of their
transmission facilities to the ISO in 1998. Additional information
regarding the FERC, ISO and transmission issues are provided in Note 15
of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEMPRA GLOBAL

Sempra Global consists of most of the businesses of Sempra Energy other
than the California Utilities, and serves a broad range of customers'
energy and other needs. Sempra Global includes Sempra Commodities, Sempra
Generation, Sempra LNG, Sempra Pipelines & Storage and several smaller
business units. A discussion of each of these business units is provided
below.

Additional information concerning these and other aspects of the
operations of Sempra Global and also of Sempra Financial is provided
under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations" and in Notes 2, 3 and 17 of the notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Sempra Commodities

Sempra Commodities is a wholesale and retail trader of physical and
financial products, including natural gas, power, crude oil and other
commodities, a trader and wholesaler of metals and an owner of synthetic
fuel facilities that generate Section 29 income tax credits. Sempra
Commodities combines trading, risk-management and physical commodity
expertise to provide innovative solutions to its customers worldwide.

Sempra Commodities owns the rights to develop Bluewater Gas Storage, LLC,
a natural gas storage facility in Michigan, and to utilize its capacity
to store natural gas for customers who buy, sell or transport natural gas
in Michigan. The Bluewater Gas Storage facility commenced commercial
operations in May 2004.

During 2002, Sempra Commodities completed acquisitions that added base
metals trading and warehousing to its trading business. In February 2002,
Sempra Commodities completed the acquisition of London-based Sempra
Metals Limited, a leading metals trader on the London Metals Exchange. In
April 2002, Sempra Commodities completed the acquisitions of the assets
of New York-based Sempra Metals & Concentrates Corp., a leading global
trader of copper, lead and zinc concentrates; and of Henry Bath & Sons
Limited, which provides warehousing services for non-ferrous metals in
Europe and Asia; and the assets of the U.S. warehousing business of Henry
Bath, Inc.

Sempra Generation

Sempra Generation primarily acquires, develops and operates power plants
for the competitive market. It also provides energy services and
facilities management, and owns mineral rights in properties that produce
petroleum and natural gas.

In May 2001, Sempra Generation entered into a ten-year agreement with the
DWR to supply up to 1,900 MW of power to California. Sempra Generation
may, but is not obligated to, deliver this electricity from its portfolio
of natural gas-fired plants in the western United States and Baja
California, Mexico. If and when Sempra Generation uses these plants to
supply the entire 1,900 MW, those sales would comprise more than two-
thirds of the plants' capacity. Subsequent to the state's signing of
this contract and electricity-supply contracts with other vendors,
various state officials have contended that the rates called for by the
contracts are too high. Based on current natural gas prices, the price of
power under the long-term contracts exceeds the current spot market price
for electricity. Although the contract is subject to ongoing litigation
and regulatory proceedings, both Sempra Generation and the State of
California are performing under this contract. Information concerning
litigation regarding this contract, the FERC's orders upholding this
contract and the pending appeal is provided in Note 16 of the notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In July 2004, Topaz Power Partners (Topaz), a 50/50 joint venture between
Sempra Energy Partners and Carlyle/Riverstone, acquired ten Texas power
plants from American Electric Power (AEP), including the 632-MW coal-
fired Coleto Creek Power Station. The transaction included the
acquisition of six operating power plants with generating capacity of
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1,950 MW and four inactive power plants capable of generating 1,863 MW.
Topaz has entered into several power sales agreements for 572 MW of
Coleto Creek Power Station's capacity. This is discussed further in Note
3 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2003, Sempra Generation obtained approvals by the California
Energy Commission for the company's 550 MW Palomar power plant in
Escondido, California. In June 2004, SDG&E received CPUC approval of its
plans to purchase the Palomar plant from Sempra Generation after
construction is completed in 2006. Construction of the project began in
July 2004.

The 1,250 MW Mesquite Power plant, located near Phoenix, Arizona,
provides electricity to wholesale energy markets in the Southwest. The
first phase of commercial operations (50 percent of the plant's total
capacity) began in June 2003 and the second phase of commercial
operations (the remaining 50 percent) began in December 2003. Further
discussion of this is provided under "New Accounting Standards" in Note 1
of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

During 2003, construction was completed on Termoelectrica de Mexicali
(TDM), a 625 MW power plant near Mexicali, and the Elk Hills Power
Project (Elk Hills), both of which commenced commercial operations in
July 2003. TDM and Elk Hills are discussed further in Note 2 and Note 3,
respectively, of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In October 2002, Sempra Generation purchased the 305 MW, coal-fired Twin
Oaks power plant for $120 million. Sempra Generation sells substantially
all of the output of the plant under a five-year contract expiring on
October 1, 2007. In connection with the acquisition, Sempra Generation
also assumed a contract that includes annual commitments to purchase
lignite coal for the plant until an aggregate minimum volume has been
achieved or through 2025.

Sempra LNG

Sempra LNG is developing receipt terminals for LNG and supplies natural
gas to Mexico's state-owned electric utility.

In January 2005, Sempra LNG was awarded a 1l5-year natural gas supply
contract by Mexico's state-owned electric utility, Comision Federal de
Electricidad (CFE). The contract is estimated at $1.4 billion over its
life and supports the CFE's future energy needs in northern Baja
California, including the Presidente Juarez power plant in Rosarito, and
it is anticipated that it will use natural gas processed at Energia Costa
Azul. Starting in 2008 and running through 2022, the agreement provides
the CFE with an average of about 130 million cubic feet per day of
natural gas.

In October 2004, Sempra LNG signed a sale and purchase agreement with
British Petroleum for the supply of 500 million cubic feet of gas a day
from Indonesia's Tangguh liquefaction facility to Sempra LNG's Energia
Costa Azul regasification terminal. The terminal is expected to cost
between $900 million and $1 billion, including related pipeline costs.
The 20-year agreement provides for pricing tied to the Southern
California border index for natural gas and will supply half the capacity
of Energia Costa Azul.
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Also in October 2004, Sempra LNG entered into an agreement with Shell
International Gas Limited (Shell) by which Shell has contracted to
purchase half of the initial capacity of Energia Costa Azul for an
initial period of 20 years. In December 2004, Sempra LNG entered into two
additional contracts: one for the construction of the terminal and one
for the construction of the project's breakwater.

In April 2004, Sempra LNG announced plans to develop and construct a new
$600 million LNG receiving terminal near Port Arthur, Texas. The terminal
would be capable of processing 1.5 billion cubic feet (bcf) of natural
gas per day and could be expanded to 3 bcf per day. The company is
currently in the process of obtaining FERC approval for the construction
of the terminal. The project is expected to begin construction in 2006
with start-up slated for 2009

In April 2003, Sempra LNG completed its acquisition of the proposed
Cameron LNG project in Hackberry, Louisiana from a subsidiary of Dynegy,
Inc. The total cost of the project is expected to be $700 million. The
terminal is currently designed to supply 1.5 bcf of natural gas per day.
The FERC approved the construction and operation of the project in
September 2003. Construction is expected to begin in 2005 and commercial
operations are expected to begin in 2008.

Additional discussion concerning these projects is provided in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations" and in Notes 2 and 16 of the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Sempra Pipelines & Storage

Sempra Pipelines & Storage engages in energy-infrastructure projects in
North and South America. It holds interests in companies that provide
natural gas or electricity services to over 2.8 million customers in
Argentina, Chile, Mexico and Peru; develops natural gas storage
facilities; and owns two small natural gas distribution utilities in the
eastern United States.

In July 2004, the company acquired the rights to develop a salt-cavern
natural gas storage facility located in Calcasieu Parish, Louisiana. This
facility, operating as Liberty Gas Storage (Liberty) is expected to have
capacity of 17 bcf. Liberty is estimated to cost $150 million and to
begin operation in 2006.

In April 2004, the company acquired land and associated rights for the
development of a salt-cavern natural gas storage facility in Evangeline
Parish, Louisiana. This facility, operating as the Pine Prairie Energy
Center, will consist of three salt caverns with a total capacity of 24
bcf of natural gas and is expected to cost $175 million and to begin
operations in 2006. The company is negotiating contracts to sell the
capacity of this facility. FERC has issued a certificate of public
convenience and necessity for the project and authorized Pine Prairie to
charge market-based rates.

Also in April 2004, Sempra Pipelines & Storage and PSEG sold a portion of
their interests in Luz del Sur S.A.A. (Luz Del Sur), a Peruvian electric
utility. Each party had a 44-percent interest in Luz del Sur prior to the
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sale and a 38-percent interest after the sale was completed. Sempra
Pipelines & Storage recognized an after-tax gain of $5 million as a
result of the sale.

During the third quarter of 2003, Sempra Pipelines & Storage recorded a

$77 million before-tax write-down of the carrying value of the assets of
Frontier Energy, a small North Carolina utility subsidiary, as a result

of reductions in actual and previously anticipated sales of natural gas

by the utility.

Sempra Pipelines & Storage's Mexican subsidiaries build and operate
natural gas distribution systems in Mexicali, Chihuahua and the La
Laguna-Durango zone in north-central Mexico. In February 2003, Sempra
Pipelines & Storage purchased the remaining minority interests in its
Mexican subsidiaries.

In 2002, Sempra Pipelines & Storage completed construction of the 140-
mile Gasoducto Bajanorte Pipeline that connects the Rosarito Pipeline
south of Tijuana, Mexico with a TransCanada pipeline that connects to
Arizona. Sempra Pipelines & Storage continues to incur costs for the
development of a spur line connecting the Energia Costa Azul terminal to
Gasoducto Bajanorte and for the expansion of the pipeline.

Additional discussion concerning these projects is provided in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations" and in Notes 2, 3 and 16 of the notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Sempra Financial

Sempra Financial invests as a limited partner in affordable-housing
properties. Its portfolio includes 1,300 properties throughout the U.S.
that are expected to provide income tax benefits (primarily from income
tax credits) over 10-year periods.

In July 2004, Sempra Financial sold its investment in an enterprise that
earns Section 29 income tax credits. That investment comprised one-third
of Sempra Energy's Section 29 participation, the rest being held by
Sempra Commodities, and was sold because the company's alternative
minimum tax position defers utilization of the credits in the
determination of income taxes currently payable. The transaction has been
accounted for under the cost-recovery method, whereby future proceeds in
excess of the carrying value of the investment will be recorded as income
when they are received. As a result of this sale, Sempra Financial will
not be receiving Section 29 income tax credits in the future.

RATES AND REGULATION -- CALIFORNIA UTILITIES

Information concerning rates and regulations applicable to the California
Utilities is provided in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and in Notes 1, 14 and 15
of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Discussions about environmental issues affecting the company are included
in Note 16 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The
following additional information should be read in conjunction with those
discussions.

Hazardous Substances

In 1994, the CPUC approved the Hazardous Waste Collaborative Memorandum
account, allowing California's IOUs to recover their hazardous waste
cleanup costs, including those related to Superfund sites or similar
sites requiring cleanup. Cleanup costs at sites related to electric
generation were specifically excluded from the collaborative by the CPUC.
Recovery of 90 percent of hazardous waste cleanup costs and related
third-party litigation costs, and 70 percent of the related insurance-
litigation expenses is permitted. In addition, the company has the
opportunity to retain a percentage of any insurance recoveries to offset
the 10 percent of costs not recovered in rates.

During the early 1900s, the California Utilities and their predecessors
manufactured gas from coal or oil. The manufactured-gas plants (MGPs)
often have become contaminated with the hazardous residual by-products of
the process. SoCalGas has identified 42 such sites at which it (together
with other users as to 21 of these sites) may have cleanup obligations.
At a minimum, preliminary investigations have been completed on 41 of the
sites. As of December 31, 2004, 27 of these sites have been remediated,
of which 22 have received certification from the California Environmental
Protection Agency. At December 31, 2004, SoCalGas' estimated remaining
investigation and remediation liability for the MGPs is $40.5 million.
SDG&E identified three former MGPs, two of which were remediated in 1998
and 2000, with closure letters being received. The estimated remaining
remediation liability on the third site is $1.8 million.

SDG&E sold its fossil-fuel generating facilities in 1999. As a part of
its due diligence for the sale, SDG&E conducted a thorough environmental
assessment of the facilities. Pursuant to the sale agreements for such
facilities, SDG&E and the buyers have apportioned responsibility for such
environmental conditions generally based on contamination existing at the
time of transfer and the cleanup level necessary for the continued use of
the sites as industrial sites. While the sites are relatively clean, the
assessments identified some instances of significant contamination,
principally resulting from hydrocarbon releases, for which SDG&E has a
cleanup obligation under the agreement. Estimated costs to perform the
necessary remediation are $11 million. These costs were offset against
the sales price for the facilities, together with other appropriate
costs, and the remaining net proceeds were included in the calculation of
customer rates. Remediation of the plants commenced in early 2001. During
2002, cleanup was completed at several minor sites at a cost of $0.4
million. In late 2002, additional assessments were started at the primary
sites, where cleanup commenced in 2003 and is expected to be completed
during 2005. In 2003, cleanup was completed at the Encina power plant
site at a cost of $0.8 million. In 2004, cleanup was completed at two
combustion turbine sites at a cost of $0.7 million.

The California Utilities lawfully dispose of wastes at permitted
facilities owned and operated by other entities. Operations at these
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facilities may result in actual or threatened risks to the environment or
public health. Under California law, businesses that arrange for legal
disposal of wastes at a permitted facility from which wastes are later
released, or threaten to be released, can be held financially responsible
for corrective actions at the facility.

The company and certain subsidiaries are named as potentially responsible
parties (PRPs) for one landfill site and two industrial waste disposal
sites, from which releases have occurred.

Remedial actions and negotiations with other PRPs and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency have been in progress since 1993 for the
Casmalia landfill site. The company's share of costs to remediate this
site is estimated to be $1.3 million, of which $0.9 million has been
spent.

In December 1999, SoCalGas was notified that it is a PRP at a waste
treatment facility in Bakersfield, California. SoCalGas is working with
other PRPs in order to remove from the site certain liquid wastes that
threaten to be released. SoCalGas' share of total site cleanup costs is
estimated at $0.7 million, of which $0.2 million has been spent.

The company and 10 other entities have been named PRPs by the Department
of Toxic Substance Control (DTSC) as liable for any required corrective
action regarding contamination at an industrial waste disposal site in
Pico Rivera, California. DTSC has taken this action because SDG&E and
others sold used transformers to the site's owner. SDG&E and the other
PRPs have entered into a cost-sharing agreement to provide funding for
the implementation of a consent order between DTSC and the site owner for
the development of a cleanup plan. SDG&E's interim share under the
agreement is 10 percent, subject to adjustment based on allocations of
responsibility. The total estimate for all PRPs is $1 million for the
development of the cleanup plan and $2 million to $8 million for the
actual cleanup. Since inception, SDG&E's share of the cleanup expenses
and plan development was $0.2 million. Cleanup is expected to commence in
2005.

At December 31, 2004, the company's estimated remaining investigation and
remediation liability related to hazardous waste sites, including the
MGPs, was $44.6 million, of which 90 percent is authorized to be
recovered through the Hazardous Waste Collaborative mechanism. This
estimated cost excludes remediation costs associated with SDG&E's former
fossil-fuel power plants. The company believes that any costs not
ultimately recovered through rates, insurance or other means will not
have a material adverse effect on the company's consolidated results of
operations or financial position.

Estimated liabilities for environmental remediation are recorded when
amounts are probable and estimable. Amounts authorized to be recovered in
rates under the Hazardous Waste Collaborative mechanism are recorded as a
regulatory asset.

Electric and Magnetic Fields (EMFs
Although scientists continue to research the possibility that exposure to

EMFs causes adverse health effects, science has not demonstrated a cause-
and-effect relationship between exposure to the type of EMFs emitted by
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power lines and other electrical facilities and adverse health effects.
Some laboratory studies suggest that such exposure creates biological
effects, but those effects have not been shown to be harmful. The studies
that have most concerned the public are epidemiological studies, some of
which have reported a weak correlation between the proximity of homes to
certain power lines and equipment and childhood leukemia. Other
epidemiological studies found no correlation between estimated exposure
and any disease. Scientists cannot explain why some studies using
estimates of past exposure report correlations between estimated EMF
levels and disease, while others do not.

To respond to public concerns, the CPUC has directed California IOUs to
adopt a low-cost EMF-reduction policy that requires reasonable design
changes to achieve noticeable reduction of EMF levels that are
anticipated from new projects. However, consistent with the major
scientific reviews of the available research literature, the CPUC has
indicated that no health risk has been identified. During 2004, the CPUC
instituted a rulemaking to re-examine its policies related to EMFs and
determine whether the current mitigation policies and utility directives
should be updated in light of science that has developed over the last
decade.

Air and Water Quality

California's air quality standards are more restrictive than federal
standards. However, as a result of the sale of the company's fossil-fuel
generating facilities, the company's primary air-quality issue,
compliance with these standards now has had less significance to the
company's operation. That is changing as Sempra Generation operates more
generating facilities.

The transmission and distribution of natural gas require the operation of
compressor stations, which are subject to increasingly stringent air-
quality standards. Costs to comply with these standards are recovered in
rates.

In connection with the issuance of operating permits, SDG&E and the other
owners of SONGS previously reached agreement with the California Coastal
Commission to mitigate the environmental damage to the marine environment
attributed to the cooling-water discharge from SONGS Units 2 and 3. This
mitigation program includes an enhanced fish-protection system, a 150-
acre artificial kelp reef and restoration of 150 acres of coastal
wetlands. In addition, the owners must deposit $3.6 million with the
state for the enhancement of fish hatchery programs and pay for
monitoring and oversight of the mitigation projects. SDG&E's share of the
cost is estimated to be $34 million. These mitigation projects are
expected to be completed in 2008. Through December 31, 2003, SONGS
mitigation costs were recovered through the Incremental Cost Incentive
Pricing mechanism. SONGS mitigation costs incurred after December 31,
2003, are being capitalized and recovered from ratepayers over the
remaining life of the SONGS units, subject to CPUC approval in the Edison
rate case. Additional information on SONGS cost recovery is provided in
Note 14 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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OTHER MATTERS
Research, Development and Demonstration (RD&D

The SoCalGas RD&D portfolio is focused in five major areas: operations,
utilization systems, power generation, public interest and
transportation. Each of these activities provides benefits to customers
and society by providing more cost-effective, efficient natural gas
equipment with lower emissions, increased safety and reduced operating
costs. The CPUC has authorized SoCalGas to recover its operating costs
associated with RD&D. SoCalGas' annual RD&D costs have averaged $8.2
million over the past three years.

For 2004, the CPUC authorized SDG&E to fund $1.2 million and $5.7 million
for its natural gas and electric RD&D programs, respectively, including
$5.7 million to the CEC for its PIER (Public Interest Energy Research)
Program. SDG&E's annual RD&D costs have averaged $6.5 million over the
past three years.

Employees of Registrant

As of December 31, 2004, the company had 13,381 employees, compared to
12,807 at December 31, 2003.

Labor Relations

Field, technical and most clerical employees at SoCalGas are represented
by the Utility Workers' Union of America (UWUA) or the International
Chemical Workers' Union Council (ICWUC). The collective bargaining
agreement for field, technical and most clerical employees at SoCalGas
covering wages, hours, working conditions, medical and various benefit
plans was in effect through December 31, 2004. SoCalGas has signed with
UWUA and ICWUC a new collective bargaining agreement that will be in
effect from January 1, 2005 through September 30, 2008.

Certain employees at SDG&E are represented by the Local 465 International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers. The current contract is in effect
through August 31, 2008.

At some of its field job sites, Sempra Generation employs mechanics who
are represented by the International Union of Operating Engineers, Local
501. One collective bargaining agreement is through November 1, 2006, and
the other through July 7, 2007.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Electric Properties - SDG&E

SDG&E's interest in SONGS is described in "Electric Resources" herein. At
December 31, 2004, SDG&E's electric transmission and distribution
facilities included substations, and overhead and underground lines. The
electric facilities are located in San Diego, Imperial and Orange
counties and in Arizona, and consist of 1,814 miles of transmission lines
and 21,433 miles of distribution lines. Periodically, various areas of
the service territory require expansion to accommodate customer growth.
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Natural Gas Properties - California Utilities

At December 31, 2004, the California Utilities' natural gas facilities
included 2,996 miles of transmission and storage pipeline, 55,276 miles
of distribution pipeline and 52,109 miles of service piping. They also
included 13 transmission compressor stations and 4 underground storage
reservoirs, with a combined working capacity of 122 bcf.

Energy Properties - Other

At December 31, 2004, Sempra Generation operated power plants in
California, Arizona, Texas, Nevada and Mexico with total capacity of
3,670 MW. Additional information is provided in Notes 2 and 3 of the
notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2004, Sempra Pipelines & Storage's operations in Mexico
included 1,704 miles of distribution pipeline, 165 miles of transmission
pipeline and one compressor station.

At December 31, 2004, the company's two small natural gas utilities,
Frontier Energy and Bangor Gas, located in North Carolina and Maine,
respectively, owned 147 miles of transmission lines and 230 miles of
distribution lines.

Other Properties

The 21-story corporate headquarters building at 101 Ash Street, San Diego
is occupied pursuant to a capital lease that expires in 2015. The lease
has two separate five-year renewal options.

SoCalGas leases approximately half of a 52-story office building in
downtown Los Angeles through 2011. The lease has six separate five-year
renewal options.

SDG&E occupies an office complex in San Diego pursuant to an operating
lease ending in 2007. The lease can be renewed for two five-year periods.

Sempra Global leases office facilities at various locations in the U.S.,
Mexico and Europe with the leases ending from 2005 to 2027. Sempra LNG
owns land to develop an LNG receiving terminal in Baja California,
Mexico. Sempra LNG also has a land lease to develop an LNG receiving
terminal in Hackberry, Louisiana. In December 2004, Sempra LNG renewed
the land lease for another five-year period. In April 2004, the company
acquired land and associated rights to develop a natural gas storage
facility in Evangeline Parish, Louisiana that is part of Sempra Pipelines
& Storage. In addition, Sempra Commodities owns the rights to develop a
natural gas storage facility in St. Clair, Michigan.

The company owns or leases other offices, operating and maintenance
centers, shops, service facilities and equipment necessary in the conduct
of its business.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

SDG&E and the County of San Diego are continuing to negotiate the
remaining terms of a settlement relating to alleged environmental law
violations by SDG&E and its contractors in connection with the abatement
of asbestos-containing materials during the demolition of a natural gas
storage facility in 2001. SDG&E expects that any settlement with the
County would involve payments by SDG&E of less than $750,000. In January
2005, Sempra Energy and SDG&E received a grand jury subpoena from the
United States Attorney's Office in San Diego seeking documents related to
this matter. The companies are fully cooperating with the investigation.

Except for the matters described above, in "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and in Notes
14, 15 and 16 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, neither
the company nor its subsidiaries are party to, nor is their property the
subject of, any material pending legal proceedings other than routine
litigation incidental to their businesses.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Sempra Energy common stock is traded on the New York and Pacific stock
exchanges. In addition to the shares held by intermediaries, there were
57,000 holders of record of the company's common stock at January 31,
2005. The quarterly common stock information required by Item 5 is
included in the schedule of Quarterly Financial Data of the 2004 Annual
Report to Shareholders.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The company's 1998 Long Term Incentive Plan and Employee Stock Incentive
Plan permit the compensation committee of the board of directors to grant
to officers and key employees a wide variety of equity and equity-based
incentive awards relating to common stock. At December 31, 2004,
outstanding awards consisted of stock options and restricted stock held
by 344 employees.

The company's Non-employee Directors Stock Plan also provides for annual
automatic grants to non-employee directors of options to purchase common
stock.
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The following table sets forth information regarding these plans at
December 31, 2004.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Weighted- Number of
shares to average additional
be issued upon exercise shares
exercise of price of remaining
outstanding outstanding available for
options (A) options future issuance
Equity compensation
plans approved by
shareholders:
1998 Long Term
Incentive Plan 11,998,342 $ 23.92 5,321,240
(B) (C) (D)
Non-employee Directors
Stock Plan 570,000 $ 25.54 876,360
Equity compensation
plans not approved by
shareholders:
Employee Stock
Incentive Plan 506,375 $ 24.38 8,161,030
(B) (C)

(A) Consists solely of options to purchase common stock, all of which
were granted at an exercise price of 100% of the grant date fair

market value of the shares subject to the option.

(B) Excludes shares subject to outstanding stock options and those
subject to other outstanding awards, consisting of unvested

shares of restricted stock which total 2,051,800 shares for the

1998 Long Term Incentive Plan and 767,900 shares for the Employee

Stock Incentive Plan.

(C) The number of shares available for future issuance is increased
by the number of shares received in payment of the exercise price

or withheld to satisfy related tax withholding obligations

relating to awards and by the number of shares subject to awards

that lapse, expire or are otherwise terminated or settled other

than by the issuance of shares.

(D) The number of shares available for future issuance also is
increased at the beginning of each year by 1.5% of the total

number of shares of common stock then outstanding.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Dollars in
millions,
except per
share data)
At December
31, or for
the years
then ended -

—————— 2004
2003 2002
2001 2000 ---



This data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information required by Item 7 is incorporated by reference from
pages 1 through 32 of the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required by Item 7A is incorporated by reference from
pages 24 through 27 of the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by Item 8 is incorporated by reference from
pages 37 through 112 of the 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders. Item
15(a)l includes a listing of financial statements included in the 2004
Annual Report to Shareholders.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures - Management has
established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the company and its consolidated subsidiaries
is made known to the officers who certify the company's financial
reports and to other members of senior management and the Board of
Directors. In designing and evaluating these controls and procedures,
management recognizes that any system of controls and procedures, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired objectives and necessarily applies
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of other possible
controls and procedures.

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2004, the principal
executive officer and principal financial officer of the company have
concluded that the company's disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934) are effective, at the reasonable assurance level, to
ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the company in
the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified by SEC rules and forms.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting -
Company management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of company management, including the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, the company conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on the company's evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework, management
concluded that the company's internal control over financial reporting
was effective as of December 31, 2004. Management's assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 has been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report,
which is included herein.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

In February 2005, Sempra Energy entered into a severance pay agreement
with each of its executive officers (other than Stephen L. Baum, Donald
E. Felsinger and Neal E. Schmale whose continuing employment and
employment-related agreements have been previously filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission) to replace the previously reported
agreements. The agreements are for an initial term of three years and
are subject to automatic one year extensions on each anniversary of the
effective date (commencing with the second anniversary) unless Sempra
Energy or the executive elects not to extend the term.

The agreements provide severance benefits to the executive in the event
that Sempra Energy or its subsidiaries terminates the executive's
employment (other than for cause, death or disability) or the executive
does so for good reason.

Severance benefits under the agreements vary with the executive's
position and include (i) a lump sum cash severance payment varying from
50% to 100% of the sum of the executive's annual base salary plus the
greater of the executive's average annual bonus or average annual
target bonus for the two years prior to termination; (ii) continuation
of health insurance benefits for a period varying from six months to
one year; and (iii) financial planning and outplacement services for a
period varying from 18 months to two years. If the termination were to
occur within two years after a change in control of the company, (i)
the lump sum cash severance payment would be multiplied by two; (ii) an
additional lump sum payment would be paid equal to the pro rata portion
for the year of termination of the target amount payable under any
annual incentive compensation award for that year or, if greater, the
average of the three highest gross annual bonus awards paid to the
executive in the five years preceding the year of termination; (iii

all equity-based incentive compensation awards would immediately vest
and become exercisable or payable and any restrictions on the awards
would automatically lapse; (iv) a lump sum cash payment would be made
equal to the present value of the executive's benefits under
supplemental executive retirement plans calculated on the basis of the
greater of actual years of service or years of service that would have
been completed upon attaining age 62 and applying certain early
retirement factors; (v) life, disability, accident and health insurance
benefits would be continued for a period varying from one year to two
years; and (vi) financial planning and outplacement services would be
provided for a period varying from two years to three years.

The agreements also provide that if the terminated executive agrees to
provide consulting services for two years and abide by certain
covenants regarding non-solicitation of employees and information
confidentiality, the executive would receive (i) an additional lump sum
payment equal to the executive's annual base salary and the greater of
the executive's target bonus for the year of termination or the average
of the two or three highest gross annual bonus awards paid to the
executive in the five years prior to termination and (ii) health
insurance benefits would be continued for an additional one year.
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The agreements also provide for a gross-up payment to offset the
effects of any excise tax imposed on the executive under Section 4999
of the Internal Revenue Code.

Good reason is defined in the agreements to include the assignment to
the executive of duties materially inconsistent with those appropriate
to a senior executive of Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries; a material
reduction in the executive's overall standing and responsibilities
within Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries; and a material reduction in
the executive's annualized compensation and benefit opportunities other
than across-the-board reductions affecting all similarly situated
executives of comparable rank. Following a change in control, good
reason is defined to include an adverse change in the executive's
title, authority, duties, responsibilities or reporting lines;
reduction in the executive's annualized compensation opportunities
other than across-the-board reductions of less than 10% similarly
affecting all similarly situated executives of comparable rank;
relocation of the executive's principal place of employment by more
than 30 miles; and a substantial increase in business travel
obligations. A change in control is defined to include the acquisition
by one person or group of 20% or more of the voting power of Sempra
Energy's shares; the election of a new majority of the board of Sempra
Energy comprised of individuals who are not recommended for election by
two-thirds of the current directors or successors to the current
directors who were so recommended for election; certain mergers,
consolidations or sales of assets that result in the shareholders of
Sempra Energy owning less than 60% of the voting power of Sempra Energy
or of the surviving entity or its parent; and approval by shareholders
of the liquidation or dissolution of the company.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required on Identification of Directors is incorporated
by reference from "Election of Directors" in the Proxy Statement
prepared for the April 2005 annual meeting of shareholders. The
information required on the company's executive officers is provided
below.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Age* Position

Stephen L. Baum 63 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Donald E. Felsinger 57 President and Chief Operating Officer

Edwin A. Guiles 55 Group President, Sempra Energy
Utilities

Mark A. Snell 48 Group President, Sempra Global
Enterprises

M. Javade Chaudhri 52 Executive Vice President and General
Counsel

Neal E. Schmale 58 Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer
Frank H. Ault 60 Senior Vice President and Controller
G. Joyce Rowland 50 Senior Vice President, Human Resources
* As of December 31, 2004.

Each Executive Officer has been an officer of the company or one of its
subsidiaries for more than five years, with the exception of Mr.
Chaudhri. Prior to joining the company in 2003, Mr. Chaudhri was Senio
Vice President and General Counsel of Gateway, Inc.

In June 2004, the company announced a succession plan whereby Donald E.
Felsinger became president and chief operating officer, effective June
2004, and will become chairman and chief executive officer in January
2006, when Steven L. Baum retires. At that time, Neal E. Schmale,
currently the company's chief financial officer, will become president
and chief operating officer.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference from

"Election of Directors" and "Executive Compensation" in the Proxy
Statement prepared for the April 2005 annual meeting of shareholders.

r

9,
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity
compensation plans is set forth in Item 5 herein.

Additional discussion of stock-based compensation is provided in Note 10
of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The security ownership information required by Item 12 is incorporated by
reference from "Share Ownership" in the Proxy Statement prepared for the

April 2005 annual meeting of shareholders.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

None.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services as required

by Item 14 is incorporated by reference from "Proposal 3: Ratification of

Independent Auditors" in the Proxy Statement prepared for the April 2005
annual meeting of shareholders.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:
1. Financial statements
Page in
Annual Report*

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements . . . 33

Management's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . 34

Statements of Consolidated Income for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . 37

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31,
2004 and 2003. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .38

Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . 40

Statements of Consolidated Changes in
Shareholders' Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . 42

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . 43

*Incorporated by reference from the indicated pages of the 2004
Annual Report to Shareholders.

2. Financial statement schedules

The following document may be found in this report at the indicated page
number .

Schedule I--Condensed Financial Information of Parent. . . 44

Any other schedules for which provision is made in Regulation S-X are not
required under the instructions contained therein or are inapplicable.
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3. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index on page 49 of this report.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The following reports on Form 8-K were filed after September 30, 2004:

Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 27, 2004, discussing the
current status of the California Utilities' Cost of Service Proceedings
and the Border Price Investigation.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 4, 2004, filing as an exhibit
Sempra Energy's press release of November 4, 2004, giving the financial
results for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 5, 2004, discussing the
current status of the California Utilities' Cost of Service
Proceedings, including a proposed decision and an alternate proposed
decision issued by CPUC commissioners on November 4, 2004.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 17, 2004, discussing the
current status of the Border Price Investigation, including the
proposed decision issued by the CPUC Administrative Law Judge on
November 16, 2004.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 3, 2004, discussing the
current status of the California Utilities' Cost of Service
Proceedings, including the CPUC decision issued on December 2, 2004.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2004, discussing and
filing as an exhibit the 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan and announcing
the impending retirement of directors Hyla H. Bertea and Herbert L.
Carter.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17, 2004, discussing the
Sempra Energy/Sempra Energy LNG $1.25 billion five-year credit
agreement and discussing the current status of the Border Price
Investigation.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 11, 2005, discussing the
current status of energy crisis litigation.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 18, 2005, discussing the
current status of energy crisis litigation.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 8, 2005, announcing that
Sempra Energy had raised its earnings-per-share estimate for 2004 to
approximately $3.80, from its previous guidance of $3.15 to $3.25
filing as an exhibit Sempra Energy's press release of February 8, 2005.

Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 23, 2005, filing as an
exhibit Sempra Energy's press release of February 23, 2005, giving the
financial results for the three months ended December 31, 2004.
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM AND REPORT ON
SCHEDULES

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Sempra Energy:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement
Numbers 333-51309, 333-52192, 333-70640 and 333-103588 on Form S-3 and
Registration Statement Numbers 333-56161, 333-50806, 333-49732 and 333-
121073 on Form S-8 of Sempra Energy of our reports dated February 22,
2005 (which reports express an unqualified opinion and include an
explanatory paragraph relating to the Company's adoption of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations, effective January 1, 2003, and Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities an Interpretation of ARB No. 51, effective
December 31, 2003) relating to the financial statements of Sempra
Energy and management's report on the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting, incorporated by reference in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K of Sempra Energy for the year ended December 31,
2004.

Our audits of the financial statements referred to in our
aforementioned report also included the financial statement schedule of
Sempra Energy, listed in Item 15. This financial statement schedule is
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion based on our audits. In our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

/S/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Diego, California
February 22, 2005
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Schedule I -- CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF PARENT

Years ended
December 31,
2004 2003
2002 -------

SEMPRA ENERGY

Condensed Statements of Income

(Dollars in millions,

except per share amounts)
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December 31,
2004 2003 --

SEMPRA ENERGY

Condensed Balance Sheets
(Dollars in millions)
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SEMPRA ENERGY

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(Dollars in millions)
Years ended
December 31, 2004
2003 2002
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SEMPRA ENERGY
Note to Condensed Financial Statements

Long-term Debt

December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2004 2003

Other long-term debt
5.60% equity units May 17, 2007* $ 600 $ 600
7.95% notes March 1, 2010 200 500
Notes at variable rates after
fixed-to-floating swap March 1, 2010

(5.97% at December 31, 2004) 300 -
6.95% notes December 1, 2005 300 300
6.0% notes due February 1, 2013 400 400
4.75% notes due May 15, 2009 300 -
Notes at variable rates (2.82% at

December 31, 2004) May 21, 2008 300 --
Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Bonds at 4.213% November 1, 2014 82 82

Bonds at variable rates (3.00% at

December 31, 2004) November 1, 2014 33 19
Notes payable at variable rates after a

fixed-to-floating rate swap July 1, 2004 - 500
Capitalized leases 1 3
Market value adjustments for interest

rate swaps - net (expires March 1, 2010) 11 23

Total 2,527 2,427

Less:
Current portion of long-term debt (301) (525
Unamortized discount on long-term debt (2) (2
Total $2,224 $1,900

Excluding capital leases and market value adjustments for interest-rate
swaps, maturities of long-term debt are $300 million in 2005, $600
million in 2007, $300 million in 2008, $300 million 2009 and $1 billion
thereafter.

Additional information on Sempra Energy's long-term debt is provided in
Note 6 of the notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, hereunto duly authorized.

SEMPRA ENERGY

By: /s/ Stephen L. Baum

Stephen L. Baum
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report is signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name/Title
Signature
Date

retoad
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The Forms 8, 8-B/A, 8-K, S-4, 10-K and 10-Q referred to herein were
filed under Commission File Number 1-14201 (Sempra Energy), Commission
File Number 1-40 (Pacific Enterprises), Commission File Number 1-3779
(San Diego Gas & Electric), Commission File Number 1-1402 (Southern
California Gas Company), Commission File Number 1-11439 (Enova
Corporation) and/or Commission File Number 333-30761 (SDG&E Funding
LLC) .

3.a The following exhibits relate to Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries
Exhibit 1 -- Underwriting Agreements

1.01 Underwriting Agreement dated December 4, 1997 (Incorporated by
reference from Form 8-K filed by SDG&E Funding LLC on
December 23, 1997, Exhibit 1.1).

Exhibit 3 -- Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation

Bylaws

Sempra Energy

3.01 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sempra Energy effective May 26
1998 (Incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement
on Form S-8 Sempra Energy Registration No. 333-56161 dated June
5, 1998 (Exhibit 3.2)).

Articles of Incorporation

Sempra Energy

3.02 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Sempra Energy
(Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form

S-3 File No. 333-51309 dated April 29, 1998, Exhibit 3.1).

Exhibit 4 -- Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders,
Including Indentures

The company agrees to furnish a copy of each such instrument to the
Commission upon request.

Enova Corporation and San Diego Gas & Electric Company

4.01 Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940. (Incorporated
by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 2-49810, Exhibit 2A.)

4.02 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 1, 1948.
(Incorporated by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 2-49810

Exhibit 2C.)

4.03 Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 1, 1968.
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4.07

(Incorporated by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 2-68420
Exhibit 2D.)

Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1968.
(Incorporated by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 2-36042,
Exhibit 2K.)

Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture dated August 28, 1975.
(Incorporated by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 2-68420,
Exhibit 2E.)

Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture dated September 28, 1983.
(Incorporated by reference from SDG&E Registration No. 33-34017,
Exhibit 4.3.)

Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated June 1, 2004.

Pacific Enterprises and Southern California Gas

First Mortgage Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
American Trust Company dated as of October 1, 1940 (Registration
Statement No. 2-4504 filed by Southern California Gas Company on
September 16, 1940, Exhibit B-4).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
American Trust Company dated as of July 1, 1947 (Registration
Statement No. 2-7072 filed by Southern California Gas Company on
March 15, 1947, Exhibit B-5).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
American Trust Company dated as of August 1, 1955 (Registration
Statement No. 2-11997 filed by Pacific Lighting Corporation on
October 26, 1955, Exhibit 4.07).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
American Trust Company dated as of June 1, 1956 (Registration
Statement No. 2-12456 filed by Southern California Gas Company on
April 23, 1956, Exhibit 2.08).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association dated as of August 1, 1972
(Registration Statement No. 2-59832 filed by Southern California
Gas Company on September 6, 1977, Exhibit 2.19).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association dated as of May 1, 1976
(Registration Statement No. 2-56034 filed by Southern California
Gas Company on April 14, 1976, Exhibit 2.20).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association dated as of September 15,
1981 (Pacific Enterprises 1981 Form 10-K, Exhibit 4.25).

Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
Manufacturers Hanover Trust Company of California, successor to
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and Crocker National Bank
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4.16 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
Bankers Trust Company of California, N.A., successor to Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association dated as of January 15, 1988
(Pacific Enterprises 1987 Form 10-K, Exhibit 4.11).

4.17 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
First Trust of California, National Association, successor to
Bankers Trust Company of California, N.A. dated as of August 15,
1992 (Registration Statement No. 33-50826 filed by Southern
California Gas Company on August 13, 1992, Exhibit 4.37).

4.18 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
U.S. Bank, N.A., successor to First Trust of California, N.A.,
dated as of October 1, 2002. (Sempra Energy 2002 Form 10-K,
Exhibit 4.17).

4.19 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
U.S. Bank, N.A., successor to First Trust of California, N.A.,
dated as of October 17, 2003.

4.20 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California Gas Company to
U.S. Bank, N.A., successor to First Trust of California, N.A.,
Dated as of December 15, 2003.

4.21 Supplemental Indenture of Southern California gas Company to
U.S. Bank, N.A., successor to First Trust of California, N.A.,
Dated as of December 10, 2004.

Exhibit 10 -- Material Contracts (Previously filed exhibits are

incorporated by reference from Forms 8-K, S-4, 10-K or
10-Q as referenced below) .

Sempra Energy

10.01 Energy Purchase Agreement between Sempra Energy Resources and
the California Department of Water Resources, executed
May 4, 2001 (2001 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.01).

10.02 Form of Employment Agreement between Sempra Energy and
Stephen L. Baum (September 30, 2002 Form 10-Q,

Exhibit 10.1).

10.03 Amendment to Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 1998
(Employment agreement, dated as of October 12, 1996 between
Mineral Energy Company and Stephen L. Baum (Enova 8-K filed
October 15, 1996, Exhibit 10.2)) (1998 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.01).

10.04 Form of Employment Agreement between Sempra Energy and
Donald E. Felsinger (September 30, 2002 Form 10-Q,

Exhibit 10.2).
10.05 Amendment to Employment Agreement effective December 1, 1998

as Successor Trustee dated as of May 18, 1984 (Southern
California Gas Company 1984 Form 10-K, Exhibit 4.29).

(Employment contract, dated as of October 12, 1996 between
Mineral Energy Company and Donald E. Felsinger (Enova 8-K filed
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October 15, 1996, Exhibit 10.4)) (1998 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.03).

Enova Corporation and San Diego Gas & Electric Company

10.06 Operating Agreement between San Diego Gas & Electric and the
California Department of Water Resources dated April 17, 2003
(Sempra Energy 2003 10-K, Exhibit 10.06).

10.07 Servicing Agreement between San Diego Gas & Electric and the
California Department of Water Resources dated December 19, 2002
(Sempra Energy 2003 10-K, Exhibit 10.07).

10.08 Transition Property Purchase and Sale Agreement dated December
16, 1997 (Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed by SDG&E
Funding LLC on December 23, 1997, Exhibit 10.1).

10.09 Transition Property Servicing Agreement dated December 16, 1997
(Incorporated by reference from Form 8-K filed by SDG&E Funding
LLC on December 23, 1997, Exhibit 10.2).

Compensation

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Form of Sempra Energy Severance Pay Agreement.

Sempra Energy 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan (8-K filed on
December 07, 2004, Exhibit 10.1).

Sempra Energy Employee Stock Incentive Plan (September 30, 2004
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.1).

Sempra Energy Amended and Restated Executive Life
Insurance Plan (September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.2).

Sempra Energy Excess Cash Balance Plan (September 30, 2004
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.3).

Form of Sempra Energy 1998 Long Term Incentive Plan
Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award (September 30, 2004
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.4).

Form of Sempra Energy 1998 Long Term Incentive Plan
Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (September 30, 2004
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.5).

Form of Sempra Energy 1998 Non-Employee Directors' Stock
Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (September 30, 2004
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.6).

Sempra Energy Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (September
30, 2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.7).

Neal Schmale Restricted Stock Award Agreement (September 30,
2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.8).

Severance Pay Agreement between Sempra Energy and
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10.21 Severance Pay Agreement between Sempra Energy and Neal Schmale
(September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.10).

10.22 Sempra Energy Executive Personal Financial Planning Program
Policy Document (September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.11).

10.23 2003 Sempra Energy Executive Incentive Plan B. (2003
Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.10).

10.24 2003 Executive Incentive Plan (June 30, 2003 Form 10-Q, Exhibit
10.1) .

10.25 Amended 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan (June 30, 2003 Form 10-Q,
Exhibit 10.2).

10.26 Sempra Energy Executive Incentive Plan effective January 1, 2003
(2002 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.09).

10.27 Amended Sempra Energy Retirement Plan for Directors (2002 Form
10-K, Exhibit 10.10).

10.28 Amended and Restated Sempra Energy Deferred Compensation and
Excess Savings Plan (September 30, 2002 Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.3).

10.29 Form of Sempra Energy Severance Pay Agreement for Executives
(2001 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.07).

10.30 Sempra Energy Executive Security Bonus Plan effective January 1,
2001 (2001 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.08).

10.31 Sempra Energy Deferred Compensation and Excess Savings Plan
effective January 1, 2000 (2000 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.07).

10.32 Sempra Energy 1998 Long Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated by
reference from the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Sempra
Energy Registration No. 333-56161 dated June 5, 1998, Exhibit
4.1).

10.33 Sempra Energy 1998 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Plan
(Incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement on
Form S-8 Sempra Energy Registration No. 333-56161 dated June 5,
1998, Exhibit 4.2).

Financing

Donald E. Felsinger (September 30, 2004 Form 10-Q, Exhibit
10.9) .

Enova Corporation and San Diego Gas & Electric

10.

35

Loan agreement with the City of Chula Vista in connection

with the issuance of $25 million of Industrial Development
Bonds, dated as of October 1, 1997 (Enova 1997 Form 10-K,

Exhibit 10.34).

Loan agreement with the City of Chula Vista in connection
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10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

10.

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

with the issuance of $38.9 million of Industrial Development
Bonds, dated as of August 1, 1996 (Enova 1996 Form 10-K,
Exhibit 10.31).

Loan agreement with the City of Chula Vista in connection
with the issuance of $60 million of Industrial Development
Bonds, dated as of November 1, 1996 (Enova 1996 Form 10-K,
Exhibit 10.32).

Loan agreement with the City of San Diego in connection with
the issuance of $92.9 million of Industrial Development
Bonds 1993 Series C dated as of July 1, 1993 (June 30, 1993
SDG&E Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.2).

Loan agreement with the City of San Diego in connection with
the issuance of $70.8 million of Industrial Development Bonds
1993 Series A dated as of April 1, 1993 (March 31, 1993 SDG&E
Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.3).

Loan agreement with the City of Chula Vista in connection
with the issuance of $250 million of Industrial Development
Bonds, dated as of December 1, 1992 (1992 SDG&E Form 10-K,
Exhibit 10.5).

Loan agreement with the California Pollution Control Financing
Authority in connection with the issuance of $129.82 million
of Pollution Control Bonds, dated as of June 1, 1996

(Enova 1996 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.41).

Loan agreement with the California Pollution Control
Financing Authority in connection with the issuance of $60
million of Pollution Control Bonds, dated as of June 1, 1993
(June 30, 1993 SDG&E Form 10-Q, Exhibit 10.1).

Loan agreement with the California Pollution Control Financing
Authority, dated as of December 1, 1991, in connection with
the issuance of $14.4 million of Pollution Control Bonds

(1991 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.11).

Loan agreement with the City of Chula Vista in connection with
the issuance of $251.3 million of Industrial Revenue Refunding
Bonds, dated as of June 1, 2004.

Natural Gas Transportation

10.

45

Amendment to Firm Transportation Service Agreement, dated
December 2, 1996, between Pacific Gas and Electric Company
and San Diego Gas & Electric Company (1997 Enova Corporation
Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.58).

Firm Transportation Service Agreement, dated December 31,
1991 between Pacific Gas and Electric Company and San Diego
Gas & Electric Company (1991 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.7).
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10.46 Firm Transportation Service Agreement, dated October 13, 1994
between Pacific Gas Transmission Company and San Diego Gas
& Electric Company (1997 Enova Corporation Form 10-K, Exhibit
10.60) .

Nuclear

10.47 Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station,
approved November 25, 1987 (1992 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.7).

10.48 Amendment No. 1 to the Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement dated September 22, 1994 (see Exhibit 10.47
herein) (1994 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.56).

10.49 Second Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (1994 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.57).

10.50 Third Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (1996 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.59).

10.51 Fourth Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (1996 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.60) .

10.52 Fifth Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generation Station
(see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (1999 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.26).

10.53 Sixth Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (1999 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.27).

10.54 Seventh Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
dated December 24, 2003 (see Exhibit 10.47 herein) (2003
Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.42).

10.55 Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station,
approved November 25, 1987 (1992 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.8).

10.56 First Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.55 herein) (1996 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.62).
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10.57 Second Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.55 herein) (1996 Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.63).

10.58 Third Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.55 herein) (1999 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.31).

10.59 Fourth Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
(see Exhibit 10.55 herein) (1999 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.32).

10.60 Fifth Amendment to the San Diego Gas & Electric Company
Nuclear Facilities Non-Qualified CPUC Decommissioning Master
Trust Agreement for San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
dated December 24, 2003 (see Exhibit 10.55 herein) (2003
Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.48).

10.61 Second Amended San Onofre Operating Agreement among Southern
California Edison Company, SDG&E, the City of Anaheim and
the City of Riverside, dated February 26, 1987 (1990 SDG&E
Form 10-K, Exhibit 10.6).

10.62 U. S. Department of Energy contract for disposal of spent
nuclear fuel and/or high-level radioactive waste, entered
into between the DOE and Southern California Edison Company,
as agent for SDG&E and others; Contract DE-CR01-83NE44418,
dated June 10, 1983 (1988 SDG&E Form 10-K, Exhibit 10N).

Exhibit 12 -- Statement re: Computation of Ratios

12.01 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges
and Preferred Stock Dividends for the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Exhibit 13 -- Annual Report to Security Holders

13.01 Sempra Energy 2004 Annual Report to Shareholders. (Such report,
except for the portions thereof which are expressly incorporated
by reference in this Annual Report, is furnished for the
information of the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not
to be deemed "filed" as part of this Annual Report).

Exhibit 21 -- Subsidiaries

21.01 Schedule of Significant Subsidiaries at December 31, 2004.

Exhibit 23 -- Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm and Report on Schedules, page 43.

Exhibit 31 -- Section 302 Certifications

31.1 Statement of Registrant's Chief Executive Officer pursuant
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to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

31.2 Statement of Registrant's Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Exhibit 32 -- Section 906 Certifications

32.1 Statement of Registrant's Chief Executive Officer pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350.

32.2 Statement of Registrant's Chief Financial Officer pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350.
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GLOSSARY

AB California Assembly Bill

AEG Atlantic Electric & Gas

AEP American Electric Power

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

ALJ Administrative Law Judge

APBO Accounting Principles Board Opinion

ARB Accounting Research Bulletin

BCAP Biennial Cost Allocation Proceeding

Bef One Billion Cubic Feet (of natural gas)

California Utilities Southern California Gas Company and San Diego
Gas & Electric

CEC California Energy Commission

CEMA Catastrophic Event Memorandum Account

CFE Comision Federal de Electricidad

CPUC California Public Utilities Commission

DGN Distribuidora de Gas Natural

DOE Department of Energy

DSM Demand Side Management

DTSC Department of Toxic Substance Control

DWR Department of Water Resources

Edison Southern California Edison Company

EITF Emerging Issues Task Force

El Paso El Paso Natural Gas Company

Elk Hills Elk Hills Power

EMFs Electric and Magnetic Fields

EPS Earnings per Share

ERMG Energy Risk Management Group

ERMOC Energy Risk Management Oversight Committee
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ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FIN FASB Interpretation Number

FSP FASB Staff Position

GCIM Gas Cost Incentive Mechanism

GIR Gas Industry Restructuring

ICIP Incremental Cost Incentive Pricing

ICWUC International Chemical Workers' Union Council
I0Us Investor-Owned Utilities

IRS Internal Revenue Service

IS0 Independent System Operator

ISFSI Independent Spent Fuel Storage Facility
Liberty Liberty Gas Storage

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate

LIFO Last In First Out inventory costing method
LNG Liquefied Natural Gas

Luz del Sur Luz del Sur S.A.A.

MGP Manufactured-Gas Plants

mmbtu Million British Thermal Units

(of natural gas)

MW Megawatt

NRC Nuclear Regulatory Commission

OIR Order Instituting Ratemaking

ORA Office of Ratepayer Advocates

OTC Over-the-counter

PBR Performance-Based Ratemaking/Regulation
PE Pacific Enterprises

PGE Portland General Electric Company
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PIER Public Interest Energy Research

PRP Potentially Responsible Party

PSEG Public Service Enterprise Group

PX Power Exchange

QF Qualifying Facility

QUIPS Quarterly Income Preferred Securities
RD&D Research, Development and Demonstration
ROE Return on Equity

ROR Return on Ratebase

SDG&E San Diego Gas & Electric Company

SFAS Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
Shell Shell International Gas Limited
SoCalGas Southern California Gas Company

SONGS San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station
SWPL Southwest Powerlink, a transmission line

connecting San Diego to Phoenix and
intermediate points.

Sunat Peruvian tax authorities

TDM Termoelectrica de Mexicali

Topaz Topaz Power Partners

Trust ESOP Trust

UCAN Utility Consumers Action Network
UWUA Utility Workers' Union of America
VaR Value at Risk

VIE Variable Interest Entity
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13RECORDING REQUESTED BY RECORDED MAIL TO:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
633 W. FIFTH STREET, 24™ FLOOR
LOS ANGELES, CA 90071

ATTN: CORPORATE TRUST SERVICES

Index as a UCC Filing and an Indenture
This is a Security Agreement and a Mortgage of Chattels
as well as a Mortgage of Real Estate and Other Property
FORTY-NINTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE
FROM
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
TO

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

Sk Rk R kR

Dated as of June 1, 2004
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ARTICLE VI

SERIES AAA BONDS
Section 1. Terms of Bonds of Series AAA, due 2039 27
Section 2. Form of Registered Bonds without Coupons 28
Form of Trustee's Certificate 31
Section 3. Authorization and Delivery of Bonds 31
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MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1. This Indenture Supplemental to Indenture of July 1, 1940 31
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THIS FORTY-NINTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE IS A SECURITY
AGREEMENT AND A MORTGAGE OF CHATTELS AS WELL AS
A MORTGAGE OF REAL ESTATE AND OTHER PROPERTY

THIS FORTY-NINTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of the first day of June, 2004, by and between SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
State of California, having its principal office in that State in the City of San Diego (the "Company"), and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a banking association duly organized under an act known as the "National Bank Act", of the
United States of America, having a corporate trust office in the City of Los Angeles, State of California, as Trustee (the "Trustee").

WHEREAS, the Company executed and delivered a Mortgage and Deed of Trust (the "Original Indenture"), dated July 1, 1940, to The Bank of California, National Association, as predecessor trustee to Bankers Trust Company of California,
National Association, as predecessor trustee to First Trust of California, National Association, (subsequently renamed U.S. Bank Trust National Association) as predecessor trustee to the Trustee, to secure payment of the principal of and the
interest on all bonds of the Company at any time outstanding thereunder according to their tenor and effect, and to provide the terms and provisions with respect to its First Mortgage Bonds, 3 3/8% Series due July 1, 1970, issued in the
aggregate principal amount of $16,000,000 and heretofore retired; and

WHEREAS, the Company executed and delivered to the then current trustee, a First Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1946, a Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of Much 1, 1948, a Third Supplemental Indenture dated as
of April 1, 1952, a Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1954, a Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1955, a Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1. 1957, a Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as
of October 1, 1960, an Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 1, 1967, a Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1968, an Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 1, 1970, a Twelfth Supplemental
Indenture dated as of September 1, 1971, a Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 15, 1974, a Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 15, 1974, a Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 1, 1975, a
Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 15, 1976, an Eig hteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 15, 1977, a Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 1, 1978, a Twentieth Supplemental Indenture dated as of
March 15, 1980, a Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 1, 1980, a Twenty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 15, 1981, a Twenty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 15, 1982, a Twenty-Fourth
Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 16, 1982, a Twenty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 16, 1982, a Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 16, 1982, a Twenty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated
as of June 1, 1983, a Twenty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 15, 1983, a Twenty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 1983, a Thirty-First, Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 1, 1984, a Thirty-Second
Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1984, a Thirty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 1985, a Thirty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1985, a Third-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as
of July 1, 1986, a Thirty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1986, a Thirty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 1987, a Thirty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 15, 1990, a Thirty-Ninth
Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1991, a Fortieth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1992, a Forty-First Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 15, 1992, a Forty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of September
1, 1992, a Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1992, a Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1993, a Forty-Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1993, a Forty-Sixth Supplemental
Indenture dated as of July 1, 1993, a Forty-Seventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1995 and a Forty-Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1995, whereby, among other things, th ¢ Company set forth certain of the
particulars of the Bonds of series designated "First Mortgage Bonds, 2 3/4% Series due December 1, 1981" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $2,800,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series C due 1978" issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $10,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series D due 1982" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $512,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series E due 1984" issued; in the aggregate principal amount of $17,000,000; "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series F due 1985" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series G due 1987" issued is the aggregate principal amount of $12,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series H due 1990"
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $30,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series I due 1997" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $25,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series J due 1998" issued in the aggregate principal am ount
of $35,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds; Series K due 2000" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $40,000,000; "First Mortgage Boards, Series L due 2001" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $45,000,000; "First Mortgage
Bonds, Series M due 2004" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series N due 1979" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series O due 1982" issued in
the aggregate principal amount of $40,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series P due 2006" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $45,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series Q due 2007" issued in the aggregate principal amount of
$50,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series R due 2008" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series S due 2010" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds,
Series T due 2010" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $75,000,000; "First Mort gage Bonds, Series U-1 due 1984, and U-2 due 1994" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6,567,000 for Series U-1 and $13,268,000 for Series
U-2, "First Mortgage Bonds, Series V due 2011" issued in the aggregate amount of $50,000,000, "First Mortgage Bonds, Series W due 1988" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $40,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series X due 1987"
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $20,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series Y due 1987" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $15,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series Z, due 2013" issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $65,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series AA, due 2018" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series BB, due 2018" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $150,000,000; "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series CC, due 2008" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds Series DD, due 2008" issued in the aggregate principal am ount of $27,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series EE, due
2015" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series FF, due 2007" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $35,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series GG, due 2021" issued in the aggregate
principal amount of' $44,250,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series HH, due 2021" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $381,350,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series II due 2023" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $25,000,000;
"First Mortgage Bonds, Series JJ, due 2015" issued in aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series KK, due 2015" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $14,400,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series LL, due
2022" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $60,000,000, "First Mortgage Bonds, Series MM due 2002" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $80,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series NN", issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $118,615, 000; "First Mortgage Bands, Series OO", issued in the aggregate principal amount of $250,000,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series PP, due 2018" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $70,795,000; "First Mortgage
Bonds, Series QQ, due 2018" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $14,915,000; "First Mortgage Bonds, Series RR, due 2021" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $60,000,000, and "First Mortgage Bonds, Series SS, due 2018"
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $92,945,000, "First Mortgage Bonds, Series TT due 2020" issued in the aggregate principal amount of $57,650,000 and "First Mortgage Bonds, Series UU due 2020" issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $16,700,000, respectively, all of which First Mortgage Bonds are presently issued and outstanding, except the 2 3/4% Series due 1981, the Series C due 1978, the Series D due 1982, the Series E due 1984, the Series F due 1985, the
Series G due 1987, the Series H due 1990, the Series I due 1997, the Series J due 1 998, the Series K due 2000, the Series L due 2001, the Series M due 2004, the Series N due 1979, the Series 0 due 1982, the Series P due 2006, the Series Q
due 2007, the Series R due 2008, the Series S due 2010, the Series T due 2010, the Series U-1 due 1984, the Series U-2 due 1994, the Series V due 2011, the Series W due 1988, the Series X due 1987, the Series Y due 1987, the Series Z due
2013, the Series AA due 2018, the Series BB due 2018, the Series CC due 2008, the Series DD due 2008, the Series EE due 2015, the Series FF due 2007, the Series GG due 2021, the Series HH due 2021, the Series II due 2023, the Series JJ
due 2015, the Series LL due 2022, the Series MM due 2022, the Series QQ due 2018 and the Series UU due 2020, which have heretofore been retired or redeemed; and

WHEREAS, certain of the provisions of the Original Indenture have been amended by the aforesaid Second and Tenth Supplemental Indentures, a Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 1, 1968, a Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture
dated August 28, 1975, and a Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture dated September 23, 1983; and

WHEREAS, the Original Indenture and each of said Supplemental Indentures have been recorded in the Official Records of the Recorders of the Counties of San Diego, Orange, Riverside, and Imperial in the State of California and the
Counties, Yuma and Maricopa in the State of Arizona, as follows:

Counties of

Official

Records Orange Imperial
[Document San Diego Riverside

Book  |[1087 1062 1765 1369
Original Page |l 300 364 232
Indenture Date Oct. 10, 1940 Oct. 10, 1940 |July 13, 1955 Nov. 22, 1974
IFirst Book  |232] 1506 1765 1369
Supplemental Page 48 472 1499 332
Indenture Date |, 2, 1947 Jan. 9, 1947 lJuly 13, 1955 Nov. 22, 1974
Second Book |2537 1616 1765 1369
Supplemental Page 363 190 1448 343
Indenture Date Mar. 16, 1948 Mar. 15, 1948 |Tuly 13, 1955 Nov. 22,1974
Third [4424 1765
Supplemental Book (535 2311 1475 1369
Indenture |Apr. 3. 1952 lJuly 13. 1955




Page 116 370

Date Apr. 3, 1952 Nov. 22, 1974
[Fourth Book |l5193 2701 1765 1369
Supplemental Page  |D17 153 336 409
Indenture Date |Apr. 2, 1954 Apr. 2, 1954 lJuly 13, 1955 Nov. 22, 1974
Fifth Book  |[5893 3304 1829 2369
Supplemental Page 291 205 456
lIndenture Date Dec. 5, 1955 Dec. 5, 1955 Dec. 5, 1955 Nov. 22, 1974
Sixth Book |l6829 4099 2175 1369
Supplemental Page 390 109 538 492
[Indenture Date |Nov. 12, 1957 Nov. 12,1957 [Nov. 12, 1957 Nov. 22,1974
Seventh Book 111960 Series 1 3455 2780 1369
Supplemental PDage [File No. 202061 2)85 10, 1960 541

ate ct. 10,
Indenture Oct. 10, 1960 (Oct. 10, 1960 Nov. 22, 1974
Eighth Book (1967 Series 8 8197 [Endorsement 1369
Supplemental Page |[File No. 33860 129 No. 20925 618
lIndenture Date Mar. 13, 1967 Mar. 13, 1967 Mar. 13, 1967 Nov. 22, 1974
. Book  |(1968 Series 9 8691 1369

[Ninth Page 69 694
Supplemental Doc. No.[[138926 9816 78781
Indenture Date  |[Aug. 14, 1968 Aug. 14,1968 [lAug. 14, 1968 Nov. 22, 1974

Book 111968 Series 9 8810 [Endorsement 1369
Tenth Page 375 INo. 119982 706
Supplemental Doc. No. 215131
Indenture Date  |[Dec. 9, 1968 Dec. 9, 1968 Dec. 9,1968 Nov. 22, 1974

Book  |[1970 9217 [Endorsement 1369
[Eleventh Page 516 INo. 14780 725
Supplemental Doc. No. 27782
Indenture Date  |[Feb. 16, 1970 Feb. 16,1970 ||Feb.16, 1970 Nov. 22, 1974
Twelfth Book  |[File/Page 9810 [Endorsement 1369
Supplemental Page No. 212688 539 INo. 106508 744
Indenture Date Sept. 20, 1971 Sept. 20, 1971 Sept. 20, 1971 Nov. 22, 1974
Thirteenth Book  [File/Page 11055 [Endorsement 1369
Supplements Page INo. 74-006878 INo. 3853 763
lIndenture Date Jan. 10, 1974 Jan. 10, 1974 Jan. 10, 1974 Nov. 22, 1974
Fourteenth Book |File/Page 11303 Endorsement 1369
Supplemental Page No. 74-322156 458 INo. 157219 1689
Indenture Date IDec. 11, 1974 Dec. 11, 1974 Dec. 11, 1974 Dec. 11, 1974
[Fifteenth Book  |[File/Page 11395 Instrument 1374
Supplemental Page No. 755-108612 1879 No. 52617 809
Indenture Date |IMay 7, 1975 May 7, 1975 May 7, 1975 May 7, 1975

Counties of
Official
Records Imperial
San Diego (Orange Riverside

Sixteenth Book  |[File/Page 11500 Instrument 1378
Supplemental Page No.75-235624 1620 No. 107732 952
Indenture Date |lSept. 2, 1975 Sept. 2, 1975 Sept. 3, 1975 Sept. 2, 1975
Seventeenth Book  |[File/Page 11815 Instrument 1389

Page  |IN0.76-224493 [No. 103484 687
Indenture Date lTuly 16, 1976 lTuly 16, 1976 July 16, 1976 July 16, 1976
Eighteenth Book  |IFile/Page 12110 Instrument 1398
Supplemental Page INo. 77-100483 INo. 45619 1675
Indenture Date Mar. 18, 1977 Mar. 18, 1977 Mar. 18, 1977 Mar. 18, 1977

Book |IFile/ Page 12672 1415
Supplemental Page |INo. 78-194210 1803-1822 [No. 94450 1638
Indenture Date May 12, 1978 May 12, 1978 May 12, 1978 May 12, 1978
[Twentieth Book  |[File/Page 13530 Instrument 1448
Supplemental Page INo. 80-082569 722 No. 47195 1221
Indenture Date |[Mar. 11, 1980 Mar. 11, 1980 Mar. 11, 1980 Mar. 11, 1980
[Twenty-First Book  |IFile/Page 13687 Instrument 1455
Supplemental Page INo. 80-245100 349 INo. 139349 1660
Indenture Date Aug. 1, 1980 Aug. 1, 1980 Aug. 1, 1980 Aug. 1, 1980
[Twenty-Second Book |IFile/Page Instrument Instrument 1472
Supplemental Page INo. 81-22576 No. 24605 INo. 135815 508
Indenture Date \July 17, 1981 July 17, 1981 \Tuly 17, 1981 July 17, 1981




Twenty-Third Book ||File/Page Instrument Instrument 1479

Supplemental Page INo. 82-02387 No. 82-031423 INo. 16093 1714

Indenture Date Jan. 27, 1982 \Jan. 27, 1982 lan. 27, 1982 Jan. 27,1982

[Twenty-Fourth Book ||File/Page [File/Page File/Page 1489

Supplemental Page  |INo. 82257258 [No. 82-291894 INo. 82/143370212

Indenture Date [[Aug. 19, 1982 Aug. 19, 1982 Aug. 19, 1982 lAug. 19, 1982

ITwenty-Fifth Book  |[File/Page [File/Page File/Page 1489

Supplemental Page |INo. 82-257259 [No. 82-291895 No. 82-143371 236

Indenture Date |Aug. 19, 1982 |Aug. 19, 1982 Aug. 19, 1982 |Aug. 19, 1982

Twenty-Sixth Book  |[File/Page [File/Page File/Page 1489

Supplemental Page |INo. 82-257260 [No. 82-291896 [No. 82/143372260

Indenture Date  |lAug. 19, 1982 |Aug. 19, 1982 Aug. 19, 1982 |Aug. 19, 1982

ITwenty-Seventh Book |[File/Page [File/Page File/Page 1503

Supplemental Page |INo. 83-200545 [No. 83-253901 [No. 118670 743

Indenture Date |ljune 15, 1983 Tune 15, 1983 lJune 15, 1983 lTune 15, 1983

[Twenty-Eighth Book ||File/Page [File/Page File/Page 1505

Supplemental Page |INo. 83-252396 [No. 83-316224 No. 147671 583

Indenture Date |ljuly 22, 1983 uly 22, 1983 July 22, 1983 luly 22, 1983

Twenty-Ninth Book  |[File/Page File/Page File/Page 1508

Supplemental Page |I83-339007 83-417956 194083 1425

Indenture Date |ISept. 22, 1983 Sept. 22, 1983 Sept. 22, 1983 Sept. 22, 1983
Counties of

Yuma Maricopa

Book
Page IDocket 1352
Thirtieth Supplemental Indenture P“" 272-1002
Consisting of Original and D“’fe Docket 1353 File No.
Twenty-Nine Supplemental ate 1264 83-399354
Indentures thereto Sept. 28, 1983 Oct. 3, 1983
Official Counties of
Records
Document San Diego Orange Riverside Imperial Yuma Maricopa
Thirty-First Book IFile/Page File/Page File/Page 1520 Docket 1382 File No.
Supplemental Page 84-161897 84-180870 92011 1552 743-761 84-186813
Indenture Date 52184 512184 5/2/84 4/30/84 4/30/84 5/2/84
Thirty-Second Book |[File/Page File/Page File/Page 1533 Docket 1413 File No.
Supplemental Page 84-466428 84-517843 267452 753 216-235 84-537706
Indenture Date 12/14/84 12/14/84 12/14/84 12/14/84 12/14/84 12/14/84
Thirty-Third Book ||File/Page File/Page File/Page 1546 Docket 1450 File No.
Supplemental Page 85-323210 85-333505 198810 708 816 85-418309
Indenture Date 9/4/85 9/4/85 9/4/85 9/4/85 9/4/85 9/4/85
Thirty-Fourth Book |[File/Page File/Page File/Page 1550 Docket 1463 File No.
Supplemental Page 85-42465 85-481794 270136 1573 215 85-568874
Date 12/2/85 12/2/85 12/2/85 12/3/85 12/3/85 12/2/85
Thirty-Fifth Book [File/Page File/Page File/Page 1562 Docket 1491 File No.
Supplemental Page 86-279922 86-290957 158161 549 639-657 86-347412
Indenture Date 7/8/86 7/8/86 7/8/86 7/8/86 7/8/86 7/8/86
Thirty-Sixth Book |[File/Page File/Page File/Page 1571 Docket 1512 File/Page
Page 86-576027 86-606666 314771 240 5-24 86-680502
Indenture Date 12/10/86 12/10/86 12/10/86 12/10/86 12/10/86 12/10/86
Thirty-Seventh Book |[File/Page File/Page File/Page 1588 Docket 1555 File/Page
Supplemental Page 87-532270 87-530266 273181 844 844 87-585903
Indenture Date 9/21/87 9/21/87 9/21/87 9/21/87 9/21/87 9/21/87
Thirty-Eighth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page 1646 Docket 1686 File/Page
Supplemental Page 90-217585 90-212277 14679,1 146794 1280 92-120 88-176460
Indenture Date 14/23/90 4/23/90 4/23/90 4/23/90 14/23/90 4/23/90
Thirty-Ninth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page 1687 Docket 1771 File/Page
Supplemental Page 91632073 91674397 425578 743 711-728 91-0574751
Indenture Date 12/09/91 12/09/91 12/09/91 12/09/91 12/09/91 12/09/91
Forticth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket 1790 File/Page
Supplemental Page 92-185636 92-202372 115201 92-06577 954-970 92-0169646
Indenture Date 14/1/92 4/1/92 411192 4/1/92 4/1/92 4/1/92
Forty-First File/Page File/Page Docket 1804 File/Page




Supplemental 92-0363471 92-393790 73-88 92-0317072
Indenture Book 6/11/92 6/11/92 File/Page Book/Page 6/11/92 6/11/92
Page 214904 92011833
Date 6/11/92 6/11/92

Forty-Second Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket 1824 File/Page
Supplemental Page 92-0650893 92692066 384167 92-21988 670-689 92-0575062
Indenture Date 10/13/92 10/13/92 10/13/92 10/13/92 10/13/92 10/13/92
Forty-Third Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket 1834 File/Page
Supplemental Page 92-0788665 92-845626 471625 92-27082 187-206 92-0700568
Indenture Date 12/9/92 12/10/92 12/10/92 12/9/92 12/9/92 12/9/92
Forty-Fourth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket 1859 File/Page
Supplemental Page 930257065 93-0277892 153382 93-009487 Fee 09300 93-0246725
Indenture Date 14/27/93 4/27/93 4127/93 4/27/93 4/27/93 4/26/93
Forty-Fifth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket File/Page
Supplemental Page 93-0395609 93-0420127 239922 93-14224 Fee 14413 93-0403060
Indenture Date 6/23/93 6/23/93 6/23/93 6/23/93 6/23/93 6/23/93

Official Counties of

Records
Document San Diego Orange Riverside Imperial Yuma Maricopa
Forty-Sixth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page IDocket File/Page
Supplemental Page 93-0474705 93-0496100 288868 93-17399 Fee 17163 193-0487598
Indenture Date 7/26/93 17/26/93 7127193 7/27/93 7/27/93 7/27/93
Forty-Seventh Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page IDocket File/Page
Supplemental Page 95-0230457 95-0232951 175604 95-11739 246-264 195-0313576

Date 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95
Forty-Eighth Book File/Page File/Page File/Page Book/Page Docket File/Page
Supplemental Page 95-0230458 95-0232952 175605 95-11740 265-284 195-0343577
Indenture Date 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95 6/01/95

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Company has duly authorized the creation of six additional series of bonds to be designated "First Mortgage Bonds, Series VV, due 2034," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series WW, due 2034," "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series XX, due 2034," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series YY, due 2034," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series ZZ, due 2034," and "First Mortgage Bonds, Series AAA, due 2039," as hereinafter set forth in this Forty-Ninth
Supplemental Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture has been duly authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company; and

WHEREAS, all the conditions and requirements necessary to make this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture a valid, binding and legal instrument in accordance with its terms and for the purposes herein expressed have been performed and
fulfilled and the execution and delivery hereof have been in all respects duly authorized.

NOW, THEREFORE, in order further to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on all of the bonds of the Company at any time outstanding under the Original Indenture, as from time to time amended and supplemented (the
"Indenture") and to secure the performance and observance of each and every of the covenants and agreements of the Indenture, as from time to time amended and supplemented, and for and in consideration of the premises, and of the sum of
One Dollar ($1.00) to the Company duly paid by the Trustee (the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged), the Company has executed and delivered this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture and has granted, bargained, sold, warranted,
released, conveyed, assigned, transferred, mortgaged, pledged, hypothecated, granted a security interest in, set over and confirmed, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell, warrant, release, convey, assign, transfer, mortgage pledge,
hypothecate, grant a security interest in, set over and confirm unt o U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, and to its respective successors in said trust forever, with power of sale, all property, real, personal and mixed, now owned or
hereafter acquired or to be acquired by the Company, and wheresoever situated (except such property as is expressly excepted or excluded from the lien and security interest of the Indenture, and property of a successor corporation or
corporations excluded from the lien and security interest thereof by the provisions of Section 3 of Article XIV thereof) subject to the rights reserved by the Company in and by other provisions of the Indenture, including in the property subject
and to be subject to the lien and security interest thereof and hereof (without in any manner limiting or impairing by the enumeration of the same scope and intent of the foregoing or of any general description contained in the Original Indenture
or in this or any other supplemental indenture) all lands, rights-of-way, other land rights, flowage and other water righ ts, power houses, dams, reservoirs, docks, roads, and buildings, structures and other land improvements; steam, and other
electric generating plants, including buildings and other structures, turbines, generators, exciters, boilers and other boiler plant equipment, condensing equipment, and all auxiliary equipment; stations and substations; electric transmission and
distribution systems, including structures, poles, towers, fixtures, conduits, insulators, wires, cables, transformers, services and meters; steam heating plants and systems, including mains and equipment, gas plants, transmission and distribution
systems, including pipe lines, structures, tanks, mains, compressor stations, purifier stations, pressure holders, governors, services and meters; communication systems, office, shop and other buildings and structures, and equipment; apparatus
and equipment and materials and supplies of all other kinds and descriptions; and all municipal and other franchises, leaseholds, licenses, permits, and privilege s;

TOGETHER WITH all and singular the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances belonging or in any wise appertaining to the aforesaid property or any part thereof with the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, tolls, rents
and revenues, issues, income, proceeds, product and profits thereof, and all the estate, right, title and interest and claim whatsoever, at law as well as in equity, which the Company now has or may hereafter acquire in and to the aforesaid
property and every part and parcel thereof (except such property as is expressly excepted or excluded from the lien and security interest of the Indenture, and property of a successor corporation or corporations excluded from the lien and
security thereof by the provisions of Section 3 of Article XIV thereof), subject to the rights reserved by the Company in and by other provisions of the Indenture;

It is hereby agreed by the Company that, except as aforesaid, all the property, rights, and franchises acquired by the Company after the date hereof shall be as fully embraced within the lien and security interest hereof as if such property were
now owned by the Company and were specifically described herein and conveyed and a security interest therein granted hereby;

SAVING AND EXCEPTING, HOWEVER, anything to the contrary notwithstanding contained herein or in the granting clauses of the Original Indenture and said Supplemental Indentures (a) such property described or referred to in any of
such granting clauses as has been from time to time, released or sold free from the lien and security interest of the Original Indenture (or the Original Indenture, as supplemented) in accordance and compliance with the provisions thereof (or of
the Original Indenture, as supplemented, as the case may be), and (b) all of the following property (whether now owned by the Company or hereafter acquired by it): (1) all gas, electric energy and steam produced, purchased or otherwise
acquired; (2) all contracts, chosen in action, shares of stock, bonds, notes, evidences of indebtedness, and other securities, other than any of the foregoing which maybe required to be deposited from time to time with the Trustee in accordance
with the provisions of the Indenture or are requi red by some express provision thereof to be deposited with the Trustee; (3) merchandise and appliances at any time acquired for the purpose of sale or lease to customers and others and contracts
for the sale of merchandise and appliances; (4) motor vehicles; (5) timber on land owned by the Company; (6) minerals or mineral rights in lands owned by the Company; (7) oil, coal or gas, or oil, coal or gas rights in land owned by the
Company or gas wells or oil wells or equipment therefore or coal mines or equipment therefore; (8) fuel and other personal property which are consumable in their use in the operation of the properties of the Company; (9) bills and accounts
receivable; (10) cash on hand and in banks other than such cash as may be deposited from time to time with the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture or as is required by some express provision thereof to be deposited with
the Trustee; and (11) the last day of the term of each leasehold estate now or hereafter enjoyed by the Comp any. The Company may, however, expressly subject to the lien and security interest and operation of the Original Indenture and all
indentures supplemental thereto all or any part of the property of the character described in clause (b) of this paragraph;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all said properties, real, personal and mixed, mortgaged, pledged, or conveyed and in which a security interest has been granted by the Company as aforesaid, or intended so to be, unto the Trustee and its successors
and assigns forever, subject, however, to Permitted Liens as defined in the Indenture;

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, for the equal pro rata benefit and security as provided in the Original Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto of all and every of the bonds issued and to be issued in accordance with the provisions of the
Original Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto, without preference priority or distinction as to lien or security interest of any over the others by reason of priority in time of the issue, negotiation or maturity thereof, subject, however,
to the provisions of the Original Indenture and all indentures supplemental thereto relating to any sinking fund or similar fund for the benefit of the bonds of any particular series;

The Company does further covenant and agree with the Trustee as follows:

ARTICLE 1
SERIES VV BONDS

Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indentures (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series V'V, due 2034, each of
which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage Bonds, Series VV, due 2034," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series VV Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series VV Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series VV Bonds shall mature on February 15, 2034 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series VV Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment dates
which shall correspond exactly to the rat es of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series A issued pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series VV Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee in St.
Paul, Minnesota. The Series VV Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article II of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Series VV Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series V'V, due 2034.



The Series VV Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series VV, due 2034.
The Series VV Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series VV Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series VV, due 2034)
THE SERIES VV BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, As AMENDED, AND mAy NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN

CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF JUNE 1,
2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES VV, DUE 2034

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the fifteenth day of February, 2034, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture

as amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and on payment dates which shall
correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series A issued pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series V'V, due 2034)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof and interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series VV Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series A as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series VV Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series A Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series VV Bonds are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than
thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.

This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series V'V, at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at the
office of the Trustee St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal amount
of the bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article II of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at the option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a

trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)
This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,

By

Authorized Officer

Section 3: The Series VV Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series VV Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article IT of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE II
SERIES WW BONDS



Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indentures (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series WW, due 2034, each
of which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage, Bonds Series WW, due 2034," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series WW Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series WW Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series WW Bonds shall mature on February 15, 2034 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series WW Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment dates
which shall correspond exactly to the rat es of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series B issued pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series WW Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee in St.
Paul, Minnesota. The Series WW Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article II of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Series WW Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series WW, due 2034.
The Series WW Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series WW, due 2034.
The Series WW Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series WW Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series WW, due 2034)

THE SERIES WW BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
IN CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
JUNE 1, 2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES WW, DUE 2034

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the fifteenth day of February, 2034, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture,

as amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and on payment dates which shall
correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series B issued pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series WW, due 2034)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof and interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series WW Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series B as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series WW Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series B Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, Series WW are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than thirty (30)
nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.

This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series WW at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at
the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal
amount of the bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article IT of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at th e option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a

trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)
This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,

By

Authorized Officer



Section 3: The Series WW Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series WW Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article IT of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE III
SERIES XX BONDS

Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indenture (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series XX, due 2034, each of
which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage, Bonds Series XX, due 2034," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series XX Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series XX Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series XX Bonds shall mature on February 15, 2034 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series XX Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment dates
which shall correspond exactly to the rate s of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series C issued pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series XX Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee in St.
Paul, Minnesota. The Series XX Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article II of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Series XX Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series XX due 2034.
The Series XX Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series XX due 2034.
The Series XX Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series XX Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series XX, due 2034)

THE SERIES XX BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
IN CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
JUNE 1, 2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES XX, DUE 2034

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of’ Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the fifteenth day of February, 2034, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture,

as amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and on payment dates which shall
correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series C issued pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the C ity of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series XX, due 2034)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof and interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series XX Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series C as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series XX Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series C Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series XX are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than thirty (30)
nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.

This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series XX at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at the
office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal
amount of the bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article IT of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at th e option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a
trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)
This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,



By

Authorized Officer

Section 3: The Series XX Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series XX Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article II of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE 1V
SERIES YY BONDS

Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indenture (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series Y'Y, due 2034, each of
which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage, Bonds Series YY, due 2034," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series YY Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series YY Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series YY Bonds shall mature on January 1, 2034 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series YY Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment dates
which shall correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series D issued pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series YY Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee in St.
Paul, Minnesota. The Series YY Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article IT of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Trustee will rely on the Company for the calculation of interest payable on the Series YY Bonds. In the event that the Company fails to provide the Trustee with such calculations, the Trustee shall be under no obligation to make or cause to
be made such calculations.

The Series YY Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series Y'Y, due 2034.
The Series YY Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series YY, due 2034.
The Series YY Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series YY Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series Y'Y, due 2034)

THE SERIES YY BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
IN CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
JUNE 1, 2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES YY, DUE 2034

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the first day of January, 2034, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture, as

amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and on payment dates which shall
correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series D issued pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City o f Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series YY, due 2034)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof and interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series YY Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series D as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series YY Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series D Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series Y'Y are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than thirty (30)
nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.

This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series YY at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at the
office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal
amount of the, bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article II of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at t he option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a



trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)
This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,

By

Authorized Officer

Section 3: The Series YY Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series YY Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article II of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE V
SERIES ZZ BONDS

Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indenture (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series ZZ, due 2034, each of
which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage, Bonds Series ZZ, due 2034," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series ZZ Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series ZZ Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series ZZ Bonds shall mature on January 1, 2034 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series ZZ Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment dates
which shall correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series E issued pursuant to the
terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series ZZ Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee in St.
Paul, Minnesota. The Series ZZ Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article II of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Trustee will rely on the Company for the calculation of interest payable on the Series ZZ Bonds. In the event that the Company fails to provide the Trustee with such calculations, the Trustee shall be under no obligation to make or cause to
be made such calculations.

The Series ZZ Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series ZZ, due 2034.
The Series ZZ Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series ZZ, due 2034.
The Series ZZ Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series ZZ Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series ZZ, due 2034)

THE SERIES ZZ BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
IN CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
JUNE 1, 2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES ZZ, DUE 2034

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the first day of January, 2034, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture, as

amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and shall be payable on payment
dates which shall correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series E issued pursuant to
the terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 b etween the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series ZZ, due 2034)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.

The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof and interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series ZZ Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series E as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series ZZ Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series E Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series ZZ are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than thirty (30)
nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.



This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series ZZ at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at the
office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal
amount of the, bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article IT of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at t he option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a

trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)

This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,

By

Authorized Officer

Section 3: The Series ZZ Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series ZZ Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article IT of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE VI
SERIES AAA BONDS

Section 1: There is hereby created, for issuance under the Original Indenture as supplemented by the said Supplemental Indenture (including this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture), a series of bonds designated Series AAA, due 2039, each
of which shall bear the descriptive title "First Mortgage, Bonds Series AAA, due 2039," (herein sometimes referred to as "Series AAA Bonds"), and the form thereof shall contain suitable provisions with respect to the matters hereinafter in this
Section specified. All of the Series AAA Bonds shall be registered bonds without coupons, and shall be substantially of the tenor and purport hereinafter recited. The Series AAA Bonds shall mature on May 1, 2039 and shall be issued in
denominations of either $5,000 or $100,000 and any multiple thereof as the Company may from time to time execute and deliver. The Series AAA Bonds shall bear interest from the date of delivery at rates and shall be payable on payment
dates which shall correspond exactly to the rate s of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series F issued pursuant
to the terms of the Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of Chula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. Both the principal and interest on the Series AAA Bonds shall be payable at the office of the Trustee
in St. Paul, Minnesota. The Series AAA Bonds shall be dated as in Section 9 of Article IT of the Original Indenture provided with respect to registered bonds without coupons.

The Trustee will rely on the Company for the calculation of interest payable on the Series AAA Bonds. In the event that the Company fails to provide the Trustee with such calculations, the Trustee shall be under no obligation to make or cause
to be made such calculations.

The Series AAA Bonds shall be redeemable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series AAA, due 2039.
The Series AAA Bonds shall be exchangeable for bonds of other authorized denominations and shall be transferable as provided in the Form of Reverse of Bond of Series AAA, due 2039.
The Series AAA Bonds shall otherwise be of such terms, provisions, tenor and form as provided in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture.
Section 2: The Series AAA Bonds and the Trustee's certificate on said Bonds, are to be substantially in the following forms, respectively:
(Form of Face of Bond of Series AAA, due 2039)

THE SERIES AAA BONDS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD
IN CONTRAVENTION OF SAID ACT, NOR MAY THEY BE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT TO A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THAT CERTAIN LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF
JUNE 1, 2004, BETWEEN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA AND SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
(INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND
SERIES AAA, DUE 2039

No. $
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Company"), for value received, hereby promises to pay to ,or
registered assigns, the sum of Dollars in lawful money of the United States of America, on the first day of May, 2039, at the office of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Trustee under the Indenture, as

amended, or its successor thereunder, in St. Paul, Minnesota, and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest thereon from the date of delivery hereof until said principal sum shall be paid, at interest rates and on payment dates which shall
correspond exactly to the rates of interest and payment dates on the corresponding City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric Company) 2004 Series F issued pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2004 between the City of C hula Vista and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose unless and until U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee under the Indenture, as amended, or its successor thereunder, shall have signed the certificate of
authentication endorsed hereon.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this instrument to be executed in its name by the signature or facsimile signature of its President or any Vice President and its corporate seal, or a facsimile
thereof to be hereto affixed and attested by the signature or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

Attest:

By:

Secretary or Assistant Secretary President or Vice President

(Form of Reverse of Bond of Series AAA, due 2039)

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company, known as its First Mortgage Bonds, of the series and designation indicated on the face hereof, which issue of bonds consists or may consist, of several series of varying
denominations, dates and tenor, all issued and to be issued under and equally secured (except insofar as a sinking fund, or similar fund, established in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture may afford additional security for the bonds
of any specific series) by a Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated July 1, 1940, and indentures supplemental thereto, including the Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 2004 (which Mortgage and Deed of Trust, as so
supplemented, is herein called the "Indenture") executed by the Company to U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (herein called the "Trustee"), to which Indenture reference is hereby made for a description of the property mortgaged,
pledged, hypothecated and in which a security interes t was granted, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the holders of the bonds and appurtenant coupons as to such security, and the terms and conditions upon which the bonds
may be issued under the Indenture and are secured. The principal hereof may be declared or may become due on the conditions, in the manner and at the time set forth in the Indenture, upon the happening of a completed default as in the
Indenture provided.

With the consent of the Company and to the extent permitted by and as provided in the Indenture, the rights and obligations of the Company or of the holders of the bonds or coupons, or the terms and provisions of the Indenture or of any
indentures supplemental thereto, may be modified or altered by the affirmative vote of the holders of the percentage of principal amount of bonds required by the Indenture; provided, however, that without the consent of the holder hereof no
such modification or alteration shall permit the reduction of the principal or the extension of the maturity of the principal of this, bond, or the reduction of the rate of interest hereon, or any other modification of the terms of payment of such
principal or interest.



The Company, the Trustee, any paying agent, any registrar, and any depositary may deem and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the
principal hereof end interest hereon and for all other purposes and shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Series AAA Bonds shall be redeemable, in whole or in part, to the same extent that redemption may be, or is required to be, made of the City of Chula Vista Industrial Development Revenue Refunding Bonds (San Diego Gas & Electric
Company) 2004 Series F as set forth in Section 4.01 of the indenture pursuant to which such bonds were issued. The Series AAA Bonds shall also be redeemable, in whole, at a redemption price of 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued
interest, if any, on the date the above 2004 Series F Bonds become due and payable upon acceleration or otherwise.

As more fully provided in and subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series AAA are also subject to redemption on any date, under certain circumstances specified in Section 13 of Article XI of the Indenture, upon not less than thirty
(30) nor more than sixty (60) days' prior notice, given as aforesaid, in case of the disposition of certain properties of the Company, at 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest thereon.

If this bond shall be called for redemption and payment duly provided therefor, as specified in the Indenture, interest shall cease to accrue hereon from and after the date fixed for redemption.

This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture by the registered owner hereof in person, or by his duty authorized attorney, at the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and thereupon a
new registered bond of the same series and principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Indenture, upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company
by reason of such transfer.

The registered owner of any bond or bonds of the Series AAA at the option of such holder, may surrender the same, accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form approved by the Company duly executed by the registered owner, at
the office of the Trustee in St. Paul, Minnesota, for cancellation in exchange for another or other registered bonds of the said series of higher or lower authorized denominations of an aggregate principal amount equal to the aggregate principal
amount of the, bond or bonds so surrendered and bearing interest as provided in Section 9 of Article II of the Indenture, and upon payment of any tax or taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid by the Company by reason of such
exchange and subject to the terms and conditions specified in the Indenture, thereupon the Company shall execute and deliver to the Trustee and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver such other bonds to such registered owner at its office or
at such agency of the Company, at the option of such registered owner.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of (or premium, if any) or the interest on this bond, or any part thereof, or of any claim based herein or in respect hereof or of said Indenture, against any incorporator, or any past, or
future stockholder, officer or director, as such, of the Company or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Company, or through any such predecessor or successor corporation, or through any receiver or a

trustee in bankruptcy, whether, by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise, all such liability being, by the acceptance hereof and as part of the consideration for the issue
hereof expressly waived and released, as more fully provided in the Indenture
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(Form of Trustee's Certificate)
This bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

As Trustee,

By

Authorized Officer

Section 3: The Series AAA Bonds shall be executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions and shall be entitled to the protection and security, of the Original Indenture supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental
Indenture and the other supplemental indentures, and shall be subject to all of the terms, conditions and covenants and limitations thereof. The aggregate principal amount of the Series AAA Bonds, which may be executed by the Company and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and secured by the Indenture as from time to time in effect, is limited only to the extent provided in Section 1 of Article II of the Original Indenture.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1: This instrument is executed and shall be construed as an indenture supplemental to the Original Indenture and shall form a part thereof and, as supplemented by this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, the Original Indenture as
heretofore supplemented and amended is hereby confirmed.

All terms used in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture shall be taken to have meaning as in the Original Indenture, as heretofore supplemented and amended, except terms which may be otherwise expressly defined herein and in cases
where the context clearly indicates otherwise.

In order to facilitate the filing of this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture the same may be executed in several counterparts each of which, when so executed, shall be deemed to be an original, but such counterparts shall constitute but one and
the same instrument.

Section 2: This Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture is dated for convenience June , 2004, although executed and delivered on the date of the acknowledgment hereof by the Trustee and the same shall be effective from the date on which it is so
executed and delivered.

Section 3: All of the covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements in this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture by or on behalf of the Company shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY has caused this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its name and behalf by its duty authorized officer and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed duly

attested by its Secretary or one of its Assistant Secretaries, and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, to evidence its acceptance of the trusts hereby created, has caused this Forty-Ninth Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its name and
behalf by its duly authorized officer as of the day and year first above written.

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

By: /S/TERRY M. FLESKES
Name: Terry M. Fleskes
Title: Vice President and Treasurer

Attest:

By: /S/THOMAS C. SANGER
Name: Thomas C. Sanger

Title: Secretary

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS TRUSTEE

By: /S/FONDA HALL
Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President



STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On June , 2004, before me, , a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, personally appeared Terry M. Fleskes, a Vice President and the Treasurer, and Thomas C. Sanger, the Secretary, of SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY, personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the persons whose names are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same in their
authorized capacities, and that by their signatures on the instrument the entity upon behalf of which they acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

On June ___, 2004, before me, , a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared of U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, personally known to me (or proved to me on the
basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same in his/her authorized capacities, and that by his/her signature on the instrument the entity
upon behalf of which he/she acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
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EXHIBIT A 1

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of October 17, 2003 (this "Supplemental Indenture"), is made and entered into in the City of Los Angeles, State of California by and between
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and having its principal place of business in the City of Los
Angeles, State of California (hereinafter sometimes called the "Corporation") and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (successor by merger to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, formerly
known as First Trust of California, National Association), an association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and having a corporate trust office in the City
and County of Los Angeles, State of California (hereinafter, together with its predecessors as trustees under the Indenture referred to below, sometimes called the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee a certain Indenture (hereinafter referred to as the "Base Indenture") dated October 1, 1940, to secure bonds of the Corporation
designated generally as its "First Mortgage Bonds" to be issued from time to time in one or more series, any of which series may vary from any other as to certain particulars specified in Section
2.01 of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee supplemental indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April 1, 1952,
August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, July 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964, June 1, 1965, December 1, 1966, October 1, 1970, August 1, 1972, September 1,
1972, October 1, 1974, May 1, 1976, October 1, 1977, November 1, 1979, February 1, 1981, September 15, 1981, April 1, 1982, August 15, 1983, May 18, 1984, December 16, 1985, March 1,
1986, November 15, 1986, December 1, 1986 , January 15, 1988, June 15, 1988, November 1, 1988, December 1, 1990, October 1, 1991, August 15, 1992, December 15, 1992, March 1, 1993, June
15, 1993, November 1, 1993, November 15, 1993 and October 1, 2002 supplementing and amending the Base Indenture (each, a "Prior Supplemental Indenture," and the Base Indenture together
with all Prior Supplemental Indentures and this Supplemental Indenture being herein collectively referred to as the "Indenture"); and

WHEREAS, the Base Indenture and the Prior Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April 1, 1952 and August 1, 1955, are recorded in the office
of the County Recorder of each of the Counties listed below in the Official Records thereof, as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1956; the Prior Supplemental Indentures
dated, respectively, as of June 1, 1956 and December 1, 1956, are so recorded as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 1, 1957; the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of
July 1, 1957 and each subsequently dated Prior Supplemental Indenture (other than the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated October 1, 2002) is so recorded as stated in the Prior Supplemental
Indenture dated as of the next succeeding date; and the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 2002 is recorded in the offices of the County Recorders in the Counties of the State of
California, as follows:

County Reference Date
Official Records, Document 02-0181136 October 14, 2002
Fresno
. Official Records, Document 02-026619 October 17, 2002
TImperial
Kern Official Records, Document 02-02170190 October 11, 2002
) Official Records, Document 02-22771 October 14, 2002
Kings
Official Records, Document 02-2379242 October 9, 2002
Los Angeles
Official Records, Document 02-0883135 October 11, 2002
Orange
Riverside Official Records, Document 02-568597 October 11, 2002
. Official Records, Document 02-0541056 October 10, 2002
San Bernardino
. Official Records, Document 02-0878743 October 10, 2002
San Diego
. . Official Records, Document 02-107564 December 9, 2002
San Luis Obispo
Official Records, Document 02-0102671 October 11, 2002

Santa Barbara

Tulare



Official Records, Document 02-0079534 October 11, 2002

Official Records, Document 02-0247870 October 11, 2002
Ventura

WHEREAS, bonds of the Corporation of three (3) series designated, respectively, as its "First Mortgage Bonds, Series EE, due 2025," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series FF, due 2003" and "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series GG, Due 2012" are outstanding as a part of the First Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, each such series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further appropriate
action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, being without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of the Indenture, the Board of Directors has, by resolution duly adopted and delivered to the Trustee, created, as a part of the First
Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, a new series of bonds designated "First Mortgage Bonds, Series HH, due 2018" (the "Series HH Bonds"), to be of the form, terms and provisions
provided in that resolution and herein, which new series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further appropriate action by the Board of Directors, is to be without limitation as to aggregate
authorized principal amount and of which series of bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $250,000,000 are to be presently issued; and

WHEREAS, it is provided in the Indenture that all the business, franchises and properties, real, personal, and mixed, of every kind and nature whatsoever and wheresoever situated, which might
thereafter be acquired by the Corporation, shall be as fully embraced within the lien thereof as if said properties were owned by the Corporation at the date of the Base Indenture and were
particularly described therein and specifically conveyed thereby, excepting certain properties expressly excepted by the provisions of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the execution of the most recently recorded Prior Supplemental Indenture identifying after acquired property, the Corporation has acquired properties hereinafter
mentioned or referred to, all of which properties, upon the acquisition thereof by the Corporation, became and now are subject to the lien, operation and effect of the Indenture by virtue of the after-
acquired property clause or other clauses thereof; the Corporation, nevertheless, desires to execute, acknowledge, deliver and cause to be recorded this Supplemental Indenture for the purposes,
among others, of expressly and specifically subjecting such after-acquired properties to the lien of the Indenture and of further assuring and confirming the lien of the Indenture on all of the
properties of every kind and character, whether real or

personal and regardless of the date of acquisition thereof by the Corporation, intended to be subjected to the lien thereof; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 16.01 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Trustee may execute and deliver a Supplemental Indenture (i) to set forth the particulars,
permitted by Section 2.01 of the Indenture, as to which the Series HH Bonds may vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds, and (ii) for any purpose not inconsistent with
the terms of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the making, executing, delivering and recording of this Supplemental Indenture have been duly authorized by proper corporate action of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the issuance of the Series HH Bonds and the encumbrances of the Corporation's property to secure the Series HH Bonds pursuant to this Supplemental Indenture have been authorized
by the Public Utilities Commission of the State of California:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and of other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order: (a) to set forth or specify (i)
the form of the fully registered Series HH Bonds, and the form of the certificate to be endorsed on all Series HH Bonds, and (ii) the terms and provisions of the Series HH Bonds, including the
particulars thereof which vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds; and (b) further to secure the payment of both the principal of and interest on the bonds of the
Corporation now or at any time hereafter outstanding under the Indenture, including specifically, but without limitation, all of the First Mortgage Bonds now outstanding and the $250,000,000
aggregate principal amount of Series HH Bonds and further to secure the observance and performance of all of the covenants, agreements and conditions contained in the Indenture, and without in
any way limiting the generality or effect of the Indenture insofar as by any provision thereof any of the property therein or hereafter described or referred to is now subject or intended to be subject
to the lien and operation thereof, but to such extent confirming such lien and operation, the Corporation has executed and delivered this Supplemental Indenture and has granted, bargained, sold,
released, conveyed, mortgaged, assigned, transferred, pledged, set over and confirmed, and does hereby grant, bargain, sell, release, convey, mortgage, assign, transfer, pledge, set over and confirm
unto U.S. Bank National Association, the Trustee, and to its successors or successors in the trust created by the Indenture, and to its and their assigns, forever, with power of sale, subject, to the
extent applicable by the terms of the Indenture to any of the properties hereinafter referred to or described, to the exceptions (other than as expressly provided in the granting clauses of the Prior
Supplemental Indentures dated respectively as of June 1, 1956, J uly 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964 and December 1, 1966 with respect to exception (f) set forth on page
67 of the Base Indenture and reading as follows: "(f) Any gas and/or oil acreage, gas and/or oil wells, gas and/or oil reserves, or gas and/or oil leaseholds hereafter acquired by the Corporation, or
any property or equipment now or hereafter owned by the Corporation and used for the development of gas and/or oil acreage or for the drilling for or production of gas and/or oil from such
acreage;" which exception (f) is by said granting clauses expressly made inapplicable to certain therein specified parcels of property), reservations, conditions, terms and provisions provided in the
Indenture with respect to properties subject or intended to be subject thereto, all of the properties and assets of the Corporation, real, personal and mixed, of every kind and character, whether now or
hereafter

owned by the Corporation and wheresoever situated, including, without in any way limiting or modifying the generality or effect of the foregoing, all and singular, the following properties:

FIRST: All of the lots, pieces and parcels of land and rights or interests in real property situated in the Counties in the State of California, specifically described and mentioned or enumerated in

Schedule A attached hereto, to which reference is hereby made and the same is made a part hereof with the same force and effect as if the same were here set forth at length.

SECOND: All and singular the plants, properties, equipment, real and personal property, estates, interests, goodwill, generating, transmission, feeding, storing, and distribution systems, and utilities
of the Corporation situated in the Counties of Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Kings, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Tulare and Ventura, and
elsewhere, in the State of California, with all and singular the franchises, ordinances, grants, easements, licenses, powers, immunities, permits, privileges, appurtenances, tenements and other rights
and property thereunto appertaining or belonging, as the same now exist and as the same and any and all parts thereof may hereafter exist or be improved, added to, enlarged, extended or acquired in
said counties or elsewhere in said state or any other state or states.

THIRD: All other property, real, personal and mixed, of every kind, nature and description (including, without in any way limiting the effect or the generality hereof, all facilities; all stocks, bonds
and other securities from time to time conveyed, assigned, transferred, mortgaged or pledged on behalf of the Corporation, or with its consent, to the Trustee in the manner and for the purposes as
provided in the Indenture; all gas manufacturing plants, boilers, engines, compressors, motors, pumps, generators, gasholders, tanks, appliances, oil storage facilities, gas storage facilities, wells,
buildings, structures, plants, works and other improvements; all gas transmission and distributing lines and systems; all meters and regulators and all other apparatus, machinery, appliances, tools,
furniture, fixtures, supplies, facilities and utilities and other personal property; or any right or interest in any thereof; all business and goodwill, rights, consents, franchises, ordinances, license s,
agreements, contracts, permits, easements, rights of way, leases and leasehold interests; powers, grants, privileges and immunities to construct, operate and. maintain lines and other facilities or
properties for conveying gas or other commodity or utility for any purpose or purposes through, under and over public streets or highways, or public or private places or property; all reversions,
remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues and profits of any property, real, personal and mixed; and all other classes and types of property described or referred to in the Indenture),
now or hereafter owned, held, possessed, acquired or enjoyed by or in any manner conferred upon or appertaining to the Corporation, including the interest of the Corporation in all leases now or
hereafter owned by it, together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances belonging or in any way appertaining to each and every part of any and all property subject or
intended to be subject to the lien and operation of the Indenture, and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues and profits thereof.

SAVING AND EXCEPTING, however, from the property hereby mortgaged, conveyed in trust and/or pledged, all property, whether now owned by the Corporation or hereafter acquired by it,
expressly saved and excepted from the lien of the Indenture and therein referred

to as the "excepted property" (except as otherwise expressly provided in any Prior Supplemental Indenture hereinabove mentioned with respect to exception (f) of said "excepted property"), unless
and until, upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Indenture, the Trustee, or any receiver appointed thereunder, shall take possession of any or all of such excepted property.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD in trust with power of sale for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of all holders of bonds of the Corporation, now or hereafter outstanding under the
Indenture as from time to time in effect, and for the enforcement and payment of said bonds and interest thereon when payable, and the performance of and compliance with the covenants and
conditions of the Indenture as from time to time in effect, without any preference, distinction or priority as to lien or otherwise of any of said bonds over any others thereof by reason of the
difference in the time of the actual issue, sale or negotiation thereof, or for any other reason whatsoever, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture as from time to time in effect, so that
each and every such bond shall have the same lien and so that the principal and interest of every such bond shall, subject to the terms thereof, be equally and proportionately secured by said lien, as
if such bond had been made, executed, delivered, sold and negotiated simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Base Indenture.

IT IS HEREBY COVENANTED, DECLARED, AND AGREED by and between the parties hereto that all such bonds are issued, authenticated and delivered, or are to be issued, authenticated and
delivered, and that all property subject, or to become subject, to the Indenture is to be held, subject to the covenants, conditions, uses and trusts therein set forth.

ARTICLE 1
AMOUNT, FORM, NUMBERING, DENOMINATION, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF SERIES HH BONDS, DUE 2018

Section 1.01. The Series HH Bonds may be issued at any time or from time to time upon and subject to the terms and provisions of the Indenture. Unless and until the taking of further appropriate
action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation the Series HH Bonds shall be without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount.

Section 1.02. The Series HH Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons. In addition, the Series HH Bonds may be issuable in whole or in part in the form of one or more
securities that evidences all or part of the bonds of such series which is issued to a depository or a nominee thereof for such series (a "Global Security") and, in such case, the Board of Directors shall
appoint a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), designated to act as depositary (a "depositary") for such Global Securities.




Section 1.03. In the event the Series HH Bonds are issued as a Global Security the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of the Indenture, shall apply:
(a) Each Global Security authenticated under the Indenture shall be registered in the name of the depositary designated for such Global Security or a nominee thereof
and delivered to such depositary or a nominee thereof or custodian therefor, and each such Global Security shall constitute a single bond for all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision in this Supplemental Indenture, no Global Security may be exchanged in whole or in part for bonds registered, and no transfer of a Global Security in whole
or in part may be registered, in the name of any person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof unless (A) such depositary has notified the Corporation that it is
unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such Global Security and a successor depositary has not been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days of receipt by the Corporation of such
notification, (B) if at any time the depositary ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act at a time when the depositary is required to be so registered to act as such depositary
and no successor depositary shall have been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days after it became aware of such cessation, (C) the Corporation, in its sole discretion, executes and delivers to
the Trustee a written order signe d in the name of the Corporation by its Chairman of the Board, its President or a Vice President, and by its Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer, its Secretary or an
Assistant Secretary to the effect that such Global Security, together with all other Global Securities of the same series, shall be exchangeable as described below, or (D) an Event of Default (as
defined in Section 1.02 of the Indenture) has occurred and is continuing with respect to the Series HH Bonds. If any of the events described in clauses (A) through (D) of the preceding sentence
occur, the beneficial owners of interests in the relevant Global Securities will be entitled to exchange those interests for definitive bonds and, without unnecessary delay but in any event not later
than the earliest date on which those interests may be so exchanged, the Corporation will deliver to the Trustee definitive bonds in such form and denominations as are required by or pursuant to this
Indenture, and of the same series, containing identical terms and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Securities, such bonds to be duly executed by the
Corporation.. On or after the earliest date on which such beneficial interests may be so exchanged, such Global Securities shall be surrendered from time to time by the depositary as shall be
specified in the order from the Corporation with respect thereto (which the Corporation agrees to deliver), and in accordance with any instructions given to the Trustee and the depositary (which
instructions shall be in writing but need not be contained in or accompanied by an officers' certificate or be accompanied by an opinion of counsel), as shall be specified in the order from the
Corporation with respect thereto to the Trustee, as the Corporation's agent for such purpose, to be exchanged, in whole or in part, for definitive bonds as described above without charge. The Trustee
shall authenticate and make available for delivery, in exchange for each portion of such surrendered Global Security, a like aggregate principal amount of definitive bonds of the same series of
authorized denominations and of like tenor as the portion of such Global Security to be exchanged. Promptly following any such exchange in part, such Global Security shall be returned by the
Trustee to such depositary or its custodian. If a definitive bond is issued in exchange for any portion of a Global Security after the close of business at the place where such exchange occurs on or
after (i) any regular record date for the date the interest is due (the "Interest Payment Date") for such bond and before the opening of business at that place of payment on the next Interest Payment
Date, or (ii) any special record date for the

payment of interest for such bond and before the opening of business at such place of payment on the related proposed date for the payment of the interest which was not punctually paid or duly
provided for on any Interest Payment Date ("Defaulted Interest"), as the case may be, interest shall not be payable on such Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be,
in respect of such definitive bond, but shall be payable on the Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, only to the person to whom interest in respect of such portion
of such Global Security shall be payable in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.

(c) Subject to Clause (b) above, any exchange or transfer of a Global Security for other bonds may be made in whole or in part, and all bonds issued in exchange for or upon transfer of a Global
Security or any portion thereof shall be registered in such names as the depositary for such Global Security shall direct.

(d) Every bond authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for or in lieu of, a Global Security or any portion thereof, shall be authenticated and delivered in the form
of, and shall be, a Global Security, unless such bond is registered in the name of a person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof.

Section 1.04. Unless otherwise specified as contemplated by Section 2.01 for the bonds evidenced thereby, every Global Security authenticated and delivered hereunder shall bear a legend in
substantially the following form:

THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A
DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER
OF THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF,
EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE
BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 1.05. The fully registered bonds without coupons and the certificate of authentication to be endorsed on all Series HH Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth on Exhibit A.

Section 1.06. The Series HH Bonds may contain or have imprinted thereon such provisions or specifications not inconsistent with the Indenture as may be required to comply with the rules of any
stock exchange or any federal or state authority or commission, or to comply with usage with respect thereto; and may bear such other appropriate endorsements or notations as are authorized or
permitted by the Indenture.

Section 1.07. The fully registered Series HH Bonds shall be issuable in denominations of $1,000, $5,000, $10,000, $25,000 or multiples of $25,000 and shall be dated as provided in paragraph 1 of
Section 2.01 of the Indenture. The definitive Series HH Bonds shall be numbered in such manner as the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time determine.

Section 1.08. In the manner and subject to certain conditions and limitations specified herein and in the Indenture, Series HH Bonds may be exchanged without a service charge for a like aggregate
principal amount of such Series HH Bonds of other authorized denomination or denominations; provided that the Corporation may require payment of a sum or sums sufficient to reimburse it for
any stamp tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Section 1.09. The Corporation shall maintain in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California, and in such other place or places as the Corporation may designate at any time or from
time to time, an office or agency where Series HH Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture. Such office or agency in the City
and County of San Francisco shall be the corporate trust office of the Trustee unless and until the Corporation shall designate another office or agency by notice in writing delivered to the Trustee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and when definitive bonds are issued, the Corporation shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, an office or
agency where Series HH Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture.

Section 1.10. No transfer or exchange of any Series HH Bonds pursuant to any of the provisions of this Article I shall be made except upon and in accordance with all of the applicable terms,
provisions and conditions of said bonds and of the Indenture.

ARTICLE II
INTEREST, MATURITY DATE, REDEMPTION AND CERTAIN OTHER PROVISIONS OF SERIES HH BONDS, DUE 2018

Section 2.01. The Series HH Bonds shall bear interest at the rate, shall be expressed to mature as to principal, and shall be payable as to principal and interest at such place or places and in such
money, all as provided in the form of Series HH Bond set forth on Exhibit A hereto and by the applicable provisions of the Indenture. In addition, October 17, 2003 shall be an Interest Payment Date
for the Series HH Bonds for purposes of Section 2.01 of the Base Indenture (as supplemented by the Prior Supplemental Indentures), provided that no interest shall be payable on such date.

Section 2.02. The Series HH Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in the form of Series HH Bond set forth on Exhibit A, upon notice, in the manner and otherwise upon
the terms and conditions and with the effect, as provided herein and by the applicable provisions of the Indenture.

Section 2.03. The Corporation may at any time deliver to the Trustee for cancellation any Series HH Bonds previously authenticated and delivered under the Indenture which the

Corporation may have acquired in any manner whatsoever and all Series HH Bonds so delivered shall be promptly cancelled by the Trustee upon the request of the Corporation.

Section 2.04. The Series HH Bonds shall, except as in this Supplemental Indenture otherwise expressly provided, be on the terms and provisions, and shall represent such rights and be entitled to
such benefits, as are applicable thereto by the terms of the Indenture.

Section 2.05. The Series HH Bonds shall be entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the Indenture.

Section 2.06. The following Section 11.01A shall apply to the Series HH Bonds in lieu of Section 11.01 of the Indenture:



"Section 11.01A If the Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall
(a) pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on the bonds and coupons and claims for interest thereon to become due at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and herein, and/or

(b) provide for the payment of the bonds and interest thereon by depositing in cash with the Trustee or other depositary satisfactory to it at any time at or before maturity the entire amount due or to
become due thereon for principal and interest to maturity of all the bonds outstanding, and/or

(c) in case of a call of all of the bonds then outstanding for redemption, deposit with the Trustee on or before the date on which all of such bonds (other than those which shall have matured by their
terms) shall have been called for redemption, as provided in Article VII, the entire amount of the redemption price thereof, including interest and premium, if any, and shall deliver to the Trustee (1)
proof satisfactory to the Trustee that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given, or (2) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that arrangements have been made insuring that such
notice will be given, or (3) a written instrument executed by the Corporation under its corporate seal, and expressed to be irrevocable, authorizing the Trustee to give such notice for and on behalf of
the Corporation, and/or

(d) surrender to the Trustee for cancellation all the bonds and coupons thereto appertaining for which payment is not so provided,
and shall also pay, or satisfactorily provide, all other sums due and payable hereunder by the Corporation, including the compensation and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

(i) at the request of the Corporation all the mortgaged property shall revert to the Corporation and the entire estate, right, title and interest of the Trustee and of the holders and registered owners of
the bonds and coupons in respect of the mortgaged property shall thereupon cease, determine and become void; and

(ii) the Trustee in such case, upon the cancellation of all outstanding bonds and coupons for the payment of which cash shall not have been deposited in accordance

with the provisions of this Indenture, shall upon request of the Corporation, and at its cost and expense (A) and upon delivery to it of an opinion of counsel stating that (x) the Corporation has
received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (y) since October 14, 2003 there has been a change in applicable federal income tax law, in either case to the
effect that, and based thereon such opinion of counsel shall confirm that, the holders of Series HH Bonds will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such
defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such defeasance had not occurred, execute to the
Corporation, or its order, proper instruments acknowledging satisfaction of this Indenture and (B) shall surrender to the Corporation, or its order, all cash and deposited securities, if any, which shall
then be hel d by it hereunder as a part of the mortgaged property (exclusive of cash held in trust as provided in Section 5.03); provided, however, that if any such property shall have been delivered
to the Trustee by any person or corporation other than the Corporation, the same shall be delivered or otherwise disposed of in accordance with any reservations, limitations, conditions or provisions
which may have been set forth in the instrument in writing then executed, if any, respecting the use, management or disposition thereof; and provided further that if the Corporation pursuant to
clauses (1) or (2) of subdivision (c) above shall have delivered to the Trustee proof satisfactory to it that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given or that arrangements have
been made insuring that such notice will be given, there shall also be delivered to the Trustee an officers' certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of this
Indenture have been complied with and an opinion of counsel stating that in his opinion such conditions precedent have been complied with."

ARTICLE III
SUNDRY PROVISIONS

Section 3.01. The recitals of fact contained herein shall be taken as the statements of the Corporation, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of the same. The Corporation
hereby covenants and agrees that it will cause this Supplemental Indenture to be kept recorded and/or filed as may be required by law, in such manner and in such places as may be necessary fully to
preserve and protect the security of the bondholders and all of the rights of the Trustee hereunder, and that it will with all reasonable dispatch deposit with the Trustee counterparts of this
Supplemental Indenture bearing official notation or endorsements showing such recordation and/or filing, or in case such counterparts are not returned to the Corporation, furnish to the Trustee the
best official evidence of such recordation and/or filing reasonably obtainable by the Corporation, or evidence of the taking of such other action, if any, but the Trustee, subject to the provisions of
Sections 14.02 and 14.03 of the Indenture, shall in no way be liable for any failure or omission in this regard.

Section 3.02. The date of this Supplemental Indenture and the date of the Series HH Bonds are intended as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Supplemental Indenture and of the
Series HH Bonds, and are not intended to indicate that this Supplemental Indenture was executed and delivered or that the Series HH Bonds were executed, delivered or

issued on said date; it being hereby provided that this Supplemental Indenture may be executed and delivered, and that the Series HH Bonds may be executed, delivered or issued, either on said date
or before or after said date, and that this Supplemental Indenture is in fact executed and delivered by each party hereto on the date of its certificate of acknowledgment hereto attached.

Section 3.03. This Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to be part of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation agrees to conform to and comply with all and singular the terms, provisions,
conditions and covenants set forth therein and herein. This Supplemental Indenture shall be construed in connection with and as a part of the Indenture.

Section 3.04. It is further agreed that the Trustee accepts the trust imposed upon it by this Supplemental Indenture, upon and subject to the same terms and conditions as are expressed in Article XIV
of the Base Indenture.

Section 3.05. In order to facilitate the recording of this Supplemental Indenture, the same may be, executed in several counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and
such counterparts shall collectively constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 3.06. All terms used in this Supplemental Indenture which are defined in the Indenture are not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Indenture.

Section 3.07. To the extent any provision in this Supplemental Indenture conflicts with any provision in the Indenture, the provisions of this Supplemental Indenture shall govern; provided however,
that in the event such conflict would require bondholder consent, the terms and provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

Section 3.08. This Supplemental Indenture and the Series HH Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles thereof.

Section 3.09. To the extent not otherwise addressed in this Supplemental Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture shall be subject to the provisions of Article XVII of the Indenture, the terms of
which are hereby incorporated by referenced into this Indenture Supplement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly

affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its
authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of October 17, 2003.

Attest: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

'S/'W. DAVIS SMITH /S/ TERRY M. FLESKES

Name: W. Davis Smith Name: Terry M. Fleskes

Title: Assistant Secretary Title: Vice President and Treasurer
Attest:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:




Name: Ashraf Almurdaah Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President Title: Vice President

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On this 15..day of October, 2003, before me, . ..., Notary Public, personally appeared Terry M. Fleskes, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are subscribed to
the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument, the entity upon behalf of which he acted executed
the instrument.

witness my hand and official seal.
Notary Public

My Commission expires .....................

DEBORA R. COVEY . Commission # 1294854

Notary Public California San Diego County My comm. Expires Mar 20, 2005

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On this 15_day of October, 2003, before me, ..........cccccevvvrnnee. Notary Public, personally appeared W. Davis Smith, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are subscribed to
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity and that by his signature on the instrument, the entity upon behalf of which he acted executed the
instrument.

witness my hand and official seal.
Notary Public

My Commission expires ....................
DEBORA R. COVEY . Commission # 1294854

Notary Public California San Diego County My comm. Expires Mar 20, 2005

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has caused
this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of October 17, 2003.

Attest: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

By:

Name: W. Davis Smith Name: Terry M. Fleskes

Title: Assistant Secretary Title: Vice President and Treasurer

Attest:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State of California

County of Los Angeles

/S/IASHRAF ALMURDAAH

/S/IFONDA HALL

Name: Ashraf Almurdaah

Title: Vice President

Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President



On October 16, 2003, before me, Ismael Diaz, Notary Public, personally appeared Fonda Hall and Ashraf Almurdaah, personally known to me, to be the person(s) whose name(s) are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me
that they executed the same in their authorized capacity(ies), and that by their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
Ismael Diaz

Commission # 1242949

Notary Public-California

Los Angeles County

My Comm. Expires Nov. 22, 2003

SCHEDULE A
Incorporated in and made a part of the Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 17, 2003, by and among Southern California Gas Company and U.S. Bank National Association, Trustee.
The descriptive names or captions do not constitute a part of the property descriptions, being used only for convenience of reference and not identification.
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO
Those certain lots, pieces and parcels of land and other property, rights and estates situated in the County of San Bernardino, State of California, described as follows:
San Bernardino Base (Adjacent Parcel)

THAT PORTION OF LOT 17, LYING SOUTH OF THE ATCHISON, TOPEKA AND SANTA FE RAILROAD RIGHT OF WAY, IN BLOCK 11, OF RANCHO SAN BERNARDINO, IN THE
CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO, COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 7 OF MAPS, PAGE 2, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 17, ADJOINING THE SOUTH LINE OF THE ATCHISON, TOPEKA AND SANTA FE RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT, 140 FEET; THENCE EAST 200 FEET; THENCE NORTH 140 FEET; THENCE WEST 200 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER: 0136-101-15
San Bernardino Base (Adjacent Parcel)
PARCEL 1:

THAT PORTION OF LOT 17, BLOCK 11 OF RANCHO SAN BERNARDINO, IN THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK
7, OF MAPS, PAGE 2, RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID 17 WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF ATCHISON, TOPEKA AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY RIGHT OF
WAY; THENCE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT, SOUTH 220 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY 240.54 FEET TO
THE EAST LINE OF THE LAND CONVEYED TO THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY BY DEED RECORDED JULY 26, 1938, IN BOOK 1290, PAGE 101, OFFICIAL
RECORDS; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID GAS COMPANY LAND 220 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID RAILWAY RIGHT OF

WAY; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID RAILWAY RIGHT OF WAY 240.44 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.
PARCEL 2:
AN EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS OVER PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PORTION OF LOTS 16 AND 17, BLOCK 11, RANCHO SAN BERNARDINO, IN THE CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO, AS PER PLAT RECORDED IN BOOK 7, OF MAPS, PAGE 2,
RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE EAST LINE OF "G" STREET WHICH IS 155 FEET SOUTH MEASURED ALONG SAID LINE FROM THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 16, SAID
POINT ALSO BEING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE SIGNAL OIL COMPANY BY DEED RECORDED FEBRUARY 9, 1942,
IN BOOK 1514, PAGE 419, OFFICIAL RECORDS;

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SIGNAL OIL COMPANY LAND AND THE EASTERLY EXTENSION THEREOF 400 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF
THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE SIGNAL OIL COMPANY BY DEED RECORDED JANUARY 19, 1946, IN BOOK 1861, PAGE 231, OFFICIAL RECORDS;
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID OIL COMPANY'S LAND AND OF LAND CONVEYED TO THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY BY DEED
RECORDED JULY 26, 1938, IN BOOK 1290, PAGE 101, OFFICIAL RECORDS, 254.86 FEET TO A POINT DISTANT 220 FEET SOUTH OF THE SOUTH LINE AT THE ATCHISON,
TOPEKA AND SANTA FE RAILWAY COMPANY RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE EAST 30 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 284.86 FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS 504.86 FEET SOUTH OF THE SAID
SOUTH LINE OF SAID RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE WEST 430 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF "G" STREET; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID LAST NAMED LINE 30 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER: 131-101-14

EXHIBIT A
[FORM OF REGISTERED BOND WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES HH, DUE 2018]

[If this bond is issued as a global security, insert the following legend: THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A
SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH
DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF
FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.]

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
(Incorporated under the laws of the State of California)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND, SERIES HH, DUE 2018
5.45%



No.
CUSIP No. 842434 CD 2

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Corporation", which term shall include any
successor corporation, as defined in the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to_[If this bond is issued as a global security, insert "CEDE & CO." in the
foregoing - space] or registered assigns, the principal sum of in lawful money of the United States of America, on the fifteenth day of April, 2018, and to pay interest thereon from the date of this
bond, at the rate of 5.45% per annum in like lawful money, payable semi-annually, on the fifteenth day of April and October in each year, to the holder of record of this bond on the immediately
preceding first day of April and October, respectively, commenci ng April 15, 2004, until the Corporation's obligation with respect to the payment of such principal shall be discharged as provided in
the Indenture hereinafter mentioned. Both the principal of and interest on this bond will be paid at the corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor trustee under said
Indenture, in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at the office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New
York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose"]. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the holder of the Series HH Bonds is a depositary, or its nominee, payment of
the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this bond will be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though set forth at this place.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY has caused this bond to be signed in its corporate name by the facsimile signature of its authorized officer and a facsimile
of its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and attested by its Secretary or an Assistant Secretary.

Dated:

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
(CORPORATE SEAL By

Vice President
Attest:
Secretary

[REVERSE SIDE - FORM OF REGISTERED BOND
WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES HH, DUE 2018]

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Corporation (herein called the "bonds"), of the series hereinafter specified, all issued and to be issued under and all equally and ratably
secured by a mortgage and deed of trust dated October 1, 1940, between the Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee, to which mortgage and deed of trust and all
indentures supplemental thereto, including Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, June 1, 1965, August I, 1972, May 1,
1976, September 15, 1981, May 18, 1984, November 15, 1986, January 15, 1988, August 15, 1992 and October 1, 2002 (herein collectively referred to as the "Indenture"), reference is hereby made
for a description of the property conveyed in trust, mortgaged and pledged, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the registered owners of the bonds and of the Trustee or trustees in
respect thereof, the terms and conditions upon w hich the bonds are, and are to be, secured and the circumstances under which additional bonds may be issued. The bonds may be issued for various
principal sums, and may be issued in series, which may mature at different times, may bear interest at different times, may bear interest at different rates and may otherwise vary as in the Indenture
provided. This bond in one of a series designated as the "First Mortgage Bonds, Series HH, due 2018" (herein called "Series HH" Bonds) of the Corporation, issued under and secured by the
Indenture. Terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned thereto in the Indenture.

As provided in the Indenture, by any indenture or indentures supplemental thereto executed by the Corporation and the Trustee and consented to by the holders of not less than two-thirds (2/3) in
principal amount of the bonds at the time outstanding, and, in case one or more, but less than all, of the series of bonds then outstanding are affected by such supplemental indenture, consented to
by the holders of at least two-thirds (%/3) in principal amount of the bonds of each series so affected, the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto and the rights and obligations of the
Corporation and the holders of bonds, may be modified or altered from time to time, as provided in the Indenture; provided, however, (a) that the right of any holder of any bond to receive payment
of the principal of and interest on such bond, on or after the respective due dates expressed in such bond, or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such respective dates
, shall not be impaired or affected by any such supplemental indenture without the consent of such holder, and (b) that no such modification or alteration shall reduce the proportions of
bondholders' consents required as aforesaid; such proportions to be determined in each case as provided in the Indenture.

The Series HH Bonds are entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the Indenture.
All or a portion of the Series HH Bonds may be redeemed at the Corporation's option at any time or from time to time.

The price at which the Series HH Bonds will be redeemed (the "Redemption Price") on the date fixed for such redemption (the "Redemption Date") will be equal to the greater of the following
amounts: (a) 100% of the principal amount of the bonds being redeemed on the

Redemption Date; or (b) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Series HH Bonds being redeemed on that Redemption Date (not
including any portion of any payments of accrued and unpaid interest to the Redemption Date) discounted to the Redemption Date on a semiannual basis at the Adjusted Treasury Rate (as defined
below) plus 20 basis points, as determined by the Reference Treasury Dealer (as defined below), plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, installments of interest on Series HH Bonds that are due and payable on Interest Payment Dates falling on or prior to a Redemption Date will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates
to the registered holders of such Series HH Bonds as of the close of business on the relevant record date. The Redemption Price will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve
30-day months.

Unless the Corporation defaults in payment of the Redemption Price, on and after the Redemption Date interest will cease to accrue on the Series HH Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption.

"Adjusted Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price
for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such Redemption Date.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by the Reference Treasury Dealer as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Series HH Bonds to
be redeemed that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the
remaining term of such Series HH Bonds.

"Comparable Treasury Price"” means, with respect to any Redemption Date, (4) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such Redemption Date, or (B) if only one Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotation is received, such Quotation.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (4) ABN AMRO Incorporated and Banc One Capital Markets, Inc. (or their respective affiliates which are Primary Treasury Dealers), and their respective
successors, provided, however, that if any of the foregoing shall cease to be a

primary U.S. Government securities dealer in New York City (a "Primary Treasury Dealer"), the Corporation will substitute therefor another Primary Treasury Dealer(s); and (B) any other Primary
Treasury Dealer selected by the Corporation.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any Redemption Date, the average, as determined by the Corporation, of the bid and asked
prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its

principal amount) quoted in writing to the Corporation by such Reference Treasury Dealer at 5:00 p.m. (New York City time) on the third business day preceding such Redemption Date.

In the event of redemption of this bond in part only, a new bond or Series HH Bonds and of like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the name of the holder hereof upon the
cancellation hereof.

Notice of any such redemption will be mailed to the registered owners of the Series HH Bonds to be redeemed not less than 30 nor more than 60 days before the Redemption Date. Once notice of
redemption is mailed, the Series HH Bonds called for redemption will become due and payable on the Redemption Date and at the applicable redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest to
the Redemption Date. Upon the Corporation's election to redeem all or a portion of the Series HH Bonds, that redemption will not be conditional upon receipt by the paying agent or the Trustee of
monies sufficient to pay the Redemption Price.

In case an event of default, as defined in the Indenture, shall occur, the principal of all bonds then outstanding under the Indenture may be declared or become due and payable upon the conditions
and in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

This bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof at the office or agency of the Corporation in said City and County of San Francisco [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at the
office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose”] and in such other place or places as the
Corporation may designate at any time or from time to time, and thereupon a new fully registered bond or bonds of said series, without coupons, of authorized denomination or denominations, of a
like aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange for this bond; and at any of said offices or agencies fully registered Series HH Bonds without coupons,



are exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of other such fully registered bonds of authorized denominations; all in the manner and subject to the conditions as provided in the
Indenture.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this bond or for any claim based hereon or on the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto, against any
incorporator, stockholder, director or officer, past, present or future, of the Corporation, or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Corporation, or any such
predecessor or successor corporation, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or otherwise, all such liability being waived

and released by every registered owner hereof by the acceptance of this bond and as part of the consideration for the issue hereof, and being likewise waived and released by the terms of the
Indenture.

This bond shall not become valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture until U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor as Trustee under the
Indenture, shall have signed the form of certificate endorsed hereon.

This bond shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof.

[FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION]
CERTIFICATE

This bond is one of the bonds, of the series designated therein, described in the withinmentioned Indenture.

U.S. BANK NaTIONAL AssociaTion Trustee

Authorized Officer
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THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of December 15, 2003 (this "Supplemental Indenture”), is made and entered into in the City of Los Angeles, State of California by and between
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and having its principal place of business in the City of Los
Angeles, State of California (hereinafter sometimes called the "Corporation”) and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (successor by merger to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, formerly
known as First Trust of California, National Association), an association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and having a corporate trust office in the City
and County of Los Angeles, State of California (hereinafter, together with its predecessors as trustees under the Indenture referred to below, sometimes called the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee a certain Indenture (hereinafter referred to as the "Base Indenture") dated October 1, 1940, to secure bonds of the
Corporation designated generally as its "First Mortgage Bonds" to be issued from time to time in one or more series, any of which series may vary from any other as to certain particulars specified
in Section 2.01 of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee supplemental indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April
1, 1952, August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, July 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964, June 1, 1965, December 1, 1966, October 1, 1970, August 1, 1972,
September 1, 1972, October 1, 1974, May 1, 1976, October 1, 1977, November 1, 1979, February 1, 1981, September 15, 1981, April 1, 1982, August 15, 1983, May 18, 1984, December 16, 1985,
March 1, 1986, November 15, 1986, December 1, 1986, January 15, 1988, June 15, 1988, November 1, 1988, December 1, 1990, October 1, 1991, August 15, 1992, December 15, 1992, March 1,
1993, June 15, 1993, November 1, 1993, November 15, 1993, October 1, 2002 and October 17, 2003 supplementing and amending the Base Indenture (each, a "Prior Supplemental Indenture,"” and
the Base Indenture together with all Prior Supplemental Indentures and this Supplemental Indenture being herein collectively referred to as the "Indenture"), and

WHEREAS, the Base Indenture and the Prior Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April 1, 1952 and August 1, 1955, are recorded in the office
of the County Recorder of each of the Counties listed below in the Official Records thereof; as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1956, the Prior Supplemental
Indentures dated, respectively, as of June I, 1956 and December 1, 1956, are so recorded as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 1, 1957, the Prior Supplemental Indenture
dated as of July 1, 1957 and each subsequently dated Prior Supplemental Indenture (other than the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated October 17, 2003) is so recorded as stated in the Prior
Supplemental Indenture dated as of the next succeeding date; and the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 17, 2003 is recorded in the offices of the County Recorders in the Counties
of the State of California, as follows:

County Reference Date
Official Records, Document 03-0287861 December 2, 2003
Fresno
. Official Records, Document 03-038644 December 9, 2003
Imperial
Kern Official Records, Document 03-0203229014 October 21, 2003
Kings Official Records, Document 03-30614 October 22, 2003
Official Records, Document 03-3178339 October 23, 2003

Los Angeles

Official Records, Document 03-001305591 October 23, 2003
Orange
. December 11,
Riverside Official Records, Document 03-970240 2003
. Official Records, Document 03-0800979 October 22, 2003
San Bernardino
. Official Records, Document 03-1309741 October 28, 2003
San Diego
. . Official Records, Document 03-123983 October 24, 2003
San Luis Obispo
Official Records, Document 03-0146116 October 22, 2003
Santa Barbara
Official Records, Document 03-0104290 October 22, 2003
Tulare
. November 12,
Ventura Official Records, Document 03-0433039 2003

WHEREAS, bonds of the Corporation of three (3) series designated, respectively, as its "First Mortgage Bonds, Series EE, due 2025," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series GG, Due 2012" and "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series HH, due 2018" are outstanding as a part of the First Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, each such series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further
appropriate action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, being without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of the Indenture, the Board of Directors has, by resolution duly adopted and delivered to the Trustee, created, as a part of the First
Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, a new series of bonds designated "First Mortgage Bonds, Series II, due 2011" (the "Series Il Bonds"), to be of the form, terms and provisions provided
in that resolution and herein, which new series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further appropriate action by the Board of Directors, is to be without limitation as to aggregate authorized
principal amount and of which series of bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $250,000,000 are to be presently issued, and

WHEREAS, it is provided in the Indenture that all the business, franchises and properties, real, personal, and mixed, of every kind and nature whatsoever and wheresoever situated, which might
thereafter be acquired by the Corporation, shall be as fully embraced within the lien thereof as if said properties were owned by the Corporation at the date of the Base Indenture and were
particularly described therein and specifically conveyed thereby, excepting certain properties expressly excepted by the provisions of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the execution of the most recently recorded Prior Supplemental Indenture identifying after acquired property, the Corporation has acquired properties hereinafter
mentioned or referred to, all of which properties, upon the acquisition thereof by the Corporation, became and now are subject to the lien, operation and effect of the Indenture by virtue of the after-
acquired property clause or other clauses thereof; the Corporation, nevertheless, desires to execute, acknowledge, deliver and cause to be recorded this Supplemental Indenture for the purposes,
among others, of expressly and specifically subjecting such after-acquired properties to the lien of the Indenture and of further assuring and confirming the lien of the Indenture on all of the
properties of every kind and character, whether real or



personal and regardless of the date of acquisition thereof by the Corporation, intended to be subjected to the lien thereof, and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 16.01 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Trustee may execute and deliver a Supplemental Indenture (i) to set forth the particulars,
permitted by Section 2.01 of the Indenture, as to which the Series II Bonds may vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds, and (ii) for any purpose not inconsistent with the
terms of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the making, executing, delivering and recording of this Supplemental Indenture have been duly authorized by proper corporate action of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the issuance of the Series II Bonds and the encumbrances of the Corporation's property to secure the Series Il Bonds pursuant to this Supplemental Indenture have been authorized by
the Public Utilities Commission of the State of California:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and of other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order: (a) to set forth or specify (i)
the form of the fully registered Series II Bonds, and the form of the certificate to be endorsed on all Series II Bonds, and (ii) the terms and provisions of the Series II Bonds, including the particulars
thereof which vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds; and (b) further to secure the payment of both the principal of and interest on the bonds of the Corporation now or
at any time hereafter outstanding under the Indenture, including specifically, but without limitation, all of the First Mortgage Bonds now outstanding and the $250,000,000 aggregate principal
amount of Series II Bonds and further to secure the observance and performance of all of the covenants, agreements and conditions contained in the Indenture, and without in any way limiting the
generality or effect of the Indenture insofar as by any provision thereof any of the property therein or hereafter described or referred to is now subject or intended to be subject to the lien and
operation thereof, but to such extent confirming such lien and operation, the Corporation has executed and delivered this Supplemental Indenture and has granted, bargained, sold, released,
conveyed, mortgaged, assigned, transferred, pledged, set over and confirmed, and does hereby grant, bargain, sell, release, convey, mortgage, assign, transfer, pledge, set over and confirm unto
U.S. Bank National Association, the Trustee, and to its successors or successors in the trust created by the Indenture, and to its and their assigns, forever, with power of sale, subject, to the extent
applicable by the terms of the Indenture to any of the properties hereinafier referred to or described, to the exceptions (other than as expressly provided in the granting clauses of the Prior
Supplemental Indentures dated respectively as of June 1, 1956, July 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964 and December 1, 1966 with respect to exception (f) set forth on page
67 of the Base Indenture and reading as follows: "(f) Any gas and/or oil acreage, gas and/or oil wells, gas and/or oil reserves, or gas and/or oil leaseholds hereafter acquired by the Corporation, or
any property or equipment now or hereafter owned by the Corporation and used for the development of gas and/or oil acreage or for the drilling for or production of gas and/or oil from such
acreage; " which exception (f) is by said granting clauses expressly made inapplicable to certain therein specified parcels of property), reservations, conditions, terms and provisions provided in the
Indenture with respect to properties subject or intended to be subject thereto, all of the properties and assets of the Corporation, real, personal and mixed, of every kind and character, whether now
or hereafter

owned by the Corporation and wheresoever situated, including, without in any way limiting or modifying the generality or effect of the foregoing, all and singular, the following properties:

FIRST: All and singular the plants, properties, equipment, real and personal property, estates, interests, goodwill, generating, transmission, feeding, storing, and distribution systems, and utilities of
the Corporation situated in the Counties of Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Kings, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Tulare and Ventura, and
elsewhere, in the State of California, with all and singular the franchises, ordinances, grants, easements, licenses, powers, immunities, permits, privileges, appurtenances, tenements and other rights
and property thereunto appertaining or belonging, as the same now exist and as the same and any and all parts thereof may hereafter exist or be improved, added to, enlarged, extended or acquired
in said counties or elsewhere in said state or any other state or states.

SECOND: All other property, real, personal and mixed, of every kind, nature and description (including, without in any way limiting the effect or the generality hereof, all facilities; all stocks, bonds
and other securities from time to time conveyed, assigned, transferred, mortgaged or pledged on behalf of the Corporation, or with its consent, to the Trustee in the manner and for the purposes as
provided in the Indenture; all gas manufacturing plants, boilers, engines, compressors, motors, pumps, generators, gasholders, tanks, appliances, oil storage facilities, gas storage facilities, wells,
buildings, structures, plants, works and other improvements, all gas transmission and distributing lines and systems; all meters and regulators and all other apparatus, machinery, appliances, tools,
Sfurniture, fixtures, supplies, facilities and utilities and other personal property; or any right or interest in any thereof; all business and goodwill, rights, consents, franchises, ordinances, licens es,
agreements, contracts, permits, easements, rights of way, leases and leasehold interests; powers, grants, privileges and immunities to construct, operate and maintain lines and other facilities or
properties for conveying gas or other commodity or utility for any purpose or purposes through, under and over public streets or highways, or public or private places or property, all reversions,
remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues and profits of any property, real, personal and mixed; and all other classes and types of property described or referred to in the
Indenture), now or hereafter owned, held, possessed, acquired or enjoyed by or in any manner conferred upon or appertaining to the Corporation, including the interest of the Corporation in all
leases now or hereafter owned by it, together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances belonging or in any way appertaining to each and every part of any and all
property subject or intended to be subject to the lien and operation of the Indenture, and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues and
profits thereof.

SAVING AND EXCEPTING, however, from the property hereby mortgaged, conveyed in trust and/or pledged, all property, whether now owned by the Corporation or hereafter acquired by it,
expressly saved and excepted from the lien of the Indenture and therein referred to as the "excepted property” (except as otherwise expressly provided in any Prior Supplemental Indenture
hereinabove mentioned with respect to exception (f) of said "excepted property"), unless and until, upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Indenture, the Trustee, or any receiver
appointed thereunder, shall take possession of any or all of such excepted property.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD in trust with power of sale for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of all holders of bonds of the Corporation, now or hereafter outstanding under the
Indenture as from time to time in effect, and for the enforcement and payment of said bonds and interest thereon when payable, and the performance of and compliance with the covenants and
conditions of the Indenture as from time to time in effect, without any preference, distinction or priority as to lien or otherwise of any of said bonds over any others thereof by reason of the difference
in the time of the actual issue, sale or negotiation thereof, or for any other reason whatsoever, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture as from time to time in effect, so that each and
every such bond shall have the same lien and so that the principal and interest of every such bond shall, subject to the terms thereof, be equally and proportionately secured by said lien, as if such
bond had been made, exec uted, delivered, sold and negotiated simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Base Indenture.

IT IS HEREBY COVENANTED, DECLARED, AND AGREED by and between the parties hereto that all such bonds are issued, authenticated and delivered, or are to be issued, authenticated and
delivered, and that all property subject, or to become subject, to the Indenture is to be held, subject to the covenants, conditions, uses and trusts therein set forth.

ARTICLE 1

AMOUNT, FORM, NUMBERING, DENOMINATION,
TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF
SERIES Il BONDS, DUE 2011

Section 1.01. The Series Il Bonds may be issued at any time or from time to time upon and subject to the terms and provisions of the Indenture. Unless and until the taking of further appropriate
action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation the Series Il Bonds shall be without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount.

Section 1.02. The Series II Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons. In addition, the Series II Bonds may be issuable in whole or in part in the form of one or more
securities that evidences all or part of the bonds of such series which is issued to a depository or a nominee thereof for such series (a "Global Security") and, in such case, the Board of Directors
shall appoint a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), designated to act as depositary (a "depositary") for such Global Securities.

Section 1.03. In the event the Series II Bonds are issued as a Global Security the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of the Indenture, shall apply:

(a)  Each Global Security authenticated under the Indenture shall be registered in the name of the depositary designated for such Global Security or a nominee thereof and delivered
to such depositary or a nominee thereof or custodian therefor, and each such Global Security shall constitute a single bond for all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture.

(b)  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Supplemental Indenture, no Global Security may be exchanged in whole or in part for bonds registered, and no transfer of a Global
Security in whole or in part may be registered, in the name of any person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof unless (4) such depositary has notified
the Corporation that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such Global Security and a successor depositary has not been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days of
receipt by the Corporation of such notification, (B) if at any time the depositary ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act at a time when the depositary is
required to be so registered to act as such depositary and no successor depositary shall have been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days after it became aware of such cessation,
(C) the Corporation, in its sole discretion, executes and delivers to the Tr ustee a written order signed in the name of the Corporation by its Chairman of the Board, its President or a
Vice President, and by its Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer, its Secretary or an Assistant Secretary to the effect that such Global Security, together with all other Global Securities of the
same series, shall be exchangeable as described below, or (D) an Event of Default (as defined in Section 1.02 of the Indenture) has occurred and is continuing with respect to the Series
11 Bonds. If any of the events described in clauses (A) through (D) of the preceding sentence occur, the beneficial owners of interests in the relevant Global Securities will be entitled to
exchange those interests for definitive bonds and, without unnecessary delay but in any event not later than the earliest date on which those interests may be so exchanged, the
Corporation will deliver to the Trustee definitive bonds in such form and denominations as are required by or pursuant to this Indenture, and of the same series, contain ing identical
terms and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Securities, such bonds to be duly executed by the Corporation. On or after the earliest date on
which such beneficial interests may be so exchanged, such Global Securities shall be surrendered from time to time by the depositary as shall be specified in the order from the
Corporation with respect thereto (which the Corporation agrees to deliver), and in accordance with any instructions given to the Trustee and the depositary (which instructions shall be
in writing but need not be contained in or accompanied by an officers’ certificate or be accompanied by an opinion of counsel), as shall be specified in the order from the Corporation
with respect thereto to the Trustee, as the Corporation’s agent for such purpose, to be exchanged, in whole or in part, for definitive bonds as described above without charge. The
Trustee shall authenticate and make available for delivery, in exchange for each portion of such su rrendered Global Security, a like aggregate principal amount of definitive bonds of
the same series of authorized denominations and of like tenor as the portion of such Global Security to be exchanged. Promptly following any such exchange in part, such Global
Security shall be returned by the Trustee to such depositary omits custodian. If a definitive bond is issued in exchange for any portion of a Global Security after the close of business at
the place where such exchange occurs on or after (i) any regular record date for the date the interest is due (the "Interest Payment Date") for such bond and before the opening of
business at that place of payment on the next Interest Payment Date, or (ii) any special record date for the payment of interest for such bond and before the opening of business at such



place of payment on the related proposed date for the payment of the interest which was not punctually paid or duly provided for on any Interest Payment Date ("Defaulted Interest”), as
the case maybe, interest shall not be payable on such Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, in respect of such definitive bond, but shall be payable on
the Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, only to the person to whom interest in respect of such portion of such Global Security shall be payable in
accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.

(c)  Subject to Clause (b) above, any exchange or transfer of a Global Security for other bonds may be made in whole or in part, and all bonds issued in exchange for or upon transfer
of a Global Security or any portion thereof shall be registered in such names as the depositary for such Global Security shall direct.

(d)  Every bond authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for or in lieu of, a Global Security or any portion thereof, shall be authenticated and
delivered in the form of, and shall be, a Global Security, unless such bond is registered in the name of a person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof.

Section 1.04. Unless otherwise specified as contemplated by Section 2.01 for the bonds evidenced thereby, every Global Security authenticated and delivered hereunder shall bear a legend in
substantially the following form:

THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A
DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF
THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN
THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY
PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 1.05. The fully registered bonds without coupons and the certificate of authentication to be endorsed on all Series II Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth on Exhibit A.

Section 1.06. The Series II Bonds may contain or have imprinted thereon such provisions or specifications not inconsistent with the Indenture as may be required to comply with the rules of any
stock exchange or any federal or state authority or commission, or to comply with usage with respect thereto, and may bear such other appropriate endorsements or notations as are authorized or
permitted by the Indenture.

Section 1.07. The fully registered Series II Bonds shall be issuable in denominations of $1,000, $5,000, $10,000, $25,000 or multiples of $25,000 and shall be dated as provided in paragraph I of
Section 2.01 of the Indenture. The definitive Series II Bonds shall be numbered in such manner as the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time determine.

Section 1.08. In the manner and subject to certain conditions and limitations specified herein and in the Indenture, Series II Bonds may be exchanged without a service charge for a like aggregate
principal amount of such Series II Bonds of other authorized denomination or denominations; provided that the Corporation may require payment of a sum or sums sufficient to reimburse it for any
stamp tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Section 1.09. The Corporation shall maintain in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California, and in such other place or places as the Corporation may designate at any time or from
time to time, an office or agency where Series II Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture. Such office or agency in the City
and County of San Francisco shall be the corporate trust office of the Trustee unless and until the Corporation shall designate another office or agency by notice in writing delivered to the Trustee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and when definitive bonds are issued, the Corporation shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, an office or
agency where Series II Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture.

Section 1.10. No transfer or exchange of any Series II Bonds pursuant to any of the provisions of this Article I shall be made except upon and in accordance with all of the applicable terms,
provisions and conditions of said bonds and of the Indenture.

ARTICLE 11

INTEREST, MATURITY DATE, REDEMPTION AND CERTAIN OTHER PROVISIONS OF
SERIES II BONDS, DUE 2011

Section 2.01. The Series II Bonds shall bear interest at the rate, shall be expressed to mature as to principal, and shall be payable as to principal and interest at such place or places and in such
money, all as provided in the form of Series Il Bond set forth on Exhibit A hereto and by the applicable provisions of the Indenture. In addition, December 15, 2003 shall be an Interest Payment Date
for the Series Il Bonds for purposes of Section 2.01 of the Base Indenture (as supplemented by the Prior Supplemental Indentures), provided that no interest shall be payable on such date.

Section 2.02. The Series Il Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity as set forth in the form of Series Il Bond set forth on Exhibit A, upon notice, in the manner and otherwise upon the
terms and conditions and with the effect, as provided herein and by the applicable provisions of the Indenture.

Section 2.03. The Corporation may at any time deliver to the Trustee for cancellation any Series II Bonds previously authenticated and delivered under the Indenture which the Corporation may
have acquired in any manner whatsoever and all Series I Bonds so delivered shall be promptly cancelled by the Trustee upon the request of the Corporation.

Section 2.04. The Series I Bonds shall, except as in this Supplemental Indenture otherwise expressly provided, be on the terms and provisions, and shall represent such rights and be entitled to such
benefits, as are applicable thereto by the terms of the Indenture.

Section 2.05. The Series I Bonds shall be entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the Indenture.
Section 2.06. The following Section 11.014 shall apply to the Series II Bonds in lieu of Section 11.01 of the Indenture:
"Section 11.01A4 If the Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall

(a)  pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on the bonds and coupons and claims for interest thereon to become due at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and
herein, and/or

(b)  provide for the payment of the bonds and interest thereon by depositing in cash with the Trustee or other depositary satisfactory to it at any time at or before maturity the entire
amount due or to become due thereon for principal and interest to maturity of all the bonds outstanding, and/or

(c) in case of a call of all of the bonds then outstanding for redemption, deposit with the Trustee on or before the date on which all of such bonds (other than those which shall have
matured by their terms) shall have been called for redemption, as provided in Article VII, the entire amount of the redemption price thereof, including interest and premium, if any, and
shall deliver to the Trustee (1) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given, or (2) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that
arrangements have been made insuring that such notice will be given, or (3) a written instrument executed by the Corporation under its corporate seal, and expressed to be irrevocable,
authorizing the Trustee to give such notice for and on behalf of the Corporation, and/or

(d)  surrender to the Trustee for cancellation all the bonds and coupons thereto appertaining for which payment is not so provided,
and shall also pay, or satisfactorily provide, all other sums due and payable hereunder by the Corporation, including the compensation and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

U at the request of the Corporation all the mortgaged property shall revert to the Corporation and the entire estate, right, title and interest of the Trustee and of the holders and
registered owners of the bonds and coupons in respect of the mortgaged property shall thereupon cease, determine and become void, and

(ii)  the Trustee in such case, upon the cancellation of all outstanding bonds and coupons for the payment of which cash shall not have been deposited in accordance with the
provisions of this Indenture, shall upon request of the Corporation, and at its cost and expense (4) and upon delivery to it of an opinion of counsel stating that (x) the Corporation has
received from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (y) since December 10, 2003 there has been a change in applicable federal income tax law, in
either case to the effect that, and based thereon such opinion of counsel shall confirm that, the holders of Series II Bonds will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax
purposes as a result of such defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such
defeasance had not occurred, execute to the Corporation, or its order, proper ins truments acknowledging satisfaction of this Indenture and (B) shall surrender to the Corporation, or its
order; all cash and deposited securities, if any, which shall then be held by it hereunder as a part of the mortgaged property (exclusive of cash held in trust as provided in Section 5.03);
provided, however, that if any such property shall have been delivered to the Trustee by any person or corporation other than the Corporation, the same shall be delivered or otherwise
disposed of in accordance with any reservations, limitations, conditions or provisions which may have been set forth in the instrument in writing then executed, if any, respecting the use,
management or disposition thereof; and provided further that if the Corporation pursuant to clauses (1) or (2) of subdivision (c) above shall have delivered to the Trustee proof
satisfactory to it that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given or that arrangements have been made insuring that such notice will be given, there shall also be
delivered to the Trustee an officers’ certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with and an opinion of counsel
stating that in his opinion such conditions precedent have been complied with."

ARTICLE III

SUNDRY PROVISIONS



Section 3.01. The recitals of fact contained herein shall be taken as the statements of the Corporation, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of the same. The Corporation
hereby covenants and agrees that it will cause this Supplemental Indenture to be kept recorded and/or filed as may be required by law, in such manner and in such places as may be necessary fully
to preserve and protect the security of the bondholders and all of the rights of the Trustee hereunder, and that it will with all reasonable dispatch deposit with the Trustee counterparts of this
Supplemental Indenture bearing official notation or endorsements showing such recordation and/or filing, or in case such counterparts are not returned to the Corporation, furnish to the Trustee the
best official evidence of such recordation and/or filing reasonably obtainable by the Corporation, or evidence of the taking of such other action, if any, but the Trustee, subject to the provisions of
Sections 14.02 and 14.03 of the In denture, shall in no way be liable for any failure or omission in this regard.

Section 3.02. The date of this Supplemental Indenture and the date of the Series Il Bonds are intended as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Supplemental Indenture and of the
Series Il Bonds, and are not intended to indicate that this Supplemental Indenture was executed and delivered or that the Series II Bonds were executed, delivered or issued on said date; it being
hereby provided that this Supplemental Indenture may be executed and delivered, and that the Series I Bonds may be executed, delivered or issued, either on said date or before or after said date,
and that this Supplemental Indenture is in fact executed and delivered by each party hereto on the date of its certificate of acknowledgment hereto attached.

Section 3.03. This Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to be part of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation agrees to conform to and comply with all and singular the terms,

provisions, conditions and covenants set forth therein and herein. This Supplemental Indenture shall be construed in connection with and as a part of the Indenture.

Section 3.04. 1t is further agreed that the Trustee accepts the trust imposed upon it by this Supplemental Indenture, upon and subject to the same terms and conditions as are expressed in Article XIV
of the Base Indenture.

Section 3.05. In order to facilitate the recording of this Supplemental Indenture, the same may be, executed in several counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and
such counterparts shall collectively constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 3.06. All terms used in this Supplemental Indenture which are defined in the Indenture are not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Indenture.

Section 3.07. To the extent any provision in this Supplemental Indenture conflicts with any provision in the Indenture, the provisions of this Supplemental Indenture shall govern; provided however,
that in the event such conflict would require bondholder consent, the terms and provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

Section 3.08. This Supplemental Indenture and the Series I Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles thereof.

Section 3.09. To the extent not otherwise addressed in this Supplemental Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture shall be subject to the provisions of Article XVII of the Indenture, the terms of which
are hereby incorporated by reference into this Indenture Supplement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has caused this
Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of December 15, 2003.

Attest: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
/sy CATHERINE C. LEE /s TERRY M. FLESKES

Name: Catherine C. Lee Name: Terry M. Fleskes

Title: Secretary Title: Vice President and Treasurer
Attest:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:

Authorized Signatory Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On this 12th day of December 2003, before me, /s/ DONNA R. CORONA , Notary Public, personally appeared Terry M. Fleskes, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such person executed the same in the person's authorized capacity, and that by the person signature on the instrument, the entity

upon behalf of which the person acted executed the instrument

wirness my hand and official seal

/s/ DONNA R. CORONA

Notary Public

My Commission expires ...4/21/05..................

Donna R. Corona. Commission # 1298291
Notary Public California

San Diego County

My comm. Expires



April 21, 2005

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On this 12th day of December 2003, before me, /s/ DONNA R. CORONA., Notary Public, personally appeared Catherine C. Lee, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such person executed the same in the person's authorized capacity, and that by the person signature on the instrument, the entity

upon behalf of which the person acted executed the instrument.

wirtness my hand and official seal

/s/ DONNA R. CORONA

Notary Public

My Commission expires ...4/21/05..................

Donna R. Corona. Commission # 1298291
Notary Public California
San Diego County

My comm. Expires

April 21, 2005

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has
caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of December 15, 2003.

Attest: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
By:
Name: Catherine C. Lee Name: Terry M. Fleskes
Title: Secretary Title: Vice President and Treasurer
Attest:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

/S/ FONDA HALL

Authorized Signatory Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President

CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
State of California
County of Los Angeles

On December 12, 2003, before me, Serena M. Gutierrez, personally appeared Fonda Hall and Alicia Estrada, personally known to me, to be the person(s) whose name(s) are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
they executed the same in their authorized capacity(ies), and that by their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.
/s/ Serena M. Gutierrez

Notary Public

Serena M. Gutierrez
Commission # 1264926
Notary Public-California
Los Angeles County

My Comm. Expires May 25, 2004



EXHIBIT A
[FORM OF REGISTERED BOND WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES II, DUE 2011]

[If this bond is issued as a global security, insert the following legend: THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED
TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY
REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A
NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR
OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.]

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
(Incorporated under the laws of the State of California)

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND, SERIES II, DUE 2011
4.375%

No. $

CUSIP No.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Corporation”, which term shall include any
successor corporation, as defined in the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to [If this bond is issued as a global security, insert "CEDE & CO." in the
foregoing space] or registered assigns, the principal sum of in lawful money of the United States of America, on the fifteenth day of January, 2011, and to pay interest thereon from the date of this
bond, at the rate of 4.375% per annum in like lawful money, payable semi-annually, on the fifteenth day of January and July in each year, to the holder of record of this bond on the immediately
preceding first day of January and July, respectively, commencing July 15, 2004, until the Corporation's obligation with respect to the payment of such principal shall be discharged as provided in
the Indenture hereinafter mentioned. Both the prin cipal of and interest on this bond will be paid at the corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor trustee under said
Indenture, in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at the office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New
York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose”]. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the holder of the Series Il Bonds is a depositary, or its nominee, payment of
the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this bond will be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though set forth at this place.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY has caused this bond to be signed in its corporate name by the facsimile signature of its authorized officer and a facsimile of
its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and attested by its Secretary or an Assistant Secretary.

Dated:
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

By

Vice President
(CORPORATE SEAL)

Attest:

Secretary

[REVERSE SIDE - FORM OF REGISTERED BOND
WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES 11, DUE 2011]

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Corporation (herein called the "bonds"), of the series hereinafter specified, all issued and to be issued under and all equally and ratably
secured by a mortgage and deed of trust dated October 1, 1940, between the Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee, to which mortgage and deed of trust and all
indentures supplemental thereto, including Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, June 1, 1965, August 1, 1972, May 1,
1976, September 15, 1981, May 18, 1984, November 15, 1986, January 15, 1988, August 15, 1992, October 1, 2002, October 17, 2003 and December 15, 2003 (herein collectively referred to as the
"Indenture"), reference is hereby made for a description of the property conveyed in trust, mortgaged and pledged, the nature and extent of the security, the rights of the registered owners of the
bonds and of the Trustee or trustee s in respect thereof, the terms and conditions upon which the bonds are, and are to be, secured and the circumstances under which additional bonds may be
issued. The bonds may be issued for various principal sums, and may be issued in series, which may mature at different times, may bear interest at different times, may bear interest at different rates
and may otherwise vary as in the Indenture provided. This bond is one of a series designated as the "First Mortgage Bonds, Series II, due 2011" (herein called "Series II"" Bonds) of the Corporation,
issued under and secured by the Indenture. Terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned thereto in the Indenture.

As provided in the Indenture, by any indenture or indentures supplemental thereto executed by the Corporation and the Trustee and consented to by the holders of not less than two-thirds (2/3) in
principal amount of the bonds at the time outstanding, and, in case one or more, but less than all, of the series of bonds then outstanding are affected by such supplemental indenture, consented to
by the holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) in principal amount of the bonds of each series so affected, the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto and the rights and obligations of the
Corporation and the holders of bonds, may be modified or altered from time to time, as provided in the Indenture; provided, however, (a) that the right of any holder of any bond to receive payment
of the principal of and interest on such bond, on or after the respective due dates expressed in such bond, or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such respective
dates, shall not be im paired or affected by any such supplemental indenture without the consent of such holder, and (b) that no such modification or alteration shall reduce the proportions of
bondholders' consents required as aforesaid; such proportions to be determined in each case as provided in the Indenture.

The Series II Bonds are entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the indenture.
All or a portion of the Series Il Bonds may be redeemed at the Corporation's option at any time or from time to time.

The price at which the Series Il Bonds will be redeemed (the "Redemption Price") on the date fixed for such redemption (the "Redemption Date") will be equal to the greater of the following
amounts: (a) 100% of the principal amount of the bonds being redeemed on the

Redemption Date; or (b) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the Series II Bonds being redeemed on that Redemption Date (not including
any portion of any payments of accrued and unpaid interest to the Redemption Date) discounted to the Redemption Date on a semiannual basis at the Adjusted Treasury Rate (as defined below) plus
20 basis points, as determined by the Reference Treasury Dealer (as defined below), plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Redemption Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
installments of interest on Series Il Bonds that are due and payable on Interest Payment Dates falling on or prior to a Redemption Date will be payable on such Interest Payment Dates to the
registered holders of such Series II Bonds as of the close of business on the relevant record date. The Redemption Price will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months.

Unless the Corporation defaults in payment of the Redemption Price, on and after the Redemption Date interest will cease to accrue on the Series II Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption.

"Adjusted Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, the rate per annum equal to the semiannual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price
for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such Redemption Date.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by the Reference Treasury Dealer as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Series II Bonds to
be redeemed that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the
remaining term of such Series II Bonds.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any Redemption Date, (A) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such Redemption Date, or (B) if only one Reference
Treasury Dealer Quotation is received, such Quotation.

"Reference Treasures Dealer" means (4) Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (or its affiliates which are Primary Treasury Dealers) and its successors; provided, however, that if any
of the foregoing shall cease to be a primary U.S. Government securities dealer in New York City (a "Primary, Treasury Dealer"), the Corporation will substitute therefor another Primary Treasury




Dealer; and (B) any other Primary Treasury Dealer(s) selected by the Corporation.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotation" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any Redemption Date, the average, as determined by the Corporation, of the bid and asked
prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Corporation by such Reference Treasury Dealer at 5:00 p.m. (New
York City time) on the third business day preceding such Redemption Date.

In the event of redemption of this bond in part only, a new bond or Series Il Bonds of like tenor for the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued in the name of the holder hereof upon the
cancellation hereof.

Notice of any such redemption will be mailed to the registered owners of the Series II Bonds to be redeemed not less than 30 nor more than 60 days before the Redemption Date. Once notice of
redemption is mailed, the Series II Bonds called for redemption will become due and payable on the Redemption Date and at the applicable redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
Redemption Date. Upon the Corporation's election to redeem all or a portion of the Series I Bonds, that redemption will not be conditional upon receipt by the paying agent or the Trustee of monies
sufficient to pay the Redemption Price.

In case an event of default, as defined in the Indenture, shall occur; the principal of all bonds then outstanding under the Indenture may be declared or become due and payable upon the conditions
and in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

This bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof at the office or agency of the Corporation in said City and County of San Francisco [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at the
office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose"] and in such other place or places as the
Corporation may designate at any time or from time to time, and thereupon a new fully registered bond or bonds of said series, without coupons, of authorized denomination or denominations, of a
like aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange for this bond; and at any of said offices or agencies fully registered Series II Bonds without coupons, are
exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of other such fully registered bonds of authorized denominations; all in the manner and subject to the conditions as provided in the Indenture.
No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this bond or for any claim based hereon or on the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto, against any
incorporator, stockholder, director or officer, past, present or future, of the Corporation, or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Corporation, or any such
predecessor or successor .corporation, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or otherwise, all such liability being waived
and released by every registered owner hereof by the acceptance of this bond and as part of the consideration for the issue hereof, and being likewise waived and released by the terms of the
Indenture.

This bond shall not become valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture until U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor as Trustee under the
Indenture, shall have signed the form of certificate endorsed hereon.

This bond shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof.

[FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION]
CERTIFICATE

This bond is one of the bonds, of the series designated therein, described in the withinmentioned Indenture.

U.S. BANK NATIONAL &n bSp,‘ ASSOCIATION Trustee

Authorized Officer
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EXHIBIT A A-1

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, dated as of December 10, 2004 (this "Supplemental Indenture"”), is made and entered into in the City of Los Angeles, State of California by and between
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and having its principal place of business in the City of Los
Angeles, State of California (hereinafter sometimes called the "Corporation") and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (successor by merger to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, formerly
known as First Trust of California, National Association), an association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and having a corporate trust office in the City
and County of Los Angeles, State of California (hereinafter, together with its predecessors as trustees under the Indenture referred to below, sometimes called the "Trustee").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee a certain Indenture (hereinafter referred to as the "Base Indenture”) dated October 1, 1940, to secure bonds of the
Corporation designated generally as its "First Mortgage Bonds" to be issued from time to time in one or more series, any of which series may vary from any other as to certain particulars specified
in Section 2.01 of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation has executed and delivered to the Trustee supplemental indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April
1, 1952, August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, July 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964, June 1, 1965, December 1, 1966, October 1, 1970, August 1, 1972,
September 1, 1972, October 1, 1974, May 1, 1976, October 1, 1977, November 1, 1979, February 1, 1981, September 15, 1981, April 1, 1982, August 15, 1983, May 18, 1984, December 16, 1985,
March 1, 1986, November 15, 1986, December 1, 1986, January 15, 1988, June 15, 1988, November 1, 1988, December 1, 1990, October 1, 1991, August 15, 1992, December 15, 1992, March 1,
1993, June 15, 1993, November 1, 1993, November 15, 1993, October 1, 2002, October 17, 2003 and December 15, 2003 supplementing and amending the Base Indenture (each, a "Prior
Supplemental Indenture," and the Base Indenture together with all Prior Supplemental Indentures and this Supplemental Indenture being herein collectively referred to as the "Indenture”); and

WHEREAS, the Base Indenture and the Prior Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, May 1, 1948, June 1, 1950, April 1, 1952 and August 1, 1955, are recorded in the office
of the County Recorder of each of the Counties listed below in the Official Records thereof, as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1956, the Prior Supplemental
Indentures dated, respectively, as of June 1, 1956 and December 1, 1956, are so recorded as stated in the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 1, 1957, the Prior Supplemental Indenture
dated as of July 1, 1957 and each subsequently dated Prior Supplemental Indenture (other than the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated December 15, 2003) is so recorded as stated in the Prior
Supplemental Indenture dated as of the next succeeding date; and the Prior Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 15, 2003 is recorded in the offices of the County Recorders in the Counties
of the State of California, as f ollows:

County Reference Date
Fresno Official Records, Document 03-0300288 December 18, 2003
Imperial Official Records, Document 03-039861 December 19, 2003
Kern Official Records, Document 03-0203273432 December 18, 2003
Kings Official Records, Document 03-0337506 December 29, 2003
Los Angeles Official Records, Document 03-3817178 December 18, 2003
Orange Official Records, Document 03-001496810 December 18, 2003
Riverside Official Records, Document 03-984000 December 17, 2003
San Bernardino Official Records, Document 03-0930729 December 17, 2003
San Diego Official Records, Document 03-1483662 December 17, 2003
San Luis Obispo Official Records, Document 03-143540 December 22, 2003
Santa Barbara Official Records, Document 03-0168576 December 17, 2003
Tulare Official Records, Document 03-0124991 December 18, 2003
Ventura Official Records, Document 03-0466331 December 17, 2003

WHEREAS, bonds of the Corporation of three (3) series designated, respectively, as its "First Mortgage Bonds, Series GG, Due 2012," "First Mortgage Bonds, Series HH, due 2018" and "First
Mortgage Bonds, Series II, Due 2011" are outstanding as a part of the First Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, each such series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further appropriate
action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, being without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount,; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of the Indenture, the Board of Directors has, by resolution duly adopted and delivered to the Trustee, created, as a part of the First
Mortgage Bonds referred to in the Indenture, a new series of bonds designated "First Mortgage Bonds, Series JJ, due 2009" (the "Series JJ Bonds"), to be of the form, terms and provisions provided
in that resolution and herein, which new series of bonds, unless and until the taking of further appropriate action by the Board of Directors, is to be without limitation as to aggregate authorized
principal amount and of which series of bonds in the aggregate principal amount of 100,000,000 are to be presently issued; and

WHEREAS, it is provided in the Indenture that all the business, franchises and properties, real, personal, and mixed, of every kind and nature whatsoever and wheresoever situated, which might
thereafter be acquired by the Corporation, shall be as fully embraced within the lien thereof as if said properties were owned by the Corporation at the date of the Base Indenture and were
particularly described therein and specifically conveyed thereby, excepting certain properties expressly excepted by the provisions of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the execution of the most recently recorded Prior Supplemental Indenture identifying after acquired property, the Corporation has acquired properties hereinafter
mentioned or referred to, all of which properties, upon the acquisition thereof by the Corporation, became and now are subject to the lien, operation and effect of the Indenture by virtue of the after-
acquired property clause or other clauses thereof; the Corporation, nevertheless, desires to execute, acknowledge, deliver and cause to be recorded this Supplemental Indenture for the purposes,
among others, of expressly and specifically subjecting such after-acquired properties to the lien of the Indenture and of further assuring and confirming the lien of the Indenture on all of the
properties of every kind and character, whether real or personal and regardless of the date of acquisition thereof by the Corporation, intended to be subjected to the lien thereof; and

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 16.01 of the Indenture, the Corporation and the Trustee may execute and deliver a Supplemental Indenture (i) to set forth the particulars,
permitted by Section 2.01 of the Indenture, as to which the Series JJ Bonds may vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds, and (ii) for any purpose not inconsistent with the
terms of the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, the making, executing, delivering and recording of this Supplemental Indenture have been duly authorized by proper corporate action of the Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the issuance of the Series JJ Bonds and the encumbrances of the Corporation's property to secure the Series JJ Bonds pursuant to this Supplemental Indenture have been authorized by
the Public Utilities Commission of the State of California:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and of other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order: (a) to set forth or specify (i)
the form of the fully registered Series JJ Bonds, and the form of the certificate to be endorsed on all Series JJ Bonds, and (ii) the terms and provisions of the Series JJ Bonds, including the
particulars thereof which vary from the bonds of the other series of the First Mortgage Bonds; and (b) further to secure the payment of both the principal of and interest on the bonds of the
Corporation now or at any time hereafter outstanding under the Indenture, including specifically, but without limitation, all of the First Mortgage Bonds now outstanding and the $100,000,000



aggregate principal amount of Series JJ Bonds and further to secure the observance and performance of all of the covenants, agreements and conditions contained in the Indenture, and without in
any way limiting the generality or effect of the Indenture insofar as by any provision thereof any of the property therein or hereafter described or referred to is now subject or intended to be subject
to the lien and operation thereof, but to such extent confirming such lien and operation, the Corporation has executed and delivered this Supplemental Indenture and has granted, bargained, sold,
released, conveyed, mortgaged, assigned, transferred, pledged, set over and confirmed, and does hereby grant, bargain, sell, release, convey, mortgage, assign, transfer, pledge, set over and confirm
unto U.S. Bank National Association, the Trustee, and to its successors or successors in the trust created by the Indenture, and to its and their assigns, forever, with power of sale, subject, to the
extent applicable by the terms of the Indenture to any of the properties hereinafter referred to or described, to the exceptions (other than as expressly provided in the granting clauses of the Prior
Supplemental Indentures dated respectively as of June 1, 1956, July 1, 1957, October 1, 1959, July 1, 1963, September 1, 1964 and December 1, 1966 with respect to exception (f) set forth on page
67 of the Base Indenture and reading as follows: "(f) Any gas and/or oil acreage, gas and/or oil wells, gas and/or oil reserves, or gas and/or oil leaseholds hereafter acquired by the Corporation, or
any property or equipment now or hereafter owned by the Corporation and used for the development of gas and/or oil acreage or for the drilling for or production of gas and/or oil from such
acreage; " which exception (f) is by said granting clauses expressly made inapplicable to certain therein specified parcels of property), reservations, conditions, terms and provisions provided in the
Indenture with respect to properties subject or intended to be subject thereto, all of the properties and assets of the Corporation, real, personal and mixed, of every kind and character, whether now
or hereafter owned by the Corporation and wheresoever situated, including, without in any way limiting or mod ifying the generality or effect of the foregoing, all and singular, the following
properties:

FIRST: All of the lots, pieces and parcels of land and rights or interests in real property situated in the Counties in the State of California, specifically described and mentioned or enumerated in
Schedule A attached hereto, to which reference is hereby made and the same is made a part hereof with the same force and effect as if the same were here set forth at length.

SECOND: All and singular the plants, properties, equipment, real and personal property, estates, interests, goodwill, generating, transmission, feeding, storing, and distribution systems, and
utilities of the Corporation situated in the Counties of Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Kings, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Tulare and
Ventura, and elsewhere, in the State of California, with all and singular the franchises, ordinances, grants, easements, licenses, powers, immunities, permits, privileges, appurtenances, tenements
and other rights and property thereunto appertaining or belonging, as the same now exist and as the same and any and all parts thereof may hereafter exist or be improved, added to, enlarged,
extended or acquired in said counties or elsewhere in said state or any other state or states.

THIRD: All other property, real, personal and mixed, of every kind, nature and description (including, without in any way limiting the effect or the generality hereof, all facilities; all stocks, bonds
and other securities from time to time conveyed, assigned, transferred, mortgaged or pledged on behalf of the Corporation, or with its consent, to the Trustee in the manner and for the purposes as
provided in the Indenture; all gas manufacturing plants, boilers, engines, compressors, motors, pumps, generators, gasholders, tanks, appliances, oil storage facilities, gas storage facilities, wells,
buildings, structures, plants, works and other improvements, all gas transmission and distributing lines and systems, all meters and regulators and all other apparatus, machinery, appliances, tools,
furniture, fixtures, supplies, facilities and utilities and other personal property; or any right or interest in any thereof; all business and goodwill, rights, consents, franchises, ordinances, licenses,
agreements, contracts, permits, easements, rights of way, leases and leasehold interests; powers, grants, privileges and immunities to construct, operate and maintain lines and other facilities or
properties for conveying gas or other commodity or utility for any purpose or purposes through, under and over public streets or highways, or public or private places or property, all reversions,
remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues and profits of any property, real, personal and mixed; and all other classes and types of property described or referred to in the
Indenture), now or hereafter owned, held, possessed, acquired or enjoyed by or in any manner conferred upon or appertaining to the Corporation, including the interest of the Corporation in all
leases now or hereafter owned by it, together with all and singular the tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances belonging or in any way appertaining to each and every part of any and all
property subject or intended to be subject to the li en and operation of the Indenture, and the reversion and reversions, remainder and remainders, tolls, incomes, revenues, earnings, rents, issues
and profits thereof.

SAVING AND EXCEPTING, however, from the property hereby mortgaged, conveyed in trust and/or pledged, all property, whether now owned by the Corporation or hereafter acquired by it,
expressly saved and excepted from the lien of the Indenture and therein referred to as the "excepted property” (except as otherwise expressly provided in any Prior Supplemental Indenture
hereinabove mentioned with respect to exception (f) of said "excepted property"), unless and until, upon the occurrence of an event of default under the Indenture, the Trustee, or any receiver
appointed thereunder, shall take possession of any or all of such excepted property.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD in trust with power of sale for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of all holders of bonds of the Corporation, now or hereafter outstanding under the
Indenture as from time to time in effect, and for the enforcement and payment of said bonds and interest thereon when payable, and the performance of and compliance with the covenants and
conditions of the Indenture as from time to time in effect, without any preference, distinction or priority as to lien or otherwise of any of said bonds over any others thereof by reason of the difference
in the time of the actual issue, sale or negotiation thereof, or for any other reason whatsoever, except as otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture as from time to time in effect, so that each and
every such bond shall have the same lien and so that the principal and interest of every such bond shall, subject to the terms thereof, be equally and proportionately secured by said lien, as if such
bond had been made, exec uted, delivered, sold and negotiated simultaneously with the execution and delivery of the Base Indenture.

IT IS HEREBY COVENANTED, DECLARED, AND AGREED by and between the parties hereto that all such bonds are issued, authenticated and delivered, or are to be issued, authenticated and
delivered, and that all property subject, or to become subject, to the Indenture is to be held, subject to the covenants, conditions, uses and trusts therein set forth.

ARTICLE 1

AMOUNT, FORM, NUMBERING, DENOMINATION,
TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF
SERIES JJ BONDS, DUE 2009

Section 1.01.  The Series JJ Bonds may be issued at any time or from time to time upon and subject to the terms and provisions of the Indenture. Unless and until the taking of further appropriate
action by the Board of Directors of the Corporation the Series JJ Bonds shall be without limitation as to aggregate authorized principal amount.

Section 1.02.  The Series JJ Bonds shall be issued only as fully registered bonds without coupons. In addition, the Series JJ Bonds may be issuable in whole or in part in the form of one or more
securities that evidences all or part of the bonds of such series which is issued to a depository or a nominee thereof for such series (a "Global Security”) and, in such case, the Board of Directors
shall appoint a clearing agency registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), designated to act as depositary (a "depositary") for such Global Securities.

Section 1.03.  In the event the Series JJ Bonds are issued as a Global Security the following provisions, in addition to the provisions of the Indenture, shall apply:

(a)  Each Global Security authenticated under the Indenture shall be registered in the name of the depositary designated for such Global Security or a nominee thereof and delivered
to such depositary or a nominee thereof or custodian therefor, and each such Global Security shall constitute a single bond for all purposes of this Supplemental Indenture.

(b)  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Supplemental Indenture, no Global Security may be exchanged in whole or in part for bonds registered, and no transfer of a Global
Security in whole or in part may be registered, in the name of any person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof unless (4) such depositary has notified
the Corporation that it is unwilling or unable to continue as depositary for such Global Security and a successor depositary has not been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days of
receipt by the Corporation of such notification, (B) if at any time the depositary ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act at a time when the depositary is
required to be so registered to act as such depositary and no successor depositary shall have been appointed by the Corporation within 90 days after it became aware of such cessation,
(C) the Corporation, in its sole discret ion, executes and delivers to the Trustee a written order signed in the name of the Corporation by its Chairman of the Board, its President or a
Vice President, and by its Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer, its Secretary or an Assistant Secretary to the effect that such Global Security, together with all other Global Securities of the
same series, shall be exchangeable as described below, or (D) an Event of Default (as defined in Section 1.02 of the Indenture) has occurred and is continuing with respect to the Series
JJ Bonds. If any of the events described in clauses (4) through (D) of the preceding sentence occur, the beneficial owners of interests in the relevant Global Securities will be entitled to
exchange those interests for definitive bonds and, without unnecessary delay but in any event not later than the earliest date on which those interests may be so exchanged, the
Corporation will deliver to the Trustee definitive bonds in such form and denominations as are required by or pursuant to this Indenture, and of the same series, containing identical
terms and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of such Global Securities, such bonds to be duly executed by the Corporation. On or after the earliest date on
which such beneficial interests may be so exchanged, such Global Securities shall be surrendered from time to time by the depositary as shall be specified in the order from the
Corporation with respect thereto (which the Corporation agrees to deliver), and in accordance with any instructions given to the Trustee and the depositary (which instructions shall be
in writing but need not be contained in or accompanied by an officers’ certificate or be accompanied by an opinion of counsel), as shall be specified in the order from the Corporation
with respect thereto to the Trustee, as the Corporation's agent for such purpose, to be exchanged, in whole or in part, for definitive bonds as described above without charge. The
Trustee shall authenticate and make available for deliv ery, in exchange for each portion of such surrendered Global Security, a like aggregate principal amount of definitive bonds of
the same series of authorized denominations and of like tenor as the portion of such Global Security to be exchanged. Promptly following any such exchange in part, such Global
Security shall be returned by the Trustee to such depositary or its custodian. If a definitive bond is issued in exchange for any portion of a Global Security after the close of business at
the place where such exchange occurs on or after (i) any regular record date for the date the interest is due (the "Interest Payment Date") for such bond and before the opening of
business at that place of payment on the next Interest Payment Date, or (ii) any special record date for the payment of interest for such bond and before the opening of business at such
place of payment on the related proposed date for the payment of the interest which was not punctually paid or duly provided for on any Interest Payment D ate ("Defaulted Interest"),
as the case may be, interest shall not be payable on such Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, in respect of such definitive bond, but shall be payable
on the Interest Payment Date or proposed date for payment, as the case may be, only to the person to whom interest in respect of such portion of such Global Security shall be payable
in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.

(¢c)  Subject to Clause (b) above, any exchange or transfer of a Global Security for other bonds may be made in whole or in part, and all bonds issued in exchange for or upon transfer
of 'a Global Security or any portion thereof shall be registered in such names as the depositary for such Global Security shall direct.

(d) Every bond authenticated and delivered upon registration of transfer of, or in exchange for or in lieu of, a Global Security or any portion thereof, shall be authenticated and
delivered in the form of, and shall be, a Global Security, unless such bond is registered in the name of a person other than the depositary for such Global Security or a nominee thereof.

Section 1.04.  Unless otherwise specified as contemplated by Section 2.01 for the bonds evidenced thereby, every Global Security authenticated and delivered hereunder shall bear a legend in
substantially the following form:



THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A
DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF
THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN
THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY
PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.

Section 1.05.  The fully registered bonds without coupons and the certificate of authentication to be endorsed on all Series JJ Bonds shall be substantially in the form set forth on Exhibit A.

Section 1.06.  The Series JJ Bonds may contain or have imprinted thereon such provisions or specifications not inconsistent with the Indenture as may be required to comply with the rules of any
stock exchange or any federal or state authority or commission, or to comply with usage with respect thereto, and may bear such other appropriate endorsements or notations as are authorized or
permitted by the Indenture.

Section 1.07.  The fully registered Series JJ Bonds shall be issuable in denominations of $1,000, $5,000, $10,000, $25,000 or multiples of 325,000 and shall be dated as provided in paragraph I of
Section 2.01 of the Indenture. The definitive Series JJ Bonds shall be numbered in such manner as the Corporation shall at any time or from time to time determine.

Section 1.08. In the manner and subject to certain conditions and limitations specified herein and in the Indenture, Series JJ Bonds may be exchanged without a service charge for a like
aggregate principal amount of such Series JJ Bonds of other authorized denomination or denominations, provided that the Corporation may require payment of a sum or sums sufficient to
reimburse it for any stamp tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith.

Section 1.09.  The Corporation shall maintain in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California, and in such other place or places as the Corporation may designate at any time or from
time to time, an office or agency where Series JJ Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture. Such office or agency in the City
and County of San Francisco shall be the corporate trust office of the Trustee unless and until the Corporation shall designate another office or agency by notice in writing delivered to the Trustee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if and when definitive bonds are issued, the Corporation shall maintain in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, an office or
agency where Series JJ Bonds may be presented for payment, registration, transfer and exchange as provided therein or in the Indenture.

Section 1.10.  No transfer or exchange of any Series JJ Bonds pursuant to any of the provisions of this Article I shall be made except upon and in accordance with all of the applicable terms,
provisions and conditions of said bonds and of the Indenture.

ARTICLE 11

INTEREST, MATURITY DATE, REDEMPTION AND CERTAIN OTHER PROVISIONS OF
SERIES JJ BONDS, DUE 2009

Section 2.01.  The Series JJ Bonds shall bear interest at the rate, shall be expressed to mature as to principal, and shall be payable as to principal and interest at such place or places and in such
money, all as provided in the form of Series JJ Bond set forth on Exhibit A hereto and by the applicable provisions of the Indenture. In addition, December 10, 2004 shall be an Interest Payment
Date for the Series JJ Bonds for purposes of Section 2.01 of the Base Indenture (as supplemented by the Prior Supplemental Indentures), provided that no interest shall be payable on such date.

Section 2.02.  The Series JJ Bonds shall not be subject to redemption prior to maturity.

Section 2.03.  The Corporation may at any time deliver to the Trustee for cancellation any Series JJ Bonds previously authenticated and delivered under the Indenture which the Corporation may
have acquired in any manner whatsoever and all Series JJ Bonds so delivered shall be promptly cancelled by the Trustee upon the request of the Corporation.

Section 2.04.  The Series JJ Bonds shall, except as in this Supplemental Indenture otherwise expressly provided, be on the terms and provisions, and shall represent such rights and be entitled to
such benefits, as are applicable thereto by the terms of the Indenture.

Section 2.05.  The Series JJ Bonds shall be entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the Indenture.
Section 2.06.  The following Section 11.01A4 shall apply to the Series JJ Bonds in lieu of Section 11.01 of the Indenture:
"Section 11.014 If the Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall

(a)  pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on the bonds and coupons and claims for interest thereon to become due at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and
herein, and/or

(b)  provide for the payment of the bonds and interest thereon by depositing in cash with the Trustee or other depositary satisfactory to it at any time at or before maturity the entire
amount due or to become due thereon for principal and interest to maturity of all the bonds outstanding, and/or

(¢c)  in case of a call of all of the bonds then outstanding for redemption, deposit with the Trustee on or before the date on which all of such bonds (other than those which shall have
matured by their terms) shall have been called for redemption, as provided in Article VII, the entire amount of the redemption price thereof, including interest and premium, if any, and
shall deliver to the Trustee (1) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given, or (2) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that
arrangements have been made insuring that such notice will be given, or (3) a written instrument executed by the Corporation under its corporate seal, and expressed to be irrevocable,
authorizing the Trustee to give such notice for and on behalf of the Corporation, and/or

(d)  surrender to the Trustee for cancellation all the bonds and coupons thereto appertaining for which payment is not so provided,
and shall also pay, or satisfactorily provide, all other sums due and payable hereunder by the Corporation, including the compensation and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

(i) at the request of the Corporation all the mortgaged property shall revert to the Corporation and the entire estate, right, title and interest of the Trustee and of the holders and
registered owners of the bonds and coupons in respect of the mortgaged property shall thereupon cease, determine and become void; and

(ii) the Trustee in such case, upon the cancellation of all outstanding bonds and coupons for the payment of which cash shall not have been deposited in accordance with the provisions
of this Indenture, shall upon request of the Corporation, and at its cost and expense (A) and upon delivery to it of an opinion of counsel stating that (x) the Corporation has received
from, or there has been published by, the Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or (y) since December 7, 2004 there has been a change in applicable federal income tax law, in either case
to the effect that, and based thereon such opinion of counsel shall confirm that, the holders of Series JJ Bonds will not recognize income, gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as
a result of such defeasance and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such defeasance had
not occurred, execute to the Corporation, or its order, proper instruments ac knowledging satisfaction of this Indenture and (B) shall surrender to the Corporation, or its order, all cash
and deposited securities, if any, which shall then be held by it hereunder as a part of the mortgaged property (exclusive of cash held in trust as provided in Section 5.03); provided,
however, that if any such property shall have been delivered to the Trustee by any person or corporation other than the Corporation, the same shall be delivered or otherwise disposed of
in accordance with any reservations, limitations, conditions or provisions which may have been set forth in the instrument in writing then executed, if any, respecting the use,
management or disposition thereof; and provided further that if the Corporation pursuant to clauses (1) or (2) of subdivision (c) above shall have delivered to the Trustee proof
satisfactory to it that notice of redemption as provided in Article VII has been given or that arrangements have been made insuring that such notice will be given, there shall also be deli
vered to the Trustee an officers’ certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been complied with and an opinion of counsel
stating that in his opinion such conditions precedent have been complied with."

ARTICLE 1T
SUNDRY PROVISIONS

Section 3.01.  The recitals of fact contained herein shall be taken as the statements of the Corporation, and the Trustee assumes no responsibility for the correctness of the same. The Corporation
hereby covenants and agrees that it will cause this Supplemental Indenture to be kept recorded and/or filed as may be required by law, in such manner and in such places as may be necessary fully
to preserve and protect the security of the bondholders and all of the rights of the Trustee hereunder, and that it will with all reasonable dispatch deposit with the Trustee counterparts of this
Supplemental Indenture bearing official notation or endorsements showing such recordation and/or filing, or in case such counterparts are not returned to the Corporation, furnish to the Trustee the
best official evidence of such recordation and/or filing reasonably obtainable by the Corporation, or evidence of the taking of such other action, if any, but the Trustee, subject to the pr ovisions of
Sections 14.02 and 14.03 of the Indenture, shall in no way be liable for any failure or omission in this regard.

Section 3.02.  The date of this Supplemental Indenture and the date of the Series JJ Bonds are intended as and for a date for the convenient identification of this Supplemental Indenture and of the
Series JJ Bonds, and are not intended to indicate that this Supplemental Indenture was executed and delivered or that the Series JJ Bonds were executed, delivered or issued on said date; it being
hereby provided that this Supplemental Indenture may be executed and delivered, and that the Series JJ Bonds may be executed, delivered or issued, either on said date or before or after said date,
and that this Supplemental Indenture is in fact executed and delivered by each party hereto on the date of its certificate of acknowledgment hereto attached.

Section 3.03.  This Supplemental Indenture shall be deemed to be part of the Base Indenture, and the Corporation agrees to conform to and comply with all and singular the terms, provisions,
conditions and covenants set forth therein and herein. This Supplemental Indenture shall be construed in connection with and as a part of the Indenture.



Section 3.04. It is further agreed that the Trustee accepts the trust imposed upon it by this Supplemental Indenture, upon and subject to the same terms and conditions as are expressed in Article
X1V of the Base Indenture.

Section 3.05.  In order to facilitate the recording of this Supplemental Indenture, the same may be, executed in several counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original,
and such counterparts shall collectively constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 3.06.  All terms used in this Supplemental Indenture which are defined in the Indenture are not defined herein shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Indenture.

Section 3.07. To the extent any provision in this Supplemental Indenture conflicts with any provision in the Indenture, the provisions of this Supplemental Indenture shall govern; provided
however, that in the event such conflict would require bondholder consent, the terms and provisions of the Indenture shall govern.

Section 3.08.  This Supplemental Indenture and the Series JJ Bonds shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws
principles thereof.

Section 3.09.  To the extent not otherwise addressed in this Supplemental Indenture, this Supplemental Indenture shall be subject to the provisions of Article XVII of the Indenture, the terms of
which are hereby incorporated by reference into this Indenture Supplement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOEF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has caused this
Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of December 10, 2004.

Attest: SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
Name: Thomas C. Sanger Name: Terry M. Fleskes

Title: Secretary Title: Vice President and Treasurer
Attest:

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:

Authorized Signatory Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

On this day of December, 2004, before me, , Notary Public, personally appeared Terry M. Fleskes, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that such person executed the same in the person's authorized capacity, and that by the person's signature on the instrument, the entity

upon behalf of which the person acted executed the instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My Commission expires .....................
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO
On this day of December, 2004, before me, , Notary Public, personally appeared Thomas C. Sanger, personally known to me to be one of the persons whose names are

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that such person executed the same in the person's authorized capacity, and that by the person's signature on the instrument, the entity
upon behalf of which the person acted executed the instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public
My Commission expires
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF
On this day of December;, 2004, before me, , Notary Public, personally appeared and , personally known to me to be the persons whose

names are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same in their authorized capacities, and that by their signatures on the instrument the persons, or the



entity upon behalf of which the persons acted, executed the instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission expires

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF
On this day of December, 2004, before me, , Notary Public, personally appeared and , personally known to me to be the persons

whose names are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that they executed the same in their authorized capacities, and that by their signatures on the instrument the persons,
or the entity upon behalf of which the persons acted, executed the instrument.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission expires

EXHIBIT A
[FORM OF REGISTERED BOND WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES JJ, DUE 2009]

[1f this bond is issued as a global security, insert the following legend: THIS SECURITY IS A GLOBAL SECURITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE INDENTURE HEREINAFTER REFERRED
TO AND IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF A DEPOSITARY OR A NOMINEE THEREOF. THIS SECURITY MAY NOT BE EXCHANGED IN WHOLE OR IN PART FOR A SECURITY
REGISTERED, AND NO TRANSFER OF THIS SECURITY IN WHOLE OR IN PART MAY BE REGISTERED, IN THE NAME OF ANY PERSON OTHER THAN SUCH DEPOSITARY OR A
NOMINEE THEREOF, EXCEPT IN THE LIMITED CIRCUMSTANCES DESCRIBED IN THE INDENTURE. ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR
OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL INASMUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.]

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY
(Incorporated under the laws of the State of California)

FLOATING RATE FIRST MORTGAGE BOND, SERIES JJ, DUE 2009

$

CUSIP No.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the "Corporation," which term shall include any
successor corporation, as defined in the Indenture hereinafter referred to), for value received, hereby promises to pay to [1f this bond is
issued as a global security, insert "CEDE & CO." in the foregoing space] or registered assigns, the principal sum of in lawful money of the United States of America, on
the first day of December, 2009, and to pay interest thereon from the date of this bond, or from the most recent date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, quarterly in arrears, on the
first day of March, June, September and December in each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), commencing March 1, 2005, to the holder of record of this bond on the immediately preceding
fifteenth day of February , May, August and November, as the case may be, and at Maturity at the Applicable Rate (as defined below) in like lawful money until the Corporation's obligation with
respect to the payment of such principal shall be discharged as provided in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned. Both the principal of and interest on this bond will be paid at the corporate trust
office of U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor trustee under said Indenture, in the City and County of San Francisco, State of California [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at
the office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose"]. Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the
holder of the Series JJ Bonds is a depositary, or its nominee, payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on this bond will be made by wire transfer of immediately available funds.

The "Applicable Rate" shall initially be equal to 2.63% and shall be reset on each Interest Payment Date other than at Maturity, beginning on March 1, 2005, to the 3 Month LIBOR Rate as of such
Interest Payment Date plus .17% per year:

"3 Month LIBOR Rate" means the rate for deposits in U.S. dollars for the 3-month period commencing on the applicable Interest Payment Date which appears on Telerate Page 3750 at
approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, on the second London banking day prior to the applicable Interest Payment Date. If this rate does not appear on Telerate Page 3750, the calculation agent
will determine the rate on the basis of the rates at which deposits in U.S. dollars are offered by four major banks in the London interbank market (selected by the calculation agent) at approximately
11:00 a.m., London time, on the second London banking day prior to the applicable Interest Payment Date to prime banks in the London interbank market for a period of three months commencing
on that Interest Payment Date and in a principal amount equal to an amount not less than $1,000,000 that is representative for a single transaction in such market at such time. In such case, the
calculation agent will request the prin cipal London office of each of the aforesaid major banks to provide a quotation of such rate. If at least two such quotations are provided, the rate for that
Interest Payment Date will be the arithmetic mean of the quotations, and, if fewer than two quotations are provided as requested, the rate for that Interest Payment Date will be the arithmetic mean
of the rates quoted by major banks in New York City, selected by the calculation agent, at approximately 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the second London banking day prior to the applicable
Interest Payment Date for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European banks for a period of three months commencing on that Interest Payment Date and in a principal amount equal to an amount not
less than $1,000,000 that is representative for a single transaction in such market at such time. A London banking day is any business day in which dealings in U.S. dollars are transacted in the
London interbank market.

"Telerate Page 3750" means the display page so designated on the Moneyline Telerate, Inc. (or such other page as may replace such page on that service or any successor service for the purpose of
displaying London interbank offered rates of major banks).

The calculation agent will, upon the request of the holder of this bond, provide the interest rate then in effect. U.S. Bank National Association will serve as the calculation agent until such time as
the Corporation appoints a successor calculation agent. All calculations made by the calculation agent in the absence of manifest error shall be conclusive for all purposes and binding on the
Corporation and the holder of this bond. The Corporation may appoint a successor calculation agent with the written consent of the Trustee.

All percentages resulting from any calculation of the interest rate with respect to this bond will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest one-hundred thousandth of a percentage point, with five one-
millionths of a percentage point rounded upwards, and all dollar amounts in or resulting from any such calculation will be rounded to the nearest cent (with one-half cent being rounded upwards).

Interest on this bond shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days in each quarterly interest period.

The provisions of this bond are continued on the reverse hereof and such continued provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as though set forth at this place.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY has caused this bond to be signed in its corporate name by the facsimile signature of its authorized officer and a facsimile of
its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and attested by its Secretary or an Assistant Secretary.

Dated:

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY

By



Vice President

Attest:

Secretary

[REVERSE SIDE - FORM OF REGISTERED BOND
WITHOUT COUPONS, SERIES JJ, DUE 2009]

This bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Corporation (herein called the "bonds"), of the series hereinafter specified, all issued and to be issued under and all equally and ratably
secured by a mortgage and deed of trust dated October 1, 1940, between the Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee, to which mortgage and deed of trust and all
indentures supplemental thereto, including Supplemental Indentures dated, respectively, as of July 1, 1947, August 1, 1955, June 1, 1956, December 1, 1956, June 1, 1965, August 1, 1972, May 1,
1976, September 15, 1981, May 18, 1984, November 15, 1986, January 15, 1988, August 15, 1992, October 1, 2002, October 17, 2003, December 15, 2003 and December 10, 2004 (herein
collectively referred to as the "Indenture”), reference is hereby made for a description of the property conveyed in trust, mortgaged and pledged, the nature and exte nt of the security, the rights of
the registered owners of the bonds and of the Trustee or trustees in respect thereof, the terms and conditions upon which the bonds are, and are to be, secured and the circumstances under which
additional bonds may be issued. The bonds may be issued for various principal sums, and may be issued in series, which may mature at different times, may bear interest at different times, may bear
interest at different rates and may otherwise vary as in the Indenture provided. This bond is one of a series designated as the "First Mortgage Bonds, Series JJ, due 2009" (herein called "Series JJ
Bonds") of the Corporation, issued under and secured by the Indenture. Terms used but not defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned thereto in the Indenture.

As provided in the Indenture, by any indenture or indentures supplemental thereto executed by the Corporation and the Trustee and consented to by the holders of not less than two-thirds (2/3) in
principal amount of the bonds at the time outstanding, and, in case one or more, but less than all, of the series of bonds then outstanding are affected by such supplemental indenture, consented to
by the holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) in principal amount of the bonds of each series so affected, the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto and the rights and obligations of the
Corporation and the holders of bonds, may be modified or altered from time to time, as provided in the Indenture; provided, however, (a) that the right of any holder of any bond to receive payment
of the principal of and interest on such bond, on or after the respective due dates expressed in such bond, or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such respective
dates, shall not be impaired or affected by any such supplemental indenture without the consent of such holder, and (b) that no such modification or alteration shall reduce the proportions of
bondholders' consents required as aforesaid; such proportions to be determined in each case as provided in the Indenture.

The Series JJ Bonds are entitled to the benefits of the Renewal Fund as provided in the Indenture.
The Series JJ Bonds are not redeemable prior to Maturity

In case an event of default, as defined in the Indenture, shall occur, the principal of all bonds then outstanding under the Indenture may be declared or become due and payable upon the conditions
and in the manner and with the effect provided in the Indenture.

This bond is transferable by the registered owner hereof at the office or agency of the Corporation in said City and County of San Francisco [if this bond is a definitive bond, insert: ", or at the
office or agency in the Borough of Manhattan, City and County of New York, State of New York, that the Corporation maintains for such purpose”] and in such other place or places as the
Corporation may designate at any time or from time to time, and thereupon a new fully registered bond or bonds of said series, without coupons, of authorized denomination or denominations, of a
like aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee or transferees in exchange for this bond; and at any of said offices or agencies fully registered Series JJ Bonds without coupons, are
exchangeable for a like aggregate principal amount of other such fully registered bonds of authorized denominations, all in the manner and subject to the conditions as provided in the Indenture.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on this bond or for any claim based hereon or on the Indenture or any indenture supplemental thereto, against any
incorporator, stockholder, director or officer, past, present or future, of the Corporation, or of any predecessor or successor corporation, either directly or through the Corporation, or any such
predecessor or successor corporation, whether by virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty, or otherwise, all such liability being waived
and released by every registered owner hereof by the acceptance of this bond and as part of the consideration for the issue hereof, and being likewise waived and released by the terms of the
Indenture.

This bond shall not become valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture until U.S. Bank National Association, or its successor as Trustee under the
Indenture, shall have signed the form of certificate endorsed hereon.

This bond shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without regard to conflicts of laws principles thereof.
[FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION]
CERTIFICATE

This bond is one of the bonds, of the series designated therein, described in the within-mentioned Indenture.

U.S. Bank National
Association

Trustee

Authorized Officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southern California Gas Company has caused this Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by one of its Vice Presidents or its Treasurer and its
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary and its corporate seal to be hereunto duly affixed, and U.S. Bank National Association, in token of its acceptance of the trust hereby established, has caused this
Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by two of its authorized officers, including one or more of its Vice Presidents, all as of December 10, 2004.

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY



Attest:

/s/ THOMAS C.SANGER

Name: Thomas C. Sanger

Title: Secretary

Attest:

s/ TERRY M. FLESKES

Name: Terry M. Fleskes

Title: Vice President and Treasurer

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By:

Authorized Signatory

Name: Fonda Hall

Title: Vice President



Ex. 10.10

SEMPRA ENERGY
SEVERANCE PAY AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of (the "Effective Date") is made by and between SEMPRA ENERGY, a California corporation, and (the

"Executive").

WHEREAS, the Executive is currently employed by Sempra Energy or a subsidiary of Sempra Energy (Sempra Energy and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Company")

as

; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Sempra Energy (the "Board") has determined that it is in the best interests of the Company to institute formalized severance arrangements for certain of the
executives of the Company, including the Executive.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the Company and the Executive hereby agree as follows:

Section 1.

Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following capitalized terms have the
meanings set forth below:

"Accounting Firm" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9(b) hereof.

"Act" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 2 hereof.
"Affiliate" has the meaning set forth in Rule 12b-2 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

"Beneficial Owner" has the meaning set forth in Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the
Exchange Act.

"Buyer" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 17(i) hereof.

"Cause" means (a) Prior to a Change in Control, (i) the willful failure by the Executive to
substantially perform the Executive's duties with the Company (other than any such failure
resulting from the Executive's incapacity due to physical or mental illness, (ii) the grossly
negligent performance of such obligations referenced in clause (i) of this definition, (iii)
the Executive's gross insubordination; and/or (iv) the Executive's commission of one or
more acts of moral turpitude that constitute a violation of applicable law (including but not
limited to a felony) which have or result in an adverse effect on the Company, monetarily
or otherwise, or one or more significant acts of dishonesty. For purposes of clause (i) of
this definition, no act, or failure to act, on the Executive's part shall be deemed "willful"
unless done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive not in good faith and without
reasonable belief that the Executive's act, or failure to act, was in the best interests of the
Compan y. (b) From and after a Change in Control, (i) the willful and continued failure by
the Executive to substantially perform the Executive's duties with the Company (other than
any such failure resulting from the Executive's incapacity due to physical or mental illness
or any such actual or anticipated failure after the issuance of a Notice of Termination for
Good Reason by the Executive pursuant to Section 3 hereof) and/or (ii) the Executive's
commission of one or more acts of moral turpitude that constitute a violation of applicable
law (including but not limited to a felony) which have or result in an adverse effect on the
Company, monetarily or otherwise, or one or more significant acts of dishonesty. For
purposes of clause (i) of this definition, no act, or failure to act, on the Executive's part
shall be deemed "willful" unless done, or omitted to be done, by the Executive not in good
faith and without reasonable belief that the Executive's act, or failure to act, was in the best
interests of the Compa ny. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive shall not be
deemed terminated for Cause pursuant to clause (i) of this definition unless and until the
Executive shall have been provided with reasonable notice of and, if possible, a reasonable
opportunity to cure the facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination
of the Executive's employment for Cause.

"Change in Control" shall be deemed to have occurred when:

a. Any Person is or becomes the Beneficial Owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company (not including in the securities beneficially owned by such Person any
securities acquired directly from the Company or its Affiliates other than in connection with the acquisition by the Company or its Affiliates of a business) representing twenty
percent (20%) or more of the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding securities; or

The following individuals cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the number of directors then serving: individuals who, on the Effective Date, constitute the Board and
any new director (other than a director whose initial assumption of office is in connection with an actual or threatened election contest, including, but not limited to, a consent
solicitation relating to the election of directors of the Company) whose appointment or election by the Board or nomination for election by the Company's shareholders was
approved or recommended by a vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors then still in office who either were directors on the date hereof or whose appointment, election or
nomination for election was previously so approved or recommended, or

There is consummated a merger or consolidation of the Company or any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Company with any other corporation, other than (4) a merger or
consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continuing to represent (either by
remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity or any parent thereof), in combination with the ownership of any trustee or other
Sfiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of the Company, at least sixty percent (60%) of the combined voting power of the securities of the Company or such
surviving entity or any parent thereof outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation, or (B) a merger or consolidation effected to implement a recapitalization of the
Company (or similar transaction) in which no Person is or becomes the Beneficial Owner, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company (not includ ing in the securities
beneficially owned by such Person any securities acquired directly from the Company or its Affiliates other than in connection with the acquisition by the Company or its Affiliates
of a business) representing twenty percent (20%) or more of the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding securities, or

The shareholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company or there is consummated an agreement for the sale or disposition by the
Company of all or substantially all of the Company's assets, other than a sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the Company's assets to an entity, at least
sixty percent (60%) of the combined voting power of the voting securities of which are owned by shareholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership of the Company immediately prior to such sale.
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"Change in Control Date" means the date on which a Change in Control occurs.
"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
"Compensation Committee" means the compensation committee of the Board.

"Consulting Period" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 13(e) hereof.

"Date of Termination" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 3(b) hereof.

"Disability" has the meaning set forth in the Company's long-term disability plan or its
successor; provided, however, that the Board may not terminate the Executive's employment
hereunder by reason of Disability unless (i) at the time of such termination there is no
reasonable expectation that the Executive will return to work within the next ninety (90) day
period and (ii) such termination is permitted by all applicable disability laws.

"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the applicable
rulings and regulations thereunder.

"Excise Tax" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9(a) hereof.

"Good Reason" means:

a. Prior to a Change in Control, the occurrence of any of the following without the prior written consent of the Executive, unless such act or failure to act is corrected prior to the Date of
Termination specified in the Notice of Termination (as discussed in Section 3 hereof):



i. the assignment to the Executive of any duties materially inconsistent with the range of duties and responsibilities appropriate to a senior executive within the
Company (such range determined by reference to past, current and reasonable practices within the Company),;

ii. a material reduction in the Executive's overall standing and responsibilities within the Company, but not including (4) a mere change in title or (B) a transfer
within the Company, which, in the case of both (4) and (B), does not adversely affect the Executive's overall status within the Company,

iii. a material reduction by the Company in the Executive's aggregate annualized compensation and benefits opportunities, except for across-the-board reductions
(or modifications of benefit plans) similarly affecting all similarly situated executives (both of the Company and of any Person then in control of the Company)
of comparable rank with the Executive;

iv. the failure by the Company to pay to the Executive any portion of the Executive's current compensation and benefits or any portion of an installment of deferred
compensation under any deferred compensation program of the Company within thirty (30) days of the date such compensation is due;

v. any purported termination of the Executive's employment that is not effected pursuant to a Notice of Termination satisfying the requirements of Section 3 hereof;
for purposes of this Agreement, no such purported termination shall be effective;

vi. the failure by the Company to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor of the Company requiring such successor to assume and agree to perform the
Company's obligations under this Agreement, as contemplated in Section 15(c) hereof;

vii. the failure by the Company to provide the indemnification and D&QO insurance protection Section 10 of this Agreement requires it to provide; or

viii. the failure by the Company to comply with any material provision of this Agreement.

b. From and after a Change in Control, the occurrence of any of the following without the prior written consent of the Executive, unless such act or failure to act is corrected prior to the
Date of Termination specified in the Notice of Termination (as discussed in Section 3 hereof):

i. an adverse change in the Executive's title, authority, duties, responsibilities or reporting lines as in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control;

ii. a reduction by the Company in the Executive's aggregate annualized compensation opportunities, except for across-the-board reductions in base salaries,
annual bonus opportunities or long-term incentive compensation opportunities of less than ten percent (10%) similarly affecting all similarly situated
executives (both of the Company and of any Person then in control of the Company) of comparable rank with the Executive; or the failure by the Company to
continue in effect any material benefit plan in which the Executive participates immediately prior to the Change in Control, unless an equitable arrangement
(embodied in an ongoing substitute or alternative plan) has been made with respect to such plan, or the failure by the Company to continue the Executive's
participation therein (or in such substitute or alternative plan) on a basis not materially less favorable, both in terms of the amount of benefits provided and the
level of the Executive's participation relative to other participants, as existed at the time of the Change in Control;

i. the relocation of the Executive's principal place of employment immediately prior to the Change in Control Date (the "Principal Location") to a location which
is both further away from the Executive's residence and more than thirty (30) miles from such Principal Location, or the Company's requiring the Executive to
be based anywhere other than such Principal Location (or permitted relocation thereof), or a substantial increase in the Executive's business travel obligations
outside of the Southern California area as of the Effective Date other than any such increase that (A) arises in connection with extraordinary business activities
of the Company of limited duration and (B) is understood not to be part of the Executive's regular duties with the Company,

iv. the failure by the Company to pay to the Executive any portion of the Executive's current compensation and benefits or any portion of an installment of deferred

compensation under any deferred compensation program of the Company within thirty (30) days of the date such compensation is due;

any purported termination of the Executive's employment that is not effected pursuant to a Notice of Termination satisfying the requirements of Section 3 hereof;

for purposes of this Agreement, no such purported termination shall be effective;

the failure by the Company to obtain a satisfactory agreement from any successor of the Company requiring such successor to assume and agree to perform the

Company's obligations under this Agreement, as contemplated in Section 15(c) hereof;

vii. the failure by the Company to provide the indemnification and D&O insurance protection Section 10 of this Agreement requires it to provide, or

viii. the failure by the Company to comply with any material provision of this Agreement.
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Vi.

Following a Change in Control, the Executive's determination that an act or failure to act constitutes Good Reason shall be presumed to be valid unless such determination is deemed to
be unreasonable by an arbitrator pursuant to the procedure described in Section 12 hereof. The Executive's right to terminate the Executive's employment for Good Reason shall not be
affected by the Executive's incapacity due to physical or mental illness. The Executive's continued employment shall not constitute consent to, or a waiver of rights with respect to, any
act or failure to act constituting Good Reason hereunder.

Section 2.

"Gross-Up Payment" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9(a) hereof.

"Incentive Compensation Awards" means awards granted under Incentive Compensation Plans
providing the Executive with the opportunity to earn, on a year-by-year basis, annual and long-term
incentive compensation.

"Incentive Compensation Plans" means annual incentive compensation plans and long-term
incentive compensation plans of the Company, which long-term incentive compensation plans may
include plans offering stock options, restricted stock and other long-term incentive compensation.

"Involuntary Termination" means (a) a termination of employment by the Company other than for
Cause, death, or Disability, or (b) the Executive's resignation of employment with the Company for
Good Reason; provided, however, that except as provided in the last paragraph of Section 6 hereof,
a termination of the Executive's employment by reason of his retirement prior to a Change in
Control shall not constitute an Involuntary Termination hereunder.

"JAMS Rules" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 12 hereof.
"Notice of Termination" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 3(a) hereof.
"Payment" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9(a) hereof.

"Person" has the meaning set forth in section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act, as modified and used in
sections 13(d) and 14(d) thereof, except that such term shall not include (i) the Company or any of
its Affiliates, (ii) a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of
the Company or any of its Affiliates, (iii) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to
an offering of such securities, (iv) a corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the shareholders
of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their ownership of stock of the Company,
or (v) a person or group as used in Rule 13d-1(b) promulgated under the Exchange Act.

"Post-Change in Control Accrued Obligations" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 6(a)
hereof.

"Post-Change in Control Severance Payment" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 6 hereof.

"Pre-Change in Control Accrued Obligations" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 5(a)
hereof.

"Pre-Change in Control Severance Payment" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 5 hereof.

"Principal Location" has the meaning assigned thereto in clause (b)(iii) of the definition of Good
Reason, above.

"Proprietary Information" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 13(a) hereof.
"Release" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 13(d) hereof.
"SERP" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 6(b) hereof.

"Underpayment" has the meaning assigned thereto in Section 9(b) hereof.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the Company
determines, in its good faith judgment, that any provision of this Agreement is likely to be
interpreted as a personal loan prohibited by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Act"), then such provision shall be modified as
necessary or appropriate so as to not violate the Act; and if this cannot be accomplished, then the
Company shall use its reasonable efforts to provide the Executive with similar, but lawful,
substitute benefit(s) at a cost to the Company not to significantly exceed the amount the Company
would have otherwise paid to provide such benefit(s) to the Executive. In addition, if the



Executive is required to forfeit or to make any repayment of any compensation or benefit(s) to the
Company under the Act or any other law, such forfeiture or repayment shall not constitute Good
Reason.

Section 3.  Notice and Date of Termination

a. Any termination of the Executive's employment by the Company or by the Executive shall be communicated by a written notice of termination to the other party (the "Notice of
Termination"). Where applicable, the Notice of Termination shall indicate the specific termination provision in this Agreement relied upon and shall set forth in reasonable detail the
facts and circumstances claimed to provide a basis for termination of the Executive's employment under the provision so indicated. Unless the Board determines otherwise, a Notice of
Termination by the Executive alleging a termination for Good Reason must be made within 180 days of the act or failure to act that the Executive alleges to constitute Good Reason.

b. The date of the Executive's termination of employment with the Company (the "Date of Termination") shall be determined as follows: (i) if the Executive's employment is terminated by
the Company, either with or without Cause, the Date of Termination shall be the date specified in the Notice of Termination (which, in the case of a termination by the Company other
than for Cause, shall not be less than two (2) weeks from the date such Notice of Termination is given unless the Company elects to pay the Executive, in addition to any other amounts
payable hereunder, an amount equal to two (2) weeks of the Executive's Annual Base Salary in effect on the Date of Termination), and (ii) if the basis for the Executive's Involuntary
Termination is his resignation for Good Reason, the Date of Termination shall be determined by the Company, but shall not in any event be less than fifteen (15) days nor more than sixty
(60) days from the date such Notice of Termination is given.

Section 4.  Termination from the Board. Upon the termination of the Executive's employment for any
reason, the Executive's membership on the Board, the board of directors of any of the
Company's Affiliates, any committees of the Board and any committees of the board of
directors of any of the Company's Affiliates, if applicable, shall be automatically terminated.

Section 5. Severance Benefits upon Involuntary Termination Prior to Change in Control

Except as provided in Section 6 and Section 17(i) hereof, in the event of the Involuntary Termination of the Executive prior to a Change in Control, the Company shall pay the Executive,
in one lump sum cash payment as soon as practicable following such Involuntary Termination, (4) the full amount of any earned but unpaid Annual Base Salary through the Date of
Termination at the rate in effect on such date, plus (B) an amount (the "Pre-Change in Control Severance Payment") equal to [one-half (1/2) or one (1)] times the sum of (X) the
Executive's Annual Base Salary as in effect on the Date of Termination and (Y) the greater of his average annual bonus payment for the two (2) years immediately preceding the Date of
Termination or the average of his target bonuses for the two (2) years immediately preceding the Date of Termination. In addition to the Pre-Change in Control Severance Payment, the
Executive shall be entitled to the following additional benefits:

a. Accrued Obligations. The Company shall pay the Executive a lump sum amount in cash equal to the sum of (4) the Executive's Annual Base Salary through the Date of Termination to
the extent not theretofore paid, (B) an amount equal to any annual Incentive Compensation Awards earned with respect to fiscal years ended prior to the year that includes the Date of
Termination to the extent not theretofore paid, (C) any accrued and unpaid vacation, if any, and (D) reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses, if any, properly incurred by the
Executive in the performance of his duties in accordance with policies established from time to time by the Board. (The amounts specified in clauses (4), (B), (C) and (D) shall be
hereinafter referred to as the "Pre-Change in Control Accrued Obligations").

b. Equity Based Compensation. The Executive shall retain all rights to any equity-based compensation awards to the extent set forth in the applicable plan and/or award agreement.

c. Welfare Benefits. Subject to Section 11 below, for a period of [six (6) or twelve (12) months] following the Date of Termination (and an additional [six (6) or twelve (12) months] if the
Executive provides consulting services under Section 13(e) hereof), the Executive and his dependents shall be provided with health insurance benefits substantially similar to those
provided to the Executive and his dependents immediately prior to the Date of Termination, provided, however, that such benefits shall be provided on substantially the same terms and
conditions and at the same cost to the Executive as in effect immediately prior to the Date of Termination.

d. Qutplacement Services. The Executive shall receive outplacement services suitable to his position for a period of [twelve (12), eighteen (18) or twenty-four (24) months] following the
Date of Termination, in the aggregate amount not to exceed $50,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive shall cease to receive outplacement services on the date the Executive
accepts employment with a subsequent employer.

e. Financial Planning Services. The Executive shall receive financial planning services for a period of [twelve (12), eighteen (18) or twenty-four (24) months] following the Date of
Termination, at a level consistent with the benefits provided under the Company's financial planning program for the Executive as in effect immediately prior to the Date of Termination.

. Deferral of Payments. The Executive shall have the right to elect to defer any lump sum payments received by the Executive pursuant to this Section 5 under the terms and conditions of
the Company's nonqualified deferred compensation plan.

Section 6. Severance Benefits upon Involuntary Termination in Connection with and after Change in
Control

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 5 above, in the event of the Involuntary Termination of the Executive within two (2) years following a Change in Control, in lieu of the
payments described in Section 5 above, the Company shall pay the Executive, in one lump sum cash payment as soon as practicable following such Involuntary Termination, (4) the full
amount of any earned but unpaid Annual Base Salary through the Date of Termination at the rate in effect on such date, plus (B) an amount (the "Post-Change in Control Severance
Payment") equal to [one (1) or two (2)] times the sum of (X) the Executive's Annual Base Salary as in effect immediately prior to the Change in Control or the Date of Termination,
whichever is greater, and (Y) the greater of his average annual bonus payment for the two (2) years immediately preceding the Date of Termination or the average of his target bonuses
for the two (2) years immediately preceding the Date of Termination. In addition to the Post-Change in Co ntrol Severance Payment, the Executive shall be entitled to the following
additional benefits:

a. Accrued Obligations. The Company shall pay the Executive a lump sum amount in cash equal to the sum of (4) the Executive's Annual Base Salary through the Date of Termination to
the extent not theretofore paid, (B) an amount equal to any annual Incentive Compensation Awards earned with respect to fiscal years ended prior to the year that includes the Date of
Termination to the extent not theretofore paid, (C) any accrued and unpaid vacation, if any, (D) reimbursement for unreimbursed business expenses, if any, properly incurred by the
Executive in the performance of his duties in accordance with policies established from time to time by the Board, and (E) an amount equal to the target amount payable under any
annual Incentive Compensation Awards for the fiscal year that includes the Date of Termination or; if greater, the average of the three (3) years' highest gross annual bonus awards, not
necessarily consecutive, paid by the Company (or its predecessor) to the Executive under the Compan y's Executive Incentive Plan (or any predecessor or successor plan) in the five (5)
years preceding the year of Termination multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which shall be the number of days from the beginning of such fiscal year to and including the Date of
Termination and the denominator of which shall be 365, in each case to the extent not theretofore paid. (The amounts specified in clauses (A), (B), (C), (D) and (E) shall be hereinafter
referred to as the "Post-Change in Control Accrued Obligations").

b. [Pension Supplement. The Executive shall receive a lump sum cash payment representing the present value as of the Date of Termination of his or her Supplemental Retirement
Plan ("SERP") benefits [if eligible], to be calculated as if the Executive had reached age 62 (or his or her actual age if older), and applying either the applicable early retirement
factors under the Company's tax-qualified retirement plan, if the Executive is less than age 62 but at least age 55, or actuarially determined early retirement factors if the Executive
is less than age 55 and the applicable lump-sum factors under the Company's tax-qualified retirement plan; and the Executive's termination shall be a ""Qualifying Termination' as
defined in the Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement, if any, entered into between the Executive and the Company.]

c. Equity-Based Compensation. Notwithstanding the provisions of any applicable equity-compensation plan or award agreement to the contrary, all equity-based Incentive Compensation
Awards (including, without limitation, stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, performance share awards, awards covered under Section
162(m) of the Code, and dividend equivalents) held by the Executive shall immediately vest and become exercisable or payable, as the case may be, as of the Date of Termination, to be
exercised or paid, as the case may be, in accordance with the terms of the applicable Incentive Compensation Plan and Incentive Compensation Award agreement, and any restrictions
on any such Incentive Compensation Awards shall automatically lapse; provided, however, that any such awards granted on or after June 26, 1998 shall remain outstanding and
exercisable until the earlier of (4) the later of eighteen (18) months following the Date of Terminat ion or the period specified in the applicable Incentive Compensation Award
agreements or (B) the expiration of the original term of such Incentive Compensation Award (it being understood that all Incentive Compensation Awards granted prior to or after June
26, 1998 shall remain outstanding and exercisable for a period that is no less than that provided for in the applicable agreement in effect as of the date of grant).

d. Welfare Benefits. Subject to Section 11 below, for a period of [six (6), twelve (12) or twenty-four (24)] months following the Date of Termination (and an additional twelve (12) months if
the Executive provides consulting services under Section 13(e) hereof), the Executive and his dependents shall be provided with life, disability, accident and health insurance benefits
substantially similar to those provided to the Executive and his dependents immediately prior to the Date of Termination or the Change in Control Date, whichever is more favorable to
the Executive; provided, however, that such benefits shall be provided on substantially the same terms and conditions and at the same cost to the Executive as in effect immediately prior
to the Date of Termination or the Change in Control Date, whichever is more favorable to the Executive.

e. Quiplacement Services. The Executive shall receive outplacement services suitable to his position for a period of [eighteen (18), twenty-four (24) or thirty-six (36)] months following
the Date of Termination, in the aggregate amount not to exceed $50,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive shall cease to receive outplacement services on the date the
Executive accepts employment with a subsequent employer.

. Financial Planning Services. The Executive shall receive financial planning services for a period of [eighteen (18), twenty-four (24) or thirty-six (36)] months following the Date of
Termination, at a level consistent with the benefits provided under the Company's financial planning program for the Executive as in effect immediately prior to the Date of Termination.

g. Deferral of Payments. The Executive shall have the right to elect to defer any lump sum payments received by the Executive pursuant to this Section 6 under the terms and conditions of
the Company's nonqualified deferred compensation plan.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, if a Change in Control occurs and the Executive's employment with the Company is terminated by reason of an Involuntary Termination
prior to the Change in Control Date, and if such termination of employment (i) was at the request of a third party who has taken steps reasonably calculated to effect the Change in
Control or (i) otherwise arose in connection with or in anticipation of the Change in Control, then the Executive shall, in lieu of the payments described in Section 5 hereof, be entitled



to the Post-Change in Control Severance Payment and the additional benefits described in this Section 6 as if such Involuntary Termination had occurred within two (2) years following
the Change in Control.

Section 7. Severance Benefits upon Termination by the Company,_for Cause or by _the Executive Other
than for Good Reason. If the Executive's employment shall be terminated for Cause, or if the
Executive terminates employment other than for Good Reason, the Company shall have no
further obligations to the Executive under this Agreement other than the Pre-Change in
Control Accrued Obligations and any amounts or benefits described in Section 10 hereof.

Section 8. Severance Benefits upon Termination due to Death or Disability. If the Executive's
employment shall terminate by reason of death or Disability, the Company shall pay the
Executive or his estate, as the case may be, the Post-Change in Control Accrued Obligations
and any amounts or benefits described in Section 10 hereof. Such payments shall be in
addition to those rights and benefits to which the Executive or his estate may be entitled under
the relevant Company plans or programs.

Section 9. Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

a. Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding and except as set forth below, in the event it shall be determined that any payment or distribution in the nature of
compensation (within the meaning of Section 280G(b)(2) of the Code) to or for the benefit of the Executive, whether paid or payable pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise (the
"Payment") would be subject (in whole or in part) to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, together with any interest or penalties imposed with respect to such excise tax
(collectively, the "Excise Tax"), then the Executive shall be entitled to receive an additional payment (the "Gross-Up Payment") in an amount such that, after payment by the Executive of
all taxes (and any interest or penalties imposed with respect to such taxes), including, without limitation, any income taxes (and any interest and penalties imposed with respect thereto)
and Excise Tax imposed upon the Gross-Up Payment, the Executive retains an am ount of the Gross-Up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payment. The Company's
obligation to make Gross-Up Payments under this Section 9 shall not be conditioned upon the Executive's termination of employment. For purposes of determining the amount of any
Gross-Up Payment, the Executive shall be deemed to pay federal income tax at the highest marginal rate of federal income taxation in the calendar year in which the Gross-Up Payment
is to be made and state and local income taxes at the highest marginal rate of taxation in the state and locality of the Executive's residence on the date on which the Gross-Up Payment
is calculated for purposes of this Section 9, net of the maximum reduction in federal income taxes which could be obtained from deduction of such state and local taxes, and taking into
consideration the phase-out of the Executive's itemized deductions under federal income tax law.

Subject to the provisions of Section 9(c) below, all determinations required to be made under this Section 9, including whether and when a Gross-Up Payment is required, the amount of

such Gross-Up Payment and the assumptions to be utilized in arriving at such determination, shall be made by a nationally recognized accounting firm as may be agreed by the

Company and the Executive (the "Accounting Firm"); provided, that the Accounting Firm's determination shall be made based upon "substantial authority" within the meaning of

Section 6662 of the Code. The Accounting Firm shall provide detailed supporting calculations to both the Company and the Executive within fifteen (15) business days of the receipt of

notice from the Executive that there has been a Payment or such earlier time as is requested by the Company. All fees and expenses of the Accounting Firm shall be borne solely by the

Company. Any Gross-Up Payment, as determined pursuant to this Section 9, shall be paid by the Company to the Executive within five (5) days of the receipt of the Accounting Firm's

determination. Any determination by the Accounting Firm shall be binding upon the Company and the Executive. As a result of the uncertainty in the application of Section 4999 of the

Code at the time of the initial determination by the Accounting Firm hereunder, it is possible that Gross-Up Payments that will not have been made by the Company should have been

made (the "Underpayment”), consistent with the calculations required to be made hereunder. In the event the Company exhausts its remedies pursuant to Section 9(c) below and the

Executive thereafter is required to make a payment of any Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of the Underpayment that has occurred, and any such

Underpayment shall be promptly paid by the Company to or for the benefit of the Executive.

. The Executive shall notify the Company in writing of any claim by the Internal Revenue Service that, if successful, would require the payment by the Company of the Gross-Up Payment.
Such notification shall be given as soon as practicable, but no later than ten (10) business days after the Executive is informed in writing of such claim. The Executive shall apprise the
Company of the nature of such claim and the date on which such claim is requested to be paid. The Executive shall not pay such claim prior to the expiration of the thirty (30) day
period following the date on which the Executive gives such notice to the Company (or such shorter period ending on the date that any payment of taxes with respect to such claim is
due). If the Company notifies the Executive in writing prior to the expiration of such period that the Company desires to contest such claim, the Executive shall:
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i. give the Company any information reasonably requested by the Company relating to such claim,
ii. take such action in connection with contesting such claim as the Company shall reasonably request in writing from time to time, including, without limitation,
accepting legal representation with respect to such claim by an attorney reasonably selected by the Company,
iii. cooperate with the Company in good faith in order effectively to contest such claim, and
iv. permit the Company to participate in any proceedings relating to such claim;

provided, however, that the Company shall bear and pay directly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and penalties) incurred in connection with such contest, and shall
indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax basis, for any Excise Tax, income tax or any other taxes (including interest and penalties) imposed as a result of such
representation and payment of costs and expenses. Without limitation on the foregoing provisions of this Section 9(c), the Company shall control all proceedings taken in connection
with such contest, and, at its sole discretion, may pursue or forgo any and all administrative appeals, proceedings, hearings and conferences with the applicable taxing authority in
respect of such claim and may, at its sole discretion, either direct the Executive to pay the tax claimed and sue for a refund or contest the claim in any permissible manner, and the
Executive agrees to prosecute such contest to a determination before any administrative tribunal, in a court of initial jurisdiction and in one or more appellate courts, as the Company
shall determine; provided, however, that if the Company directs the Executive to pay such claim and sue for a refund, the Company shall advance the amount of such payment to the
Executive, on an interest-free basis, and shall indemnify and hold the Executive harmless, on an after-tax basis, from any Excise Tax, income tax or any other taxes (including interest or
penalties) imposed with respect to such advance or with respect to any imputed income in connection with such advance; and provided, further, that any extension of the statute of
limitations relating to payment of taxes for the taxable year of the Executive with respect to which such contested amount is claimed to be due is limited solely to such contested amount.
Furthermore, the Company's control of the contest shall be limited to issues with respect to which the Gross-Up Payment would be payable hereunder, and the Executive shall be entitled
to settl e or contest, as the case may be, any other issue raised by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority.

d. If, after the receipt by the Executive of a Gross-Up Payment or an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Section 9(c) above, the Executive becomes entitled to receive any
refund with respect to the Excise Tax to which such Gross-Up Payment relates or with respect to such claim, the Executive shall (subject to the Company's complying with the
requirements of Section 9(c) above, if applicable) promptly pay to the Company the amount of such refund (together with any interest paid or credited thereon after taxes applicable
thereto). If; after the receipt by the Executive of an amount advanced by the Company pursuant to Section 9(c) above, a determination is made that the Executive shall not be entitled to
any refund with respect to such claim and the Company does not notify the Executive in writing of its intent to contest such denial of refund prior to the expiration of thirty (30) days
after such determination, then such advance shall be forgiven and shall not be required to be repaid, and the amount of such advance shall offset, to the extent thereof, the amount of
Gross-Up Payment required to be paid.

e. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 9, the Company may, in its sole discretion, withhold and pay over to the Internal Revenue Service or any other applicable taxing
authority, for the benefit of the Executive, all or any portion of any Gross-Up Payment, and the Executive hereby consents to such withholding. If such payment is made by the Company
to the Internal Revenue Service or other applicable taxing authority, then the Executive shall not be entitled to payment pursuant to Section 9(b) above.

f- Any other liability for unpaid or unwithheld Excise Taxes shall be borne exclusively by the Company, in accordance with Section 3403 of the Code. The foregoing sentence shall not in
any manner relieve the Company of any of its obligations under this Agreement.

Section 10. Nonexclusivity of Rights. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent or limit the Executive's
continuing or future participation in any benefit, plan, program, policy or practice provided
by the Company and for which the Executive may qualify (except with respect to any
benefit to which the Executive has waived his rights in writing), including, without
limitation, any and all indemnification arrangements in favor of the Executive (whether
under agreements or under the Company's charter documents or otherwise), and insurance
policies covering the Executive, nor shall anything herein limit or otherwise affect such
rights as the Executive may have under any other contract or agreement entered into after
the Effective Date with the Company. Amounts which are vested benefits or which the
Executive is otherwise entitled to receive under any benefit, plan, policy, practice or
program of, or any contract or agreement entered into with, the Company shall be payable
in accordance with such benefit, plan, pol icy, practice or program or contract or agreement
except as explicitly modified by this Agreement. At all times during the Executive's
employment with the Company and thereafter, the Company shall provide the Executive
with indemnification and D&O insurance insuring the Executive against insurable events
which occur or have occurred while the Executive was a director or executive officer of the
Company, on terms and conditions that are at least as generous as that then provided to any
other current or former director or executive officer of the Company or any Affiliate.

Section 11. Full Settlement; Mitigation. The Company's obligation to make the payments provided for
in this Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder shall not be affected
by any set-off, counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other claim, right or action which the
Company may have against the Executive or others, provided that nothing herein shall



preclude the Company from separately pursuing recovery from the Executive based on any
such claim. In no event shall the Executive be obligated to seek other employment or take
any other action by way of mitigation of the amounts (including amounts for damages for
breach) payable to the Executive under any of the provisions of this Agreement, and such
amounts shall not be reduced whether or not the Executive obtains other employment.

Section 12. Dispute Resolution.

Any disagreement, dispute, controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the interpretation of this Agreement or any arrangements relating to this Agreement or
contemplated in this Agreement or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof shall be settled by final and binding arbitration administered by JAMS in San Diego, California in
accordance with the then existing JAMS arbitration rules applicable to employment disputes (the "JAMS Rules"); provided that, notwithstanding any provision in such rules to the
contrary, in all cases the parties shall be entitled to reasonable discovery. In the event of such an arbitration proceeding, the Executive and the Company shall select a mutually
acceptable neutral arbitrator from among the JAMS panel of arbitrators. In the event the Executive and the Company cannot agree on an arbitrator, the arbitrator shall be selected in
accordance with the then existing JAMS Rules. Neither the Executive nor the Company nor the arbitrator shall disclose the existence, content or results of any arbitration hereunder
without the prior written consent of all parties, except to the extent necessary to enforce any arbitration award in a court of competent jurisdiction. Except as provided herein, the
Federal Arbitration Act shall govern the interpretation of, enforcement of and all proceedings under this agreement to arbitrate. The arbitrator shall apply the substantive law (and the
law of remedies, if applicable) of the state of California, or federal law, or both, as applicable, and the arbitrator is without jurisdiction to apply any different substantive law. The
arbitrator shall have the authority to entertain a motion to dismiss and/or a motion for summary judgment by any party and shall apply the standards governing such motions under the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The arbitrator shall render an award and a written, reasoned opinion in support thereof. Judgment upon the award may be entered in any court having
Jurisdiction thereo f. The Executive shall not be required to pay any arbitration fee or cost that is unique to arbitration or greater than any amount he would be required to pay to pursue
his claims in a court of competent jurisdiction.

Section 13. Executive's Covenants.
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Confidentiality. The Executive acknowledges that in the course of his employment with the Company, he has acquired non-public privileged or confidential information and trade secrets
concerning the operations, future plans and methods of doing business ("Proprietary Information") of the Company and its Affiliates; and the Executive agrees that it would be
extremely damaging to the Company and its Affiliates if such Proprietary Information were disclosed to a competitor of the Company and its Affiliates or to any other person or
corporation. The Executive understands and agrees that all Proprietary Information has been divulged to the Executive in confidence and further understands and agrees to keep all
Proprietary Information secret and confidential (except for such information which is or becomes publicly available other than as a result of a breach by the Executive of this provision
or information the Executive is required by any governmental, administrative or court order to d isclose) without limitation in time. In view of the nature of the Executive's employment
and the Proprietary Information the Executive has acquired during the course of such employment, the Executive likewise agrees that the Company and its Affiliates would be
irreparably harmed by any disclosure of Proprietary Information in violation of the terms of this paragraph and that the Company and its Affiliates shall therefore be entitled to
preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief prohibiting the Executive from engaging in any activity or threatened activity in violation of the terms of this paragraph and to any other
relief available to them. Inquiries regarding whether specific information constitutes Proprietary Information shall be directed to the Company's Senior Vice President, Public Policy (or,
if such position is vacant, the Company's then Chief Executive Officer); provided, that the Company shall not unreasonably classify information as Proprietary Information.
Non-Solicitation of Employees. The Executive recognizes that he possesses and will possess confidential information about other employees of the Company and its Affiliates relating to
their education, experience, skills, abilities, compensation and benefits, and inter-personal relationships with customers of the Company and its Affiliates. The Executive recognizes that
the information he possesses and will possess about these other employees is not generally known, is of substantial value to the Company and its Affiliates in developing their business
and in securing and retaining customers, and has been and will be acquired by him because of his business position with the Company and its Affiliates. The Executive agrees that at all
times during the Executive's employment with the Company and for a period of one (1) year thereafter, he will not, directly or indirectly, solicit or recruit any employee of the Company
or its Affiliates for the purpose of being employed by him or by any competitor o f the Company or its Affiliates on whose behalf he is acting as an agent, representative or employee and
that he will not convey any such confidential information or trade secrets about other employees of the Company and its Affiliates to any other person, provided, however, that it shall
not constitute a solicitation or recruitment of employment in violation of this paragraph to discuss employment opportunities with any employee of the Company or its Affiliates who has
either first contacted the Executive or regarding whose employment the Executive has discussed with and received the written approval of the Company's Vice President, Human
Resources (or, if such position is vacant, the Company's then Chief Executive Officer), prior to making such solicitation or recruitment. In view of the nature of the Executive's
employment with the Company, the Executive likewise agrees that the Company and its Affiliates would be irreparably harmed by any solicitation or recruitment in violation of the terms
of 't his paragraph and that the Company and its Affiliates shall therefore be entitled to preliminary and/or permanent injunctive relief prohibiting the Executive from engaging in any
activity or threatened activity in violation of the terms of this paragraph and to any other relief available to them.

. Survival of Provisions. The obligations contained in Section 13(a) and Section 13(b) above shall survive the termination of the Executive's employment within the Company and shall be
fully enforceable thereafter. If it is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction in any state that any restriction in Section 13(a) or Section 13(b) above is excessive in duration or
scope or is unreasonable or unenforceable under the laws of that state, it is the intention of the parties that such restriction may be modified or amended by the court to render it
enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by the law of that state.

d. Release; Lump Sum Payment. In the event the Executive's employment is terminated by the Company other than for Cause, death or Disability or the Executive shall terminate his
employment for Good Reason, if the Executive agrees (i) to the covenants described in Section 13(a) and Section 13(b) above, (ii) to execute a release (the "Release") of all claims
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A within forty-five (45) days after the applicable Date of Termination and does not revoke such release in accordance with the terms
thereof, and (iii) to provide the consulting services described in Section 13(e) below, then in consideration for such covenants, the Company shall pay the Executive a lump sum amount
in cash equal to [one-half (1/2) or one (1) times] the sum of (4) the Executive's Annual Base Salary and (B) the greater of the Executive's target bonus for the year of termination under
the Company's Executive Incentive Plan (or any successor plan) or the average of the two (2) years' highest gross annual bonus awards, not necessarily consecutive, paid by the
Company (or its predecessor) to the Executive under the Company's Executive Incentive Plan (or any predecessor or successor plan) in the five (5) years preceding the year of
termination. The amount specified in this Section 13(d) shall be paid as soon as practicable following the Executive's execution of the Release, and the Executive shall have the right to
elect to defer such payment under the terms and conditions of the Company's nonqualified deferred compensation plan.

. Consulting. If the Executive agrees to the covenants described in Section 13(d) above, then the Executive shall have the obligation to provide consulting services to the Company as an

independent contractor, commencing on the Date of Termination and ending on the [first or second] anniversary of the Date of Termination (the "Consulting Period"). The Executive

shall hold himself available at reasonable times and on reasonable notice to render such consulting services as may be so assigned to him by the Board or the Company's then Chief

Executive Officer; provided, however, that unless the parties otherwise agree, the consulting services rendered by the Executive during the Consulting Period shall not exceed twenty
(20) hours each month. The Company agrees to use its best efforts during the Consulting Period to secure the benefit of the Executive's consulting services so as to minimize the

interference with the Executive's other activities, including requiring the performanc e of consulting services at the Company's offices only when such services may not be reasonably

performed off-site by the Executive.
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Section 14. Legal Fees. In the event of the termination of the Executive's employment within two (2)
years following a Change in Control, the Company shall pay to the Executive all legal
fees and expenses (including but not limited to fees and expenses in connection with any
arbitration) incurred by the Executive in disputing in good faith any issue arising under
this Agreement relating to the termination of the Executive's employment or in seeking
in good faith to obtain or enforce any benefit or right provided by this Agreement, but in
each case only to the extent the arbitrator or court determines that the Executive had a
reasonable basis for such claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the
termination of the Executive's employment prior to a Change in Control, the Executive,
if he is the prevailing party, shall be entitled to recover all legal fees and expenses
incurred in disputing in good faith any issue arising under this Agreement.

Section 15. Successors.

]

Assignment by Executive. This Agreement is personal to the Executive and without the prior written consent of the Company shall not be assignable by the Executive otherwise than by
will or the laws of descent and distribution. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Executive's legal representatives.
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Agreement to any person or entity (except for a successor described in Section 15(c) below) without the Executive's written consent.

. Assumption. The Company shall require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of the business and/or
assets of the Company to assume expressly and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that the Company would be required to perform it if no such
succession had taken place. As used in this Agreement, "Company" shall mean the Company as hereinbefore defined and any successor to its businesses and/or assets as aforesaid that
assumes and agrees to perform this Agreement by operation of law or otherwise.

o

Section 16. Administration Prior to Change in Control. Prior to a Change in Control, the Compensation
Committee shall have full and complete authority to construe and interpret the provisions of
this Agreement, to determine an individual's entitlement to benefits under this Agreement, to
make in its sole and absolute discretion all determinations contemplated under this
Agreement, to investigate and make factual determinations necessary or advisable to
administer or implement this Agreement, and to adopt such rules and procedures as it deems
necessary or advisable for the administration or implementation of this Agreement. All



determinations made under this Agreement by the Compensation Committee shall be final
and binding on all interested persons. Prior to a Change in Control, the Compensation
Committee may delegate responsibilities for the operation and administration of this
Agreement to one or more officers or employees of the Company. The provisions of this
Section 16 shall terminate and be of no fur ther force and effect upon the occurrence of a
Change in Control.

Section 17. Miscellaneous.

a. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, without reference to its principles of conflict of laws. The
captions of this Agreement are not part of the provisions hereof and shall have no force or effect. This Agreement may not be amended, modified, repealed, waived, extended or
discharged except by an agreement in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement of such amendment, modification, repeal, waiver, extension or discharge is sought. No
person, other than pursuant to a resolution of the Board or a committee thereof, shall have authority on behalf of the Company to agree to amend, modify, repeal, waive, extend or
discharge any provision of this Agreement or anything in reference thereto.

b. Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given by hand delivery to the other party or by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, addressed, in either case, to the Company's headquarters or to such other address as either party shall have furnished to the other in writing in accordance
herewith. Notices and communications shall be effective when actually received by the addressee.

c. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement.

d. Taxes. The Company may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such federal, state or local taxes as shall be required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law
or regulation.

e. No Waiver. The Executive's or the Company's failure to insist upon strict compliance with any provision hereof or any other provision of this Agreement or the failure to assert any right
the Executive or the Company may have hereunder, including, without limitation, the right of the Executive to terminate employment for Good Reason pursuant to Section 1 hereof, or
the right of the Company to terminate the Executive's employment for Cause pursuant to Section 1 hereof shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such provision or right or any other
provision or right of this Agreement.

. Entire Agreement; Exclusive Benefit. This instrument contains the entire agreement of the Executive, the Company or any predecessor or subsidiary thereof with respect to any
severance or termination pay. The Pre-Change in Control Severance Payment, the Post-Change in Control Severance Payment and all other benefits provided hereunder shall be in lieu
of any other severance payments to which the Executive is entitled under any other severance plan or program or arrangement sponsored by the Company, as well as pursuant to any
individual employment or severance agreement that was entered into by the Executive and the Company, and, upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, all such plans, programs,
arrangements and agreements are hereby automatically superseded and terminated.

g. No Right of Employment. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as giving the Executive any right to be retained in the employ of the Company or shall interfere in any way with
the right of the Company to terminate the Executive's employment at any time, with or without Cause.

h. Unfunded Obligation. The obligations under this Agreement shall be unfunded. Benefits payable under this Agreement shall be paid from the general assets of the Company. The
Company shall have no obligation to establish any fund or to set aside any assets to provide benefits under this Agreement.

i. Termination. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and be of no further force and effect and no benefits shall be payable hereunder
in the event that the Company sells or otherwise disposes of any part of the business or assets of the Company (other than such a sale or disposition which is part of a transaction or
series of transactions which would result in a Change in Control) and as a result of such transaction, (i) the Executive becomes an employee of the buyer of such business or assets (the
"Buyer") or (ii) the Executive is offered employment by the Buyer in an executive position with reasonably comparable status, compensation, benefits and severance agreement and
which is consistent with the Executive's experience and education, but the Executive declines to accept such offer.

J. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue until the third (3rd) anniversary of the Effective Date; provided, however, that commencing
on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Effective Date (and each anniversary of the Effective Date thereafter), the term of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for one (1)
additional year, unless at least ninety (90) days prior to such date, the Company or the Executive shall give written notice to the other party that it or he, as the case may be, does not
wish to so extend this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company gives such written notice to the Executive less than two (2) years after a Change in Control, the term of
this Agreement shall be automatically extended until the later of (A) the date that is one (1) year after the anniversary of the Effective Date that follows such written notice or (B) the
second (2nd) anniversary of the Change in Control Date.

k. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Executive and, pursuant to due authorization from its Board of Directors, the Company have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year
first above written.

SEMPRA ENERGY

G. Joyce Rowland
Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Date
EXECUTIVE
[ 1
Date
EXHIBIT A
GENERAL RELEASE
This GENERAL RELEASE (the "Agreement"), dated , is made by and between , a California corporation (the "Company") and
("vou" or "vour”).
WHEREAS, you and the Company have previously entered into that certain Severance Pay Agreement dated , 2006 (the "Severance Pay Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Section 13(d) of the Severance Pay Agreement provides for the payment of a benefit to you by the Company in consideration for certain covenants, including your execution and non-
revocation of a general release of claims by you against the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants herein contained, you and the Company hereby agree as follows:
ONE: Your signing of this Agreement confirms that your employment with the Company shall terminate at the close of business on , or earlier upon our mutual agreement.

TWO: As a material inducement for the payment of the benefit under Section 13 of that certain Severance Pay Agreement between you and the Company, and except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, you and the Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally release, acquit and forever discharge the other from any and all Claims either may have against the other. For purposes of
this Agreement and the preceding sentence, the words "Releasee" or "Releasees"” and "Claim" or "Claims" shall have the meanings set forth below:

(a) The words "Releasee” or "Releasees” shall refer to you and to the Company and each of the Company's owners, stockholders, predecessors, successors, assigns, agents, directors, officers,
employees, representatives, attorneys, advisors, parent companies, divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates (and agents, directors, officers, employees, representatives, attorneys and advisors of such parent
companies, divisions, subsidiaries and affiliates) and all persons acting by, through, under or in concert with any of them.

(b) The words "Claim" or "Claims" shall refer to any charges, complaints, claims, liabilities, obligations, promises, agreements, controversies, damages, actions, causes of action, suits, rights,
demands, costs, losses, debts and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs actually incurred) of any nature whatsoever, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, which you or the Company
now, in the past or, except as limited by law or regulation such as the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), in the future may have, own or hold against any of the Releasees; provided,
however, that the word "Claim" or "Claims" shall not refer to any charges, complaints, claims, liabilities, obligations, promises, agreements, controversies, damages, actions, causes of action, suits,



rights, demands, costs, losses, debts and expenses (including attorneys' fees and costs actually incurred) arising under [identify severance, employee benefits, stock option, indemnification and
D&O and o ther agreements containing duties, rights obligations etc. of either party that are to remain operative]. Claims released pursuant to this Agreement by you and the Company include, but
are not limited to, rights arising out of alleged violations of any contracts, express or implied, any tort, any claim that you failed to perform or negligently performed or breached your duties during
employment at the Company, any legal restrictions on the Company's right to terminate employees or any federal, state or other governmental statute, regulation, or ordinance, including, without
limitation: (1) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (race, color, religion, sex and national origin discrimination), (2) 42 U.S.C. Section 1981 (discrimination), (3) 29 U.S.C. Section 621-634 (age
discrimination); (4) 29 U.S.C. Section 206(d)(1) (equal pay); (5) 42 U.S.C. Section 12101, et seq. (disability); (6) the California Constitution, Article I, Section 8 (discrimination); (7) the California
Fair Employment and Hous ing Act (discrimination, including race, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, religion, sex or age); (8) California Labor
Code Section 1102.1 (sexual orientation discrimination); (9) Executive Order 11246 (race, color, religion, sex and national origin discrimination), (10) Executive Order 11141 (age discrimination);
(11) Section 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (handicap discrimination); (12) The Worker Adjustment and Retraining Act (WARN Act); (13) the California Labor Code (wages, hours,
working conditions, benefits and other matters); (14) the Fair Labor Standards Act (wages, hours, working conditions and other matters), the Federal Employee Polygraph Protection Act (prohibits
employer from requiring employee to take polygraph test as condition of employment); and (15) any federal, state or other governmental statute, regulation or ordinance which is similar to any of
the statutes described in clauses (1) through (14).

THREE: You and the Company expressly waive and relinquish all rights and benefits afforded by any statute (including but not limited to Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California)
which limits the effect of a release with respect to unknown claims. You and the Company do so understanding and acknowledging the significance of the release of unknown claims and the waiver
of statutory protection against a release of unknown claims (including but not limited to Section 1542). Section 1542 of the Civil Code of the State of California states as follows:

"4 GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF
EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR."

Thus, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1542 or of any similar statute, and for the purpose of implementing a full and complete release and discharge of the Releasees, you and the Company
expressly acknowledge that this Agreement is intended to include in its effect, without limitation, all Claims which are known and all Claims which you or the Company do not know or suspect to
exist in your or the Company's favor at the time of execution of this Agreement and that this Agreement contemplates the extinguishment of all such Claims.

FOUR: The parties acknowledge that they might hereafter discover facts different from, or in addition to, those they now know or believe to be true with respect to a Claim or Claims released
herein, and they expressly agree to assume the risk of possible discovery of additional or different facts, and agree that this Agreement shall be and remain effective, in all respects, regardless of
such additional or different discovered facts.

FIVE: You hereby represent and acknowledge that you have not filed any Claim of any kind against the Company or others released in this Agreement. You further hereby expressly agree never to
initiate against the Company or others released in this Agreement any administrative proceeding, lawsuit or any other legal or equitable proceeding of any kind asserting any Claims that are
released in this Agreement.

The Company hereby represents and acknowledges that it has not filed any Claim of any kind against you or others released in this Agr t. The Company further hereby expressly agrees never
to initiate against you or others released in this Agreement any administrative proceeding, lawsuit or any other legal or equitable proceeding of any kind asserting any Claims that are released in
this Agreement.

SIX: You hereby represent and agree that you have not assigned or transferred, or attempted to have assigned or transfer, to any person or entity, any of the Claims that you are releasing in this
Agreement.

The Company hereby represents and agrees that it has not assigned or transferred, or attempted to have assigned or transfer, to any person or entity, any of the Claims that it is releasing in this
Agreement.

SEVEN: As a further material inducement to the Company to enter into this Agreement, you hereby agree to indemnify and hold each of the Releasees harmless from all loss, costs, damages, or
expenses, including without limitation, attorneys' fees incurred by the Releasees, arising out of any breach of this Agreement by you or the fact that any representation made in this Agreement by you
was false when made.

As a further material inducement to you to enter into this Agreement, the Company hereby agrees to indemnify and hold each of the Releasees harmless from all loss, costs, damages, or expenses,
including without limitation, attorneys' fees incurred by the Releasees, arising out of any breach of this Agreement by it or the fact that any representation made in this Agreement by it was
knowingly false when made.

EIGHT: You and the Company represent and acknowledge that in executing this Agreement, neither is relying upon any representation or statement not set forth in this Agreement or the Severance
Agreement.

NINE:

(a) This Agreement shall not in any way be construed as an admission by the Company that it has acted wrongfully with respect to you or any other person, or that you have any rights whatsoever
against the Company, and the Company specifically disclaims any liability to or wrongful acts against you or any other person, on the part of itself, its employees or its agents. This Agreement shall
not in any way be construed as an admission by you that you have acted wrongfully with respect to the Company, or that you failed to perform your duties or negligently performed or breached your
duties, or that the Company had good cause to terminate your employment.

(b) If you are a party or are threatened to be made a party to any proceeding by reason of the fact that you were an officer or director of the Company, the Company shall indemnify you against any
expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees; provided, that counsel has been approved by the Company prior to retention, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld), judgments, fines,
settlements and other amounts actually or reasonably incurred by you in connection with that proceeding; provided, that you acted in good faith and in a manner you reasonably believed to be in
the best interest of the Company. The limitations of California Corporations Code Section 317 shall apply to this assurance of indemnification.

(c) You agree to cooperate with the Company and its designated attorneys, representatives and agents in connection with any actual or threatened judicial, administrative or other legal or equitable
proceeding in which the Company is or may become involved. Upon reasonable notice, you agree to meet with and provide to the Company or its designated attorneys, representatives or agents all
information and knowledge you have relating to the subject matter of any such proceeding. The Company agrees to reimburse you for any reasonable costs you incur in providing such cooperation.

TEN: This Agreement is made and entered into in California. This Agreement shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed by and under the laws of the State of California and
applicable Federal law. Any dispute about the validity, interpretation, effect or alleged violation of this Agreement (an "arbitrable dispute”) must be submitted to arbitration in San Diego,
California. Arbitration shall take place before an experienced employment arbitrator licensed to practice law in such state and selected in accordance with the then existing JAMS arbitration rules
applicable to employment disputes, provided, however, that in any event, the arbitrator shall allow reasonable discovery. Arbitration shall be the exclusive remedy for any arbitrable dispute. The
arbitrator in any arbitrable dispute shall not have authority to modify or change the Agreement in any respect. You and the Company shall each be responsible for payment of one-half (1/2) the
amount of the arbitrator's fee(s); provided, however, that in no event shall you be required to pay any fee or cost of arbitration that is unique to arbitration or exceeds the costs you would have
incurred had any arbitrable dispute been pursued in a court of competent jurisdiction. The Company shall make up any shortfall. Should any party to this Agreement institute any legal action or
administrative proceeding against the other with respect to any Claim waived by this Agreement or pursue any arbitrable dispute by any method other than arbitration, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred as a result of that action. The arbitrator's decision and/or award shall be rendered in
writing and will be fully enforceable and subject to an entry of judgment by the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San Diego, or any other court of competent jurisdiction.

ELEVEN: Both you and the Company understand that this Agreement is final and binding eight (8) days after its execution and return. Should you nevertheless attempt to challenge the
enforceability of this Agreement as provided in Paragraph TEN or, in violation of that Paragraph, through litigation, as a further limitation on any right to make such a challenge, you shall initially
tender to the Company, by certified check delivered to the Company, all monies received pursuant to Section 13(d) of the Severance Pay Agreement, plus interest, and invite the Company to retain
such monies and agree with you to cancel this Agreement and void the Company's obligations under Section 13(d) of the Severance Pay Agreement. In the event the Company accepts this offer, the
Company shall retain such monies and this Agreement shall be canceled and the Company shall have no obligation under Section 13(d) of the Severance Pay Agreement. In the event the Company
does not accept such offer, the Company shall so notify you and shall place such monies in an interest-bearing escrow account pending resolution of the dispute between you and the Company as to
whether or not this Agreement and the Company's obligations under Section 13(d) of the Severance Pay Agreement shall be set aside and/or otherwise rendered voidable or unenforceable.
Additionally, any consulting agreement then in effect between you and the Company shall be immediately rescinded with no requirement of notice.

TWELVE: Any notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be delivered either personally or by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the respective parties as
follows:

To Company: [TO COME]
Attn: [TO COME]
To You:

THIRTEEN: You understand and acknowledge that you have been given a period of forty-five (45) days to review and consider this Agreement (as well as statistical data on the persons eligible for
similar benefits) before signing it and may use as much of this forty-five (45) day period as you wish prior to signing. You are encouraged, at your personal expense, to consult with an attorne